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Corporate Profile

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited

(the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries,

also known as the “Group”) is one of the leading
financial institutions in Hong Kong with its foundation
dating back to 1969. Listed on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited in 1983 (Stock Code: 86), the
Company, through its subsidiaries, including Sun
Hung Kai Financial Limited and United Asia Finance
Limited, offers customised financial solutions for retail,
corporate and institutional clients.

Operating under Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited and
UAF Holdings Limited, the Company has five core
business segments, which are

— Wealth Management and Brokerage,
— Capital Markets,

— Asset Management,

— Consumer Finance and

— Principal Investments.

It has an extensive branch and office network of more
than 120 locations in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau. As of 31 December 2011, the Company has
more than HK$12 billion in shareholders equity.

For over 40 years, we have always put our customers
first. Our dedicated professional staff, with years of
experience and an enviable track record in the financial
industry, are always striving to provide investment

and financial services that meet the needs of our
customers.

To keep pace with the ever-changing financial
environment, in recent years the Group has actively
formed alliances with a number of significant local
and international companies, with the objective of
expanding our business and providing diversified
products to satisfy the needs of our wide range of
customers.

The success of the Group is based not only on its
sound strategic business model, but also on our five
important guiding principles: Excellence, Integrity,
Innovation, Prudence and Professionalism, in which
each plays a crucial role in ensuring the Group’s
continued growth.

As we grow our business, we never lose sight of our
role as a responsible corporate citizen. We have set
up Sun Hung Kai Financial Foundation to formalise
our community involvement. The Foundation focuses
on several key areas such as investor education,
community healthcare and environmental protection.
Progress has been made on greening of our operations,
with the launch of “Going Green” drives including
Toner-save, Power-save and Paper-save programmes.
We expect more environmentally friendly programmes
to be rolled out in the coming year as part of our
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") mission.
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Corporate Milestones

1969

Sun Hung Kai & Co. was formed by Mr. Fung King Hey, Mr. Kwok
Tak Seng and Mr. Lee Shau Kee. In 1973, Sun Hung Kai Securities
Limited (“SHKS") was incorporated.

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (the “Company"”) was formed and
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

1991

Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited (“SHKIS") became one of
the first underwriters and approved overseas agents in the Shanghai
and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges.

SHKIS was approved as a B-share seat holder of the Shanghai and
Shenzhen Stock Exchanges.

1996

Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL"), via its wholly-owned
subsidiary acquired the Fung family’s equity interest in the Company.

1997

SHKIS was approved as a Foreign Share Broker and Lead
Underwriter by the China Securities Regulatory Commission.
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The Company diversified its operations by establishing wealth
management and alternative investment businesses.

The Company entered the consumer finance area by acquiring UAF
Holdings Limited, and built its Mainland China strategy through a JV
with Zhe Jiang Province Yongan Futures Broker Company Limited.

The Company formally opened its flagship SHK Wealth Management

Centre in Hong Kong. 2

e 2010

SHK Private, a signature account of the Company, was established
to provide customised wealth management services to high-net-
worth clients. The Company formed strategic alliance with Look’s
Asset Management Limited.

SHKS was renamed as Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited effective 1
December 2011 to align the corporate name with its Sun Hung Kai

Financial brand. !! ! jI jI
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REVENUE ANALYSIS

INCOME STATEMENT ANALYSIS

3,593.2

(1,702.4)
47 %
(214.4)
(260.1)
(1,218.4)
(9.5)

(160.3)
1,730.5

(184.5)
1,546.0

224.3
(46.0)
(132.3)

17.1
6.2

1,615.3

(278.8)
(304.1)

1,032.4
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Financial Highlights

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION HIGHLIGHTS

Total loans and advances to customers: 12,797.9 10,549.6 21%
— Margin loans 4,277.0 4,436.5 -4%
— Secured term loans 964.8 648.6 49%
— Consumer finance loans 7,556.1 5,464.5 38%
Total borrowings 6,682.8 5,132.4 30%
— Current 2,923.5 2,492 .1 17%
— Long term 3,759.3 2,640.3 42%
Cash, deposits and cash equivalents 2,736.0 2,510.1 9%
Total assets 22,494.4 20,151.3 12%
Shareholders’ equity 12,087.5 11,365.2 6%
Profit after Taxation Basic Earnings per Share Revenue

(HK$ Million) (HK Cents) (HKS$ Million)

2,500 150 5,000

4,327

2,021

2,000 — 120 — —
4,000 3,503
1500 — 1,405 1,360 1,337 90 — 3000 —
1,000 — 60 — 2,000 —
500 — 30 — 1,000 —
0 0 0
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Share of Revenue of 1.5%
Different Segments in 2011

@ Wealth Management and Brokerage Capital Markets
@ Asset Management @ Consumer Finance @ Principal Investments
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Financial Highlights

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS

Revenue 4,326.7 3,207.3 2,889.3 3,064.1 3,593.2
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 1,897.6 346.5 1,258.4 1,087.0 1,032.4
Retained profits carried forward 5,232.4 5,350.9 6,150.7 3,200.2 3,757.2

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Current assets 10,919.6 9,129.9 10,141.0 13,016.1 14,230.6

Total assets 21,816.7 19,438.2 20,877.3 20,151.3 22,494.4

Current liabilities 2,960.8 3,493.6 5,493.6 4,047.6 4,115.2

Total liabilities 7,793.3 6,410.9 6,462.9 6,923.2 8,091.4
Notes:

(a) The comparative figures of revenue in 2007 to 2010 have been restated to conform to the reclassification of net gain (loss) on financial instruments from revenue to
a separate item in the consolidated income statement taken place in 2011.

(b) The comparative figures of assets and liabilities in 2008 and 2009 have been restated as a result of the adoption of the amendment to HKAS 17 “Lease” and Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause” in 2010.

(c) The comparative figures of profit attributable to owners of the Company, retained profits carried forward, current liabilities and total liabilities in 2009 and 2010
have been restated as a result of the adoption of the amendment to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets” and the reclassification of accrued
interest expenses under trade and other payables to respective financial liabilities in 2011.
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Letter to our Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me pleasure to report that Sun Hung Kai &
Co. Limited (the “Company”, with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), achieved another solid set of overall
results for the year ended 31 December 2011, despite
having to operate in a relatively difficult global
environment. The past year was characterised by
some very challenging circumstances. The slow US
economic recovery and subsequent downgrade of its
credit rating; Europe’s ongoing debt crisis; and the
catastrophic Japanese earthquake; all contributed to
the uncertainty. Against this backdrop, the Group
performed well, with its solid balance sheet and
diversified revenue streams.

The Group recorded a profit before tax of HK$1,615.3
million (2010: HK$1,592.5 million). Profit attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to HK$1,032.4
million (2010: HK$1,087.0 million), and earnings per
share was HK48.8 cents (2010: HK56.8 cents). The
Board has recommended a final dividend of HK10 cents
per share (2010: HK18 cents). Together with the
interim dividend of HK10 cents per share, total
dividends for the year will be HK20 cents (2010:
HK$2.293*), which is consistent with our dividend
payout policy of distributing at least 30% of our net
operating profits.

Mr. Lee Seng Huang

Group Executive Chairman
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Letter to our Shareholders

A highlight of the year was the record result posted by
our Consumer Finance business — United Asia Finance
Limited (UAF). UAF continued to build its branch network
locally and, particularly, in Mainland China, with its
market share augmented by the Group’s push into the
second mortgage business under the SHK Finance brand.

UAF’s ongoing expansion into Mainland China
continued to gain momentum. Its branch network
there surpassed that of Hong Kong with 54 branches
in the Mainland, compared with 45 in Hong Kong,
at the end of 2011. Its Mainland China business
now accounts for 15% of overall Group revenue.
UAF is well positioned for further growth as the
Chinese economy continues to build up its domestic
consumption base.

Our Wealth Management and Brokerage operation in
2011 also performed remarkably well, and it is satisfying
to see the growth in our margin lending business
alleviating the drop in commission income. Importantly,
we remain committed in our vision to become a leading
independent wealth management firm.

We invested further in our infrastructure and product
platforms, recently launching “SHKF eMQO!"”, an award-
winning mobile platform targeting our clients who
prefer to invest on a self-directed basis. This initiative
follows a series of other product developments including
SHK Private, and SHK MasterChoice Discretionary
Portfolio Management Services. We have also continued
to develop our alliance with EK Immigration Consulting
Limited to provide services for participants in Hong
Kong's Capital Investment Entrant Scheme.

The Group's Capital Markets division continued

to produce solid results in 2011. Its strengthened
capabilities allowed us to make significant progress
in tapping the small and medium corporate segments
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, despite a more
subdued fund raising environment in the market.

I would like to emphasise that all this could not

have been accomplished without our people. In this
regard, we have strengthened our senior management
and continued our efforts in attracting, nurturing

and developing talent across the Group. In order to
upgrade our operational efficiency, governance, and
to aid in staff retention, we launched our “Talent
Leadership Development Programme” last year to
invest in and develop our top prospects and bring up
the next generation of leaders in our organisation.

It is pleasing to see our efforts both in terms of
business development as well as talent development
being recognised by the industry and wider community.
This year, we continued to add to our collection of
awards, by achieving the Sing Tao Excellent Services
Brand Award 2011 — Securities Firm; CAPITAL
Magazine’s "The 12th CAPITAL Outstanding Enterprise
Award” and “CAPITAL Merits of Achievements in
Banking and Finance”. In addition, | am proud that
we have been named as a Caring Company by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Services for the 10th
consecutive year.

While the economic uncertainty that dogged 2011
remains, there are more reasons to be optimistic

in the coming year. The Group’s diversified mix of
businesses, strong balance sheet and adherence to
our core values of Excellence, Integrity, Innovation,
Prudence and Professionalism, makes us well placed
to face the challenges in 2012. | would like to take
this opportunity to thank all our stakeholders, business
partners, valued customers and last but not least, each
of my 3,541 dedicated colleagues, who have been
essential to the Group's success over the past year.

Lee Seng Huang
Group Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012

*  Total dividends for 2010 included the special dividend of HK$2.01 per share
from the disposal of the Group’s interest in Tian An China Investments
Company Limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW F

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s profit attributable
to the shareholders was HK$1,032.4 million (2010: HK$1,087.0 million),
while earnings per share was HK48.8 cents (2010: HK56.8 cents).

The Group's operating earnings before tax, which is profit before tax

excluding other income, net loss from valuation changes to financial
instruments, net exchange loss (discussed below), share of results of
associates and jointly controlled entities, increased by a satisfying 14%
during 2011 to HK$1,546.0 million.

The board recommended a final dividend of HK10 cents per share,
together with the interim dividend of HK10 cents making a total of

HK20 cents per share for the year.

When viewing these results we must keep in mind that 2011 was a

very challenging year for financial services globally. During the period
under review, global markets suffered from weak U.S. economic
growth, Europe’s ongoing debt crisis and the Japanese earthquake.
This already precarious situation was exacerbated by Standard and
Poor’s downgrading of the U.S.’s AAA credit rating and Europe’s debt
crisis extending from Greece into Spain and Italy. Global stock markets
plunged as funds moved away from equities, with emerging markets

generally underperforming the developed markets.

In Mainland China, the People’s Bank of China raised the required- UAZhBTER

reserves ratio (RRR) for banks six times in 2011 and raised deposit and bbb L

lending rates three times in an effort to cool the overheating economy o o gy AR
and tame inflation, before eventually reducing the RRR in December. r;ﬂ;.ﬂ" ~ ——_

Gross domestic product growth settled at 9.2% for the year, below the
2010 figure of 10.4%. Equity markets performed poorly during 2011

with the Shanghai Composite Index falling 21.7%, while in Hong Kong
the Hang Seng Index was down 20% for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Despite the uncertain global market, the Group’s balanced and
diversified mix of businesses and clientele enabled us to steer through
the volatility and deliver a solid performance in the year 2011.

Our loan businesses include Consumer Finance operating under UA
Finance (UAF), margin lending as well as structured finance had a very
strong year with total interest income across the Group increasing

by 32%. This was driven by the expansion of UAF branches across
Mainland China, as well as strong demand for funds from our corporate
customers in an environment where liquidity generally tightened.

The increase in revenue from our lending businesses offset weaker
performance in our fee driven businesses, where retail investment

customers have largely stayed on the sidelines in a volatile market.

Notwithstanding the challenging market conditions encountered during
2011 the Group continued to strengthen its business platforms. In our
Consumer Finance segment, UAF's branch network in Mainland China
has achieved a real milestone, surpassing the total number of Hong
Kong branches for the first time with 54 branches spread across eight
cities including a new branch in Beijing which commenced operations

in November 2011. UAF now has a solid foundation and geographical

reach in Mainland China as we continue our nationwide rollout plan.

In terms of the Sun Hung Kai Financial business (which comprises
Wealth Management and Brokerage, Capital Markets and Asset
Management), we continued in our endeavour to transform the Group

into one of the leading independent wealth management firms in Asia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS ANALYSIS

Revenue Breakdown
by Geography

2010 2011 2010

® Mainland China and others
Hong Kong

The Group's revenue increased by 17% during the year to HK$3,593.2 million.

The key driver for this increase was the 32% growth in total interest
income, which accounted for 77% of total revenue. Total loans and
advances to customers (including consumer finance loans, margin loans as
well as secured term loans in the structured finance business) amounted
to HK$12.8 billion at the end of 2011, up from HK$10.5 billion in 2010.

Revenue from Mainland China increased by 122% to HK$547.0 million,
accounting for 15% of the Group’s revenue. This reflects mainly
revenue from the Consumer Finance business in Mainland China.

Net loss from valuation changes to financial instruments for 2011
amounted to HK$132.3 million (2010: profit of HK$121.2 million),
reflecting mark to market valuation losses in the Asset Management
and Capital Markets business. This amount was offset by another non-
cash item, a HK$192.6 million gain from the revaluation of investment
properties, which is classified as Other Income.

Net foreign exchange losses of HK$46.0 million were also incurred, mainly
from the Consumer Finance business, reflecting the devaluation of the
HK/US dollar against the Renminbi (“RMB"), as UAF’'s Mainland China
subsidiaries converted their capital into RMB in the loan underwriting
process. It is worth noting that there is a corresponding appreciation of the
RMB denominated loans shown as an increase in reserves on the Statement
of Financial Position.

@ Others
Brokerage, commission and service income

Revenue Breakdown

by Type
2%

2%

2011

@ Interest income

Total Interest Income

(HK$ Million) Total:
3000 2,760 (+32%)

' 14 (-22%)
2 500 Total: 213 (+111%)

2,098 o 458 (+38%)
2,000 101
332

1,500 ——
1000 2,075 (+26%)
' 1,647

500

0
2010 2011

1 Consumer Finance

I 1 Capital Markets

M Wealth Management
and Brokerage

[ 1 Others

Loan Books
(HK$ Million) Total
otal:
15,000 12,798 (+21%)
Total: 965 (+49%)
12,000 10550
4,277 (-4%
9,000 AT
4,437
6,000
5,465 7,556 (+38%)
3,000 ——
2010 2011

[ 1 Secured term loans

M Margin loans

1 Consumer Finance loans
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WEALTH MANAGEMENT AND BROKERAGE

A one-stop investment platform with independent financial advisory
services is provided to create wealth for clients across all market
segments.

We offer one of the broadest ranges of wealth management products

in Hong Kong, covering securities, structured products, futures, options,
commodities, foreign exchange, and discretionary portfolio management
services, mutual funds and insurance.

A customer-developed new mobile trading application, “SHKF eMO!"”, was
launched in 2011 for clients to seize investment opportunities on the go.

We are also the leading provider of margin financing in Hong Kong, with
a loan book of over HK$4 billion at the end of 2011.

Revenue 1,082.5 1,034.3 4.7%
— Interest income 458.2 331.8 38.1%
— Fee based income and other revenue 624.3 702.5 -11.1%
Operating costs (716.6) (738.6) -3.0%
Cost to income (% Revenue) 66.2% 71.4%
Bad and doubtful debts (20.0) (1.6)
Finance costs (9.0) (13.3)
Operating Earnings 336.9 280.8 20.0%
Other income 2.0 1.5
Exchange gain 7.6 0.1
Net gain on financial instruments 9.6 12.9
Jointly controlled entities 3.0 2.0
Pre-tax Contribution 359.1 297.3 20.8%
(HK$ Million)
5,000 . o
4524 4,343 The segment’s revenue was HK$1,082.5 million and contribution to pre-
(‘4%) . e : i
4000 tax profit was HK$359.1 million, representing a 5% and 21% increase
' respectively over 2010. The increase was driven by the Group’s margin
3000 lending business, which benefited from a market environment where
liquidity was tight.
2,000

1,000
458

332 (+38%)

2010 2011

1 Interest income M Gross margin loan balance
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Total interest income under this segment amounted to HK$458.2
million, a 38% year on year increase. The Group’s margin loan balance
closed at HK$4.3 billion at the end of 2011, slightly lower than in
2010 — although average balances were higher than the year before.
As the market deteriorated in the last quarter of the year, some of

our customers sought to reduce risk in their positions and repaid their
margin loans. However, overall, the Group benefited from improved
pricing on its aggregate loan book with the corporate customers, and
demand remaining relatively healthy.

Whilst our margin loan business performed well in a market where
liquidity was tighter, on the fee income side, it was a difficult period
for all players in the market. Revenue from the segment excluding
interest income declined by 11%. Retail customers, who form the core
of the Group’s customer base, have largely stayed on the sidelines in
this volatile market, especially in the second half of 2011 when the
Hang Seng Index hit a low of 16,170. Secondary trading of Hong Kong
equities accounted for over 40% of total commissions.

In this environment, our strategy to grow this business segment remains
to continue a gradual transformation into a leading wealth management
firm. SHK Private was launched, together with new products such as
the SHK MasterChoice Discretionary Portfolio Management Services

and the alliance with EK Immigration Consulting to promote CIES (the
Capital Investment Entrant Scheme). In November, a new mobile trading
platform was launched. The platform, “SHKF eMO!”, is now targeting
our self-directed trading client base.

Although these new initiatives were impacted by adverse market
conditions, particularly in the latter part of the year, the increase

in customers bodes well for the business as the market situation
normalises. For instance, client assets under management in our CIES
accounts increased by 98%. Almost 200 new accounts were opened
under the scheme, and with HK$10 million to be deposited for accounts
under the revised scheme requirements, there should be good future

revenue opportunities.
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CAPITAL MARKETS

The Capital Markets segment covers corporate finance, structured
lending, equity capital markets, and corporate and institutional sales
business.

Equity and debt fund raising solutions are offered to both corporate and
institutional clients.

Revenue
— Interest and fee incomes from lending activities
— Fee based income and other revenue

Operating Costs
Cost to income (% Revenue)
Finance costs

Operating Earnings

Other income
Exchange (loss) gain
Net (loss) gain on financial instruments

Pre-tax Contribution

(HK$ Million)

1,200
1,021
(+45%)

1,000

800
705

328.2 255.1 28.7%
213.4 101.3 110.7%
114.8 153.8 -25.4%
(87.2) (68.7) 26.9%
26.6% 26.9%
(0.2) (1.1)
240.8 185.3 30.0%
3.6 =
(0.6) 1.0
(94.3) 71.8
149.5 258.1 -02.1%

In 2011, the HKEX retained its status for the third year in a row as the
world’s top ranked exchange for initial public offering (“IPO") equity
funds raised. However, fund raising activity levels were generally
lower. A total of 101 companies listed directly on the main board or
transferred from the Growth Enterprise Market, slightly lower than
2010. Total equity funds raised (including post — IPO fund raising)

600

declined by 43% to HK$488 billion.

400

213
(+111%)

200
101

International listings played an important role in 2011 and accounted

for 52% of IPO funds raised, including companies such as Glencore

2010 2011

[1 Interest income

M Gross secured term loans balance

International plc, Prada SpA and Samsonite International. Around 36%
of all funds raised were attributed to mainland Chinese enterprises,
while Hong Kong companies accounted for 12%. The year also saw the
listing of Hong Kong'’s first single-investment trust, HKT Trust, as well as
the city’s first ever RMB-denominated REIT, Huixian REIT.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's Capital Markets division continued to deliver positive
results in 2011 while strengthening its capabilities in the Hong Kong
and Mainland China’s small to mid cap corporate segments. Revenue
was HK$328.2 million, an increase of 29% compared with 2010. Pre-
tax contribution was HK$149.5 million (2010: HK$258.1 million). The
drop is attributable to a net loss of HK$94.3 million from financial
instruments, which represent unrealised mark-to-market losses on
positions resulting from underwriting activities during the year. In
2010, we had a gain of HK$71.8 million from our structured loans’
equity linked component. Operating earnings from this segment (which
excludes this as well as other income and exchange impact) saw an
increase of 30% during 2011.

In 2011, Sun Hung Kai Financial concluded 20 IPO related transactions
and 19 secondary placements. In these transactions we acted either as
sponsor or principal book runner in five IPOs. Our team also completed
a RMB100 million dim sum convertible bond offering which was the
first of its kind in the market.

Our unique “debt plus equity” one-stop-shop funding model achieved
positive results with corporate clients as we were able to provide
funding solutions for them in an environment with tight liquidity.

Our structured finance business continued to grow in 2011. As of the
end of 2011, the Group's total structured finance loan balance stood

at HK$964.8 million, compared with HK$648.6 million at the end of
2010. Interest income from this segment surged by 111% to HK$213.4
million. At the same time, we participated in a diverse portfolio of
Mainland China based investment projects with an IPO exit target within

two years — these should bring future advisory opportunities.
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ASSET MANAGEMENT

As an Asia hedge fund incubation and seeding platform, we distribute
best-of-breed hedge funds through the wholesale distribution channel
and a strategic alliance with alternative fund managers.

Our discretionary portfolio management services provide affluent clients
with highly customised investment portfolios.

Assets under management of HK$2.29 billion was recorded at the end of
2011.

The Group's Asset Management segment recorded a loss of HK$42.7
million (2010: HK$13.5 million profit). These results included a
HK$53.3 million unrealised mark-to-market valuation adjustment from
our strategic investments into affiliated funds. The total assets under
management (including affiliated funds) as at 31 December 2011
amounted to HK$2.29 billion.

2011 was very difficult for the asset management industry in general.
The MSCI World index posted a negative performance of 9.41%, whilst
the MSCI AC Asia Pacific Ex Japan funds index shed 19.34%. However,
2012 has commenced on a positive note.

The Group's strategic objective is to build its funds platform through tie-ups
and alliances with counterparties that will boost our growth as well as build
our expertise in the sector. Amongst new initiatives, Sun Hung Kai Financial
launched the SHK MasterChoice Discretionary Portfolio Management
Services in May 2011 with Look’s Asset Management as the investment
advisor. The service combines SHK Fund Management’s investment portfolio
management expertise with the professional advice of Look’s Asset
Management to customise investment portfolios for our clients.

For 2012, we will seek to introduce additional investment products

and services tailored for a diversified internal and external investor

base throughout Asia Pacific and, particularly, from the Greater

China region. Priority goes to identifying and proposing best-in-class
investment strategies and products to add to our discretionary and non-
discretionary investment solutions. In the course of the year, the Group
will also seek to further scale the SHK CIES offering, by making use of
the Asset Management platform to align with our Wealth Management
& Brokerage businesses.
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R

CONSUMER FINANCE

UAF Branch Network (number of branches in each city)

We own 58% of United Asia Finance (UAF), which is a market
leading consumer finance company in Hong Kong focusing on
unsecured personal loans and mortgage loans.

Loans operation in Mainland China was started in 2007 with the
loan balance accounting for 20% of UAF's total.

A branch network of 99 in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Yunnan province,
Chongging, Chengdu, Tianjin, Dalian, Shenyang and Beijing has
been established.

Our total loan size reached HK$8 billion at the end of 2011.
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Operating through our 58% owned subsidiary UAF, the Group's
Consumer Finance business had a strong year. Revenue grew by 26% to
HK$2,084.3 million, with a pre-tax contribution of HK$854.3 million, an
increase of 14%.

Included in the results was an amortisation charge of intangible assets
of HK$174.4 million incurred from the Group's acquisition of UAF

six years ago. At the end of 2011, the balance of this amortisable
intangible asset is down to HK$39.2 million; it will be a much reduced
cost item to the Group after this year.

Total impairment charges, which included bad debts written off,
movement to impairment allowance and bad debts recovered, increased
to HK$164.5 million (2010: HK$108.6 million), mainly reflecting the
result of an increase in the loan portfolio balance over the year. Bad
debts written off net of recovery were 2.8% of gross loans, improving
from 3.7% last year. This reflects the Group’s prudent risk management,
as well as an increase in the proportion of mortgage loans in the Hong
Kong portfolio.

The devaluation of the HK/US dollars against the RMB during the year
led to a foreign exchange loss of HK$61.6 million (2010: HK$25.5
million) incurred by the conversion of HK/US dollars standing on the
capital accounts of the Mainland China subsidiaries which arises from
capital injection in HK/US currency, into RMB in the loan underwriting
process. The corresponding HK dollar appreciation of the RMB
denominated loans, on the other hand, was translated into increased
reserves on the Statement of Financial Position. Finance costs amounted
to HK$146.0 million. This amount included HK$25.6 million incurred
in the Group’s borrowings that funded the acquisition of UAF. UAF's
general operating expenses were in line with the growth in turnover.

The gross loan balance at year end increased significantly by 34% to
HK$8 billion. This was driven by a 24% increase in the Hong Kong

portfolio, and a doubling of the loan balance in Mainland China.

Delinquency Analysis

Amounts past due as a % of gross loans
10%
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A look at UAF’s loan businesses in Hong Kong shows that they have
reaped the benefits of robust consumption spending and a strong
labour market. Our loan businesses in Hong Kong grew at a healthy
pace during the year especially when examining the success of the
mortgage business under “SHK Finance” brand, which was launched
in the last quarter of 2010. The mortgage business of UAF grew
impressively, benefiting from increased demand under a tightened
mortgage financing environment from banks. Mortgage products
increased to 36% of UAF’'s Hong Kong loan book, up from 25% in
2010.

UAF also reached an important milestone whereby the size of our
Mainland China branch network has surpassed that of Hong Kong.
Although the bulk of the business remains in Hong Kong, UAF's total
branch network expanded to 99 outlets at the end of 2011, consisting
of 54 in Mainland China and 45 in Hong Kong. UAF added nine more
branches in Shenzhen, two in Shenyang, one in Chongging, one in
Tianjin, and two in Chengdu. Three branches were in operation since
business launch respectively in Yunnan, and Dalian in 2011, and the
loan business was launched in Beijing at the end of 2011. Results from
the newly opened locations have all been highly encouraging. As a
proportion of our total consumer finance loans, the Mainland China
market has increased from 13% in 2010 to 20% by the end of 2011.

Looking ahead in 2012, UAF will continue to grow its sales capabilities
in Mainland China by expanding its network coverage in provinces with
newly acquired lending licences. The latest has been granted in Wuhan,
with a launch scheduled in the first half of 2012. In the meantime

UAF will explore money lending ventures in other Mainland cities with
strategic growth potential. In Hong Kong, UAF continues to launch
more loan programmes and advertising campaigns in order to reach
our target customers, competing for a greater market share utilising its

strong sales and distribution platform.
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PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS

The major fixed assets and investments of the Group include SHKF's
previous office space in Admiralty Centre, where 27,000 out of 32,000
square feet saleable area is classified as investment property.

The Group's capital has been invested in a variety of businesses
and transactions, including stakes in small and medium enterprises
in Mainland China, infrastructure, private equity investments and
proprietary trading.

We manage a portfolio of listed and un-listed investments to create
synergies and business opportunities with the other segments of the
Group.

Principal Investments contributed HK$295.1 million to the Group’s
pre-tax profit, an increase from HK$272.4 million in 2010. A HK$192.6
million gain was recorded from the revaluation of the Group’s
investment property portfolio. This major asset in our portfolio consists
of Sun Hung Kai Financial’s previous office premises in Admiralty
whereby 27,000 out of 32,000 square feet of the space we own is
classified as investment property following our office move. The gain
offsets the reduced contribution from associates, subsequent to the
Tian An China Investments Company Limited restructuring in 2010.

Regarding the Group’s managed portfolio of public and private
investments, our strategy is to focus on investments that can generate
attractive returns, and at the same time deliver synergies with other
business lines we offer. At the end of 2011, we also signed an agreement
to dispose of our interest in a Malaysia hotel. The Group will record a
profit of over HK$80 million from this disposal in our 2012 accounts,
realising approximately HK$175 million in cash. We will keep monitoring
our legacy investments and seek to realise them at the right price.

OUTLOOK FOR 2012

With the European sovereign debt crisis still some way from resolution,
the general outlook remains uncertain. However, monetary conditions
globally remain generally easy, and in Mainland China the reserve
requirement ratio was adjusted downwards in December 2011.

There have been some positive responses to these developments,
including a recovery of the Hang Seng Index which has stabilised to

a range of 20,000 to 21,000. With the gradual stabilisation of the
financial markets as well as the Group’s balanced mix of businesses, we
will continue to pursue strategies that can deliver sustainable long term
growth.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2011, the equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$12,087.5 million, representing an increase
of HK$722.3 million or approximately 6% from 31 December 2010.

The Group continued to maintain a strong cash position and had short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash amounting to HK$2,736.0
million (at 31 December 2010: HK$2,510.1 million). The Group’s total
bank and other borrowings, amount due to an associate of a holding
company, loans due to fellow subsidiaries and bonds amounted to
HK$6,682.8 million (at 31 December 2010: HK$5,132.4 million). Of this,
HK$2,923.5 million is repayable within one year and HK$3,759.3 million
is repayable after one year (at 31 December 2010: HK$2,492.1 million
and HK$2,640.3 million respectively).

The Group's liquidity, as demonstrated by the current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) increased to 3.5 times as at 31 December 2011
(at 31 December 2010: 3.2 times).

The Group's gearing ratio (calculated on the basis of the Group's total
bank and other borrowings, amount due to an associate of a holding
company, loans due to fellow subsidiaries and bonds over the equity
attributable to owners of the Company) was approximately 55% as at
31 December 2011 (at 31 December 2010: approximately 45%).

Capital Structure, Bank Borrowings and Exposure to Fluctuations
in Exchange Rates

During the year, the Trustee of the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme
("EOS") acquired 2.6 million shares of the Company for shares awarded
under the scheme through purchases on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company issued 3.4 million
shares under the 2010 final and 2011 interim scrip dividend schemes.
Upon the conversion in August 2011 of all outstanding mandatory
convertible notes, the Company issued 341.6 million shares. The Company
repurchased 11.0 million shares during the year for a total consideration
(including expenses) of HK$44.2 million. Details regarding share capital
are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other than the bonds, secured instalment loans or borrowings repayable
over one year — as shown in Notes 43 and 35 to the consolidated
financial statements — the Group’s bank and other borrowings and
loans due to fellow subsidiaries were on a short-term basis and in HK
dollars and Renminbi as of 31 December 2011. They were charged

at floating interest rates. There are no known seasonal factors in the
Group’s borrowing profiles.

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure to cater for
its present and potential investment activities and recurring operating
activities, which means it is subject to some exchange rate exposure.
The Group closely monitors the risks that this strategy involves.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Jointly Controlled Entities

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entities during the year.

Segment Information

Detailed segment information in respect of the revenue and profit or
loss is shown in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Charges on Group Assets

Listed shares held by the Group with an aggregate value of HK$125.9
million were pledged for bank loans and overdrafts. Properties of the
Group with a total book value of HK$668.9 million were pledged by
subsidiaries to banks for instalment loans granted to them with a total
outstanding balance of HK$146.1 million as at 31 December 2011.

Contingent Liabilities

Details regarding the contingent liabilities are set out in Note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's headcount stood at 3,541
(including Investment Consultants), representing an approximate

increase of 39.4% as compared with 31 December 2010. The bulk of
the increase stemmed from UAF's business expansion in Mainland China
(including the opening of 22 branches in Mainland China in 2011). Staff

costs (including Directors’ emoluments), contributions to retirement
benefit schemes and expenses recognised for the EOS amounted to
approximately HK$653.8 million (2010: HK$488.8 million).

The Group operates different compensation schemes to reflect different
job roles within the organisation. For sales staff and investment
consultants, the package may consist of a base pay and commission/
bonus/incentive or alternatively, may consist of commission/incentive.
For non-sales staff, the compensation comprises either a base salary
with discretionary bonus/share-based incentive or base salary, as
appropriate.

Under the EOS, which was formally adopted on 18 December 2007,
selected employees or directors of the Group (the “Selected Grantees”)
were awarded shares of the Company. Following management’s
recommendation, a total of 1,803,000 shares were granted to the
Selected Grantees from April 2011 to November 2011, subject to

various terms including, amongst other things, the vesting scale whereby
awarded shares will vest and become unrestricted over a three-year
period. As at 31 December 2011, the outstanding awarded shares under
the EOS (excluding shares awarded, but subsequently forfeited) amounted
to 2,735,000, out of which 341,000 shares were awarded to Directors.

The Group is committed to developing our people through talent
development initiatives, upgrading skills and expertise of our people for
the achievement of personal career goals and business results. In addition,
a wide range of quality in-house training and development programmes
are conducted with frontline sales and back office staff to enhance
people development and promote staff retention.
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LITIGATION

(a)

On 14 October 2008, a writ of summons was issued by Sun Hung
Kai Investment Services Limited (“SHKIS”) in the High Court of
Hong Kong against Quality Prince Limited, Allglobe Holdings
Limited, the Personal Representative of the Estate of Lam Sai

Wing, Chan Yam Fai Jane (“Ms. Chan"”) and Ng Yee Mei (“Ms.
Ng"“), seeking recovery of (a) the sum of HK$50,932,876.64; (b)
interest; () legal costs; and (d) further and/or other relief. Having
sold collateral for the partial recovery of the amounts owing, SHKIS
filed a Statement of Claim in the High Court of Hong Kong on

24 October 2008 claiming (a) the sum of HK$36,030,376.64; (b)
interest; (c) legal costs; and (d) further and/or other relief. Summary
judgment against all the defendants was granted by Master C Chan
on 25 May 2009, but judgment with respect to Ms. Chan and Ms.
Ng only was overturned on appeal by the judgment of Suffiad J
dated 7 August 2009. SHKIS' appeal of that judgment to the Court
of Appeal was heard on 6 May 2010, and was dismissed. The trial
will be heard on a date to be fixed.

Details of proceedings relating to Chang Zhou Power Development
Company Limited, a Mainland PRC joint venture, are set out in
Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT OF RISKS

Strong Risk Management Awareness

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework.

Risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and

updated to react to changes of market conditions and the Group'’s

business strategy. The Risk Management Committee (“RMC"), a

standing committee reporting to the Board of Directors, supervises and

scrutinises risk-related policies necessary for monitoring and controlling

of the major risks, spelt out here, arising from the Group's business

activities, external changing risks and regulatory environment.
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Financial Risk Management

The Group’s financial risk management covers the areas of market risk
(defined as risk that affects the value of our portfolio and comprises

of equity, interest rate and foreign exchange risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. These are further discussed and outlined in Note 56 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Operational Risk Management

Operational risk is defined as the risk of losses resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or from
external events. The Group extends operational risk to cover potential
losses arising from legal and compliance breaches. Operational risk is
reduced and controlled through establishing robust internal controls,
clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and effective
internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate culture
that the business and operating line management are fully aware of
and responsible for managing operational risks of their business units
on a day-to-day basis. There are monitoring and reviews conducted
by Compliance and Internal Audit which act independently and report
regularly to the Group’s senior management and, as appropriate, the
Audit Committee of the Board.

Reputational Risk Management

Reputational risk is the risk related to the trustworthiness of a business.
Loss of trust can result in declines in the customer base, revenue
erosion, costly litigation and destruction of shareholder value and
damage to the Company’s reputation as a whole. The Group manages
reputational risks through sound corporate governance practices.
Group employees and sales personnel are provided with comprehensive
training; operating procedures manuals are regularly updated; and the
responsibilities and duties of staff are properly segregated. The internal
control functions report directly to the Group Chief Financial Officer
who in turn reports to the Group Executive Chairman, and the Audit
Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Back row (from left to right): ~ William Leung Wing Cheung, David Craig Bartlett, Goh Joo Chuan, Leung Pak To,
Joseph Tong Tang, Peter Anthony Curry

Front row (from left to right): Ho Chi Kit, Peter Wong Man Kong, Lee Seng Huang, Carlisle Caldow Procter,
Alan Stephen Jones

Ming Cheng and Roy Kuan are also Board members.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lee Seng Huang, aged 37, was appointed as an
Executive Director and has been the Group’s Executive
Chairman of the Company since 1 January 2007. He
was educated at the University of Sydney in Australia
and has wide ranging financial services and real estate
investment experience in the Asian region. He has
previously served, in various capacities, on the board of
directors of Lippo Limited and Lippo China Resources
Limited in Hong Kong, Auric Pacific Group Limited in
Singapore as well as the Export and Industry Bank,

Inc. in the Philippines. He is currently the executive
chairman of Mulpha International Berhad (a Malaysian
listed conglomerate with operations in Southeast

Asia, Australia and Mainland China) as well as Mulpha
Australia Limited, and the non-executive chairman of
FKP Property Group, a leading property developer listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX"). He is
also a non-executive director of Ambrian Capital PLC,
a company listed on the Alternative Investment Market
of the London Stock Exchange and non-executive
director of Mudajaya Group Berhad, a company listed
on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. Mr. Lee is

a trustee of Lee and Lee Trust, a discretionary trust
owning a controlling interest in the issued share
capital of Allied Group Limited (“AGL"), a holding
company of the Company, through its interest in Allied
Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL"). Both AGL and APL
are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

William Leung Wing Cheung, 88s, jp, aged 57, was
appointed an Executive Director of the Company on
26 March 2012. He was appointed as Group Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Chief
Executive Officer of Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited
on 1 January 2012. Mr. Leung has over 30 years

of experience in the banking and financial services
industry. He joined Hang Seng Bank Limited ("HS
Bank”) in 1994 as Assistant General Manager and

Head of Credit Card Centre until his resignation in
August 2011 with HS Bank as Executive Director and
Head of Personal Banking. Prior to joining HS Bank,
he had worked with American Express International
Inc., Standard Chartered Bank in Hong Kong, Visa
International and MasterCard International in Sydney.
He was also a non-executive director of HSBC China
Dragon Fund until his resignation in August 2011.
Mr. Leung was educated at the Hong Kong Baptist
University and obtained a Diploma of Arts in English
Language and Literature in 1978. He was appointed
Justice of the Peace in July 2005 and honoured with
a Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR") Government in July
2009. Mr. Leung also holds directorships in various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Joseph Tong Tang, aged 52, was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company on 4 December
2003 and was the Group Chief Operating Officer of
the Company from 1 December 2004 to 31 December
2006. Mr. Tong is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of the Capital Markets and Institutional
Brokerage. He has over 27 years of experience in the
financial services industry, and previously held senior
positions with a number of international banks and
financial institutions, including ABN AMRO Bank,

CCIC Finance Limited, Bain & Co. Securities Limited
and Bali International Finance Limited. Mr. Tong

has a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tong is also
an Independent Director of Jih Sun Financial Holding
Co., Ltd (and two of its subsidiaries), the shares of
which are listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market
(GTSM) in Taiwan. Mr. Tong also holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company.
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Peter Anthony Curry, aged 59, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 1 January 2011.
He joined the Company as the Group Chief Financial
Officer in November 2010. He graduated from the
University of New South Wales with a Bachelor Degree
of Commerce in 1974 and a Bachelor Degree of Laws in
1976. He became a chartered accountant and a barrister
(non-practising) in Australia in 1978. He was elected as a
Fellow of The Institute of Directors in Australia in 1989.
In 2002, he completed the PS 146 Compliance Program
organised by Securities Institute in Australia. Mr. Curry
has over 36 years of business experience. He joined Peat
Marwick Mitchell (now known as KPMG) in Australia

in 1974 upon graduation and worked as Tax Partner in
1983. Since that time he has worked in different listed
and unlisted companies in Australia as executive director/
managing director specialising in natural resources,
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions etc. Since
1995 Mr. Curry has been a director and shareholder

in a corporate advisory firm which holds an Australian
Financial Services licence. He has been involved in a
range of public and private capital raisings, initial public
offering related services and providing corporate and
financial advisory services in relation to a range of
business transactions including a wide range of mining
projects. Mr. Curry is currently a non-executive director of
Ormil Energy Limited and an alternate director of Mount
Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount Gibson”), both of which
are listed on the ASX, and also a non-executive director
of APAC Resources Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was previously also a non-executive
director of Forest Enterprises Australia Limited which was
removed from official listing on ASX in August 2010. Mr.
Curry also holds directorships in various subsidiaries of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Goh Joo Chuan, aged 51, was appointed a Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 19 November
2009. Mr. Goh graduated from the University of
Chicago where he obtained his Bachelor of Arts with
Honors and Master of Arts in International Finance. Mr.
Goh joined the Dubai Group as its Chief Investment
Officer in November 2008 and is now head of Treasury
for Dubai Holdings. As at the date of this report,
Dubai Ventures L.L.C (“Dubai Ventures”) and Dubai
Ventures Group Limited (“DVGL"), both subsidiaries

of the Dubai Group, together own approximately
7.84% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr.
Goh has over 27 years of experience in several major
areas of the banking industry, including management
of financial institutions, consumer banking, Islamic
banking, treasury management, risk management,
e-commerce, structuring, sales, distribution and
trading, change management and private equity work.
He was key to managing Citibank’s Asian exposure
during the Asian Crisis. Prior to joining the Dubai
Group, Mr. Goh was the director of Treasury for
Guangdong Development Bank, China. Mr. Goh has
served with several leading regional and international
institutions including the Saudi American Bank and
Samba Group in Riyadh, Citibank, Chase Manhattan
Bank and The Monetary Authority of Singapore. Mr.
Goh is currently on the board of Oman National
Investment Corporation Holding, a company listed on
the Muscat SM Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange. He is
also a director of Dubai Ventures Group Sdn. Bhd.,
Sino Emirates Chemicals Ltd and Tael One Partners Ltd.

Leung Pak To, aged 57, was appointed a Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 13 July 2010.
He has over 30 years of experience in investment
banking, in particular, the field of corporate finance
involving capital raising, mergers and acquisitions,
corporate restructuring and reorganisation, investments
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and other general finance advisory activities in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Leung is currently a
Managing Partner and the Chairman (Greater China)
of CVC Asia Pacific Ltd (“CVC AP"), the adviser to the
investment funds which ultimately own Asia Financial
Services Company Limited (“AFSCL"). As at the date
of this report, AFSCL holds 341,600,000 shares of

the Company and HK$427,000,000 in face value of
warrants exercisable to subscribe for shares of the
Company (the “Warrants”). Mr. Leung is the Chairman
of Luminary Capital Limited, a non-executive director
and the Chairman of Imagi International Holdings
Limited and an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, both are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung was a non-executive
director of Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Ltd.
(“Zhuhai Zhongfu”), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, from 8 November 2007 to 28 April
2010. During June 2001 and July 2006, Mr. Leung was
Chairman of Citigroup Global Markets in Asia. Prior to
Citigroup, he was Chief Executive and Vice Chairman
of BNP Paribas Peregrine Ltd. Mr. Leung holds an MBA
and an undergraduate degree from the University of
Toronto in Canada.

Ming Cheng, aged 43, was appointed a Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 27 July 2009. Mr. Ming

is currently a director of Goldlex Limited. Effective
April 2009, Mr. Ming is the managing director

of Primus Financial Holdings Limited with overall
management responsibility for all financial functions

of this asset management company. From February
2004 to 2009, he was the chief financial officer of
Paragon International Inc. which runs 20 hotels located
throughout the USA and has a real estate investment
portfolio. Prior to that, Mr. Ming served in a number of
commercial enterprises including Aster Gem & Jewelry,
ONDA Technologies Inc. and Guangzhou Foreign
Capital Enterprises Material Import & Export Company.

Mr. Ming received a Master’s of Science, with honors,
from South of China Normal University in Guangzhou,
the PRC in 1993.

Roy Kuan, aged 45, was appointed an alternate to
Mr. Ho Chi Kit on 13 July 2010 and re-designated as a
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 1 January
2011. He is a Managing Partner and Head of Asia of
CVC AP. As at the date of this report, AFSCL holds
341,600,000 shares of the Company and the Warrants.
Mr. Kuan has worked at CVC AP and its predecessor
firms since 1996. Over that period, he has completed
or signed 27 investments in Greater China, Korea,
Japan, and Southeast Asia. He served on the board of
directors in 17 of these companies. Mr. Kuan holds a
BA from Georgetown University and an MBA from the
Wharton School University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Kuan
was a director of Zhuhai Zhongfu from 8 November
2007 to 20 October 2008. Since 1 April 2010, Mr.
Kuan had served as a Commissioner of PT Matahari
Department Stores Tbk in Indonesia.

Ho Chi Kit, aged 49, was appointed a Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 13 July 2010 and re-
designated as an Alternate Director to Mr. Roy Kuan
on 1 January 2011. He is a Partner of CVC AP. As

at the date of this report, AFSCL holds 341,600,000
shares of the Company and the Warrants. Mr. Ho
holds a B.S. (Honours) in Computer Science from

the University of Manitoba and an MBA from the
University of British Columbia. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst. Mr. Ho has been with CVC AP since
1999 and is currently responsible for CVC Capital
Partners’ investment activities in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Prior to CVC AP, Mr. Ho was an
investment director of Citicorp Everbright China Fund
where he actively led the fund'’s investments in China.
Prior to that, he was the associate investment director
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of Citicorp Capital Asia Limited and assisted in building
a regional investment portfolio for Citicorp in Asia. He
was previously a non-executive director of Hung Hing
Printing Group Limited until August 2011. Mr. Ho is
currently the vice chairman of Zhuhai Zhongfu. He is
also a director of two of the Group's subsidiaries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

David Craig Bartlett, aged 46, was appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 26 November 1999. Mr. Bartlett graduated with
honours in law from Exeter University in the United
Kingdom in 1988 and subsequently qualified as a
solicitor in England & Wales, The Republic of Ireland
and the HKSAR. A former partner of the international
law firm Clyde & Co., he regularly acted for and
advised the Company and its subsidiaries before
leaving private practice for a career in industry. Now
based primarily in Europe, he is also an independent
non-executive director of both AGL and APL, holding
companies of the Company.

Alan Stephen Jones, aged 69, was appointed

an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 3 January 2006. Mr. Jones, a chartered
accountant, has extensive experience in management,
administration, accounting, property development,
carpark management, finance and trading, and has
been involved in successful mergers and acquisitions

of a number of public companies in Australia and
internationally. He is also an independent non-executive
director of each of AGL and APL, the holding companies
of the Company, and the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Jones is also a non-executive
director of Mount Gibson and a non-executive chairman
of Air Change International Limited (formerly known as
IFC Capital Limited), both are listed on the ASX, as well
as a non-executive director of Mulpha Australia Limited.
He was previously an independent non-executive
director of APAC Resources Limited.

Carlisle Caldow Procter, aged 71, was appointed

an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 30 September 2004. Mr. Procter
graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia
with a Bachelor’'s Degree and a Master’s Degree in
Economics. He is a Fellow of the Financial Services
Institute of Australasia (FFin.). Based in Australia, Mr.
Procter worked at the Reserve Bank of Australia for
over 30 years, holding various senior management
positions. Since leaving the Bank, he has worked as a
consultant to the International Monetary Fund (IMF)
and the Asian Development Bank (ADB), and has also
undertaken private consulting work in the Philippines,
Indonesia and Papua New Guinea in the areas of bank
supervision, anti-money laundering and corporate
governance respectively. Mr. Procter is currently a non-
executive director of Bank South Pacific Limited, a
company listed on the Port Moresby Stock Exchange, a
non-executive director of Tanami Gold NL, a company
listed on the ASX, and an independent non-executive
director of Allied Overseas Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Peter Wong Man Kong, ggs, jp, aged 63, was
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 30 May 2001. Mr. Wong graduated
from the University of California at Berkeley, U.S.A.
with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical
Engineering (Naval Architecture). He is the chairman
of M.K. Corporation Limited and North West
Development Limited. He is also a non-executive
director of Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company
Limited and New Times Energy Corporation Limited,
an independent non-executive director of China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited, Far

East Consortium International Limited, Glorious Sun
Enterprises Limited, Chinney Investments, Limited and
Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, all being companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is a Deputy of
the 11th National People’s Congress of the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Akihiro Nagahara, aged 71, is the Managing Director
and CEO of United Asia Finance Limited and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a

law degree from the National Taiwan University and a
Master’'s Degree from the Graduate School in Law of
the National Hitotsubashi University of Japan, where
he also completed his doctorate courses. He is an
acknowledged expert in the consumer finance business
in Hong Kong and is credited with the successful
establishment of Public Finance Limited (formerly
known as JCG Finance Company, Limited). He is also
the Chairman of The Hong Kong S.A.R. Licensed
Money Lenders Association Limited, a position he has
held since its establishment in 1999, which is the only
industry representative association of licensed money
lenders in Hong Kong.

Leung Tung Yip, aged 56, joined the Group in
December 2010. Mr. Leung is the Chief Financial
Officer of Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He
has worked in senior finance roles for more than 20
years in Hong Kong and Australia. Prior to joining the
Group, he was the Chief Financial Officer, Greater
China of the Royal Bank of Scotland, Hong Kong
Branch and has worked at Indosuez W | Carr Securities
Limited, Smith New Court (Far East) Limited, Merrill
Lynch (Australia) Pty Limited. Mr. Leung graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
Degree of Social Sciences and is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales.
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Kevin Tai Yiu Kuen, aged 45, joined the Group

in July 2000. Mr. Tai has held a number of senior
positions across various business functions within the
Group and is presently the Chief Operating Officer,
Wealth Management & Brokerage and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He has more than
20 years’ experience in the financial services industry.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tai was Head of
Settlement at CLSA Limited. Before that, Mr. Tai was
Vice President of Regional Middle Office for Global
Equities at J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited.

Rizal Wijono, aged 42, joined the Group in June
2008. Mr. Wijono is the Managing Director of SHK
Fund Management Limited (“SHKFM") and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He carries

full management responsibility for SHKFM's asset
management business. Mr. Wijono has over 18

years' experience in the financial services industry

in Asia. Prior to joining the Group, he was Regional
Director — Head of Product Strategy and Services

at Deutsche Asset Management Asia Pacific Ltd.

in Singapore. Before that he spent nine years with
ING Investment Management Asia Pacific (HK) Ltd.
("ING") in a variety of positions with exposure to
product development, wholesale, and institutional
sales, business management and establishing ING's
investment management businesses across ten
countries in Asia. In his last role, he was a member of
ING's Executive Committee responsible for wholesale
sales and business development across Asia. Before
ING, he was the Head of Private Banking for Dharmala
Investment Management Services Ltd and helped
Belgian Bank set up a Euro-desk for its international
client base. Mr. Wijono is proficient in six languages
which include Dutch, French, German, English, Bahasa
and Chinese Putonghua. Mr. Wijono is a graduate of
the University of Antwerp (Belgium) with a Bachelor
Degree in Applied Business Economics and holds a
Management Degree (equivalent to an MBA) from the
Xavier Institute of Management, India.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high THE BOARD

standard of corporate governance within a sensible The Board currently comprises 12 members, with four

framework, with an emphasis on the principles of Executive Directors, four Non-Executive Directors (and

Integrity, transparency, accountability and equity. one Alternate Director) and four Independent Non-

The Board of Directors believes that good corporate Executive Directors (“INEDs"):

governance is essential to the success of the Company
and to the enhancement of shareholder value.

Executive Lee Seng Huang
CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Directors: (Group Executive Chairman)
PRACTICES William Leung Wing Cheung

(appointed on 26 March 2012)

In the light of the Code on Corporate Governance Joseph Tong Tang

Practices (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14

Peter Anthony Curry
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the

Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, the Board has Non-Executive Goh Joo Chuan

reviewed the corporate governance practices of the Directors: Leung Pak To

Company. Ming Cheng
Roy Kuan

The Company has applied the principles of, and Ho Chi Kit (alternate to Roy Kuan)

complied with, the applicable code provisions of the

CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December Independent David Craig Bartlett

2011, except for certain deviations as specified. The Non-Executive Alan Stephen Jones

reasons for such deviations are explained below. . .
P Directors: Carlisle Caldow Procter

Peter Wong Man Kong
The Board reviews its current corporate governance

ractices at least annually, and makes appropriate . . ) . .
P i . y pprop The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
changes if considered necessary. , , . .

out in the Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

on pages 30 to 36.
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During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (four of
whom were independent) provided the Group with a
wide range of expertise and experience. Their active
participation in the Board and Committee meetings
brought independent judgment on issues relating to
the Group's strategy, performance and management
process, at the same time taking into account the
interests of all shareholders.

Throughout the year, and up to the date of this report,
the Company has four INEDs representing one-third of
the Board. Two of the four INEDs have the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise specified under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence
and considers that all the INEDs are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, in addition to meetings
for reviewing and approving the Group’s annual and
interim results and other ad hoc matters which need
to be dealt with by the Board. The chief financial
officer and other relevant senior executives are invited
to attend Board meetings to make presentations and
answer the Board'’s enquiries.

During the year, six Board meetings were held and the
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is
set out as follows:

Number of
Board meetings
attended/held

Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Huang 6/6
Joseph Tong Tang 6/6
Peter Anthony Curry 6/6

Non-Executive Directors:

Goh Joh Chuan 6/6
Leung Pak To 5/6
Ming Cheng 2/6
Roy Kuan 6/6
Ho Chi Kit (alternate to Roy Kuan) 2*/6
Patrick Lee Seng Wei

(resigned on 30 September 2011) 2/5%*
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
David Craig Bartlett 5/6
Alan Stephen Jones 6/6
Carlisle Caldow Procter 6/6
Peter Wong Man Kong 4/6

* Mr. Ho Chi Kit attended the meetings as observer
*x Only five Board meetings were held prior to the resignation of Mr. Patrick
Lee Seng Wei
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The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy,
annual operating budget, annual and interim financial
results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment, material contracts and transactions as
well as other significant policy and financial matters.
The Board has delegated the daily operation and
administration matters to the executive management
under the instruction/supervision of the Executive
Committee which has its specific written terms of
reference. The respective functions of the Board and
management of the Company have been formalised
and set out in writing. The Board reviews these
procedures from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings of each year are scheduled in
advance to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors.
Normally meeting notice of at least 14 days is given

so as to allow time for all Directors to list items on the
agenda for discussions. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings,
and ensures all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least
three days prior to the proposed Board meeting (and
as soon as practicable for other Board meetings). Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comments before being tabled at
the following Board meeting for approval. Minutes

of meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

According to current Board practice, if a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in
which it is determined to be material by the Board, the
matter cannot be dealt with by a written resolution

of the Board but must be dealt with by the Board

at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles of
Association of the Company (“Articles”) stipulate that
save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director
shall abstain from voting and not be counted in the
guorum on any resolution of the Board approving any
contract or arrangement in which such Director or any
of his associate(s) has a material interest. The Board
will also follow rules stipulated in the Listing Rules in
this regard.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board
papers and related materials and has access to

the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Board and each Director also have separate

and independent access to the Company’s senior
management. Directors will be updated timely

on major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices. In addition, a written procedure has been
established since June 2005 to enable the Directors,
in the discharge of their duties, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
("CEQ") should be separate and performed by different
individuals. Under the current organisational structure
of the Company, the functions of a CEO are performed
by the Group Executive Chairman, Mr. Lee Seng
Huang, in conjunction with the other three Executive
Directors, Mr. Joseph Tong Tang, Mr. Peter Anthony
Curry and Mr. William Leung Wing Cheung. The Group
Executive Chairman oversees the Group’s principal
investments, as well as the Group’s interest in UAF
whose day-to-day management lies with its designated
Managing Director. Mr. Joseph Tong acts as the CEO
of Capital Markets and Institutional Brokerage and Mr.
Peter Curry oversees the management of the corporate
administrative functions, including finance and budget,
internal audit, compliance and risk management. Mr.
William Leung leads the overall business of Sun Hung
Kai Financial Limited.

The Board believes that this structure spreads the
workload that would otherwise be borne by an
individual CEO, allowing the growing businesses of
the Group to be overseen by appropriately qualified
and experienced senior executives in those fields.
Furthermore, it enhances communications and speeds
up decision-making processes across the Company. The
Board also considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board

and management of the Company. An appropriate
balance can be maintained by the operation of the
Board, which holds at least four regular meetings a
year to discuss the business and operational issues of
the Group.

The Group Executive Chairman is responsible for

the leadership of the Board, ensuring all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely and constructive manner; all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings,
and that the Directors receive in a timely manner,
adequate information is accurate, clear, complete and
reliable.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted

a written nomination procedure (the “Nomination
Procedure”) specifying the process and criteria for
the selection and recommendation of candidates

for directorships of the Company. The Chairman of
the Board shall, based on those criteria as set out

in the Nomination Procedure (including appropriate
experience, personal skills and time commitment,
among others), identify and recommend the proposed
candidate to the Board for approval. The Nomination
Procedure also provides for the filling of a vacancy for
the Chairman of the Board, where a recommendation
of the proposed candidate shall be made by the
Executive Committee.
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New Directors, upon appointment, will be given

an induction package containing all key applicable
regulations and Listing Rules requirements, as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be
observed by a Director. The package will also include
the latest published financial reports of the Company
and the documentation for the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefings as necessary
to give the new Directors more detailed information
on the Group’s businesses and activities. Directors will
be continuously updated on any major developments
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the
Company were appointed for a specific term, and are
subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles or
any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall
vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-
election. All Non-Executive Directors have been re-
appointed for two years from 1 January 2011.

According to the Articles, any Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the Company’s
next following general meeting and shall be eligible
for re-election. Any Director appointed as an addition
to the Board shall also hold office only until the next
following Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Further, at each AGM of the Company, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or such
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation. Every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Executive Committee are all long established. Each

of the Committees has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of the Committees, which are kept by

the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board
members, and the Committees are required to

report back to the Board on their decisions and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned
above, have been adopted for Committee meetings so
far as practicable.

In January 2007, the Board established the Risk
Management Committee with specific written terms
of reference. Copies of all minutes of meetings of
and resolutions passed by the Risk Management
Committee, which will be kept by the secretary of the
Committee, are presented to the Board at its regular
meetings. The Committee reports to the Board any
material incidents or developments impacting on risk
or internal control and the corresponding actions
taken.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established
since April 1985 and currently consists of four INEDs
and one Non-Executive Director, including Messrs.
Peter Wong Man Kong (Chairman of the Committee),
David Craig Bartlett, Alan Stephen Jones, Carlisle
Caldow Procter and Roy Kuan (with Ho Chi Kit as his
alternate). The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties

and, when necessary, has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s

policy.
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Major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

to review and recommend to the Board the
remuneration policy and packages of the Directors
and, where appropriate, to consult the Chairman
about the Committee’s proposals relating to the
remuneration of other Executive Directors;

to review and recommend performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives approved by the Board from time to
time;

to review and recommend the compensation
payable to Executive Directors relating to any loss
or termination of their office or appointment;

to review and recommend compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee of the Company are in line with the
code provisions B.1.3 of the CG Code, but with a
deviation from the code provision of the Remuneration

Committee’s responsibilities to determine the specific

remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and

senior management of a listed company. The Board
considers that the Remuneration Committee of the
Company should review (as opposed to determine

under the code provision) and make recommendations

to the Board on the remuneration packages of

Executive Directors only and not senior management

for the following reasons:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the Board believes that the Remuneration
Committee is not in a proper position to evaluate
the performance of senior executives and that this
evaluation process is more effectively carried out
by the Executive Directors;

a majority of the Remuneration Committee
members are INEDs who come from different
professions and backgrounds, and they are not
involved in the daily operation of the Company.
They may have little direct knowledge of industry
practice and standard compensation packages.
The Remuneration Committee is thus not in a
position to properly determine the remuneration
of the Executive Directors;

the Executive Directors must be in a position
to supervise and control senior management
and thus must be able to determine their
compensation; and

there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay
senior management more than industry standards
and thus shareholders will benefit by reducing
costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee is available on the website of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
a year in accordance with its Terms of Reference.

One Committee meeting was held in 2011 and the
attendance of each member at the meeting is set out
as follows:

Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

Committee members:

Peter Wong Man Kong (Chairman) 11
David Craig Bartlett 11
Alan Stephen Jones 171
Carlisle Caldow Procter 171
Roy Kuan 11
Ho Chi Kit (alternate to Roy Kuan) N/A

In 2011, the Remuneration Committee performed work
as summarised below:

(i) reviewed the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors;

(ii) reviewed the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and recommended an increase
in the monthly salary of Mr. Lee Seng Huang and
Mr. Joseph Tong commencing from the year 2011
for the Board’s approval; and

(iii) reviewed and recommended the Executive
Directors’ bonuses for the year ended 31
December 2010 for the Board’s approval; and

(iv) reviewed the remuneration of all Directors
(including the INEDs) and consultancy fees of
the INEDs and recommended to the Board of
an increase to the consultancy fee of INEDs
commencing from the year 2011.

Each Director will be entitled to a fee which is to

be proposed for shareholders’ approval at the AGM
of the Company. Further remuneration payable to
Directors (including any consultancy fees to the

INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services
will be determined according to their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts
or service contracts as approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. Details
of the Group’s staff remuneration policy are also set
out in the “Human Resources and Training” section in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on page 27.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a Committee
Meeting was held to review the policy and structure

of the Directors’ remuneration; the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors; and consultancy
fees of the INEDs. The Committee recommended to the
Board of (i) the payment of the following discretionary
bonuses for the year 2011 to the three Executive
Directors:

—  HK$8,250,000 in cash to Mr. Lee Seng Huang;

—  HK$2,250,000 in cash and such number of shares
of the Company to be awarded under the EOS
equivalent of HK$1,500,000 to Mr. Joseph Tong
Tang; and

-  HK$2,250,000 in cash and such number of shares
of the Company to be awarded under the EOS
equivalent to HK$1,500,000 to Mr. Peter Anthony
Curry;

(ii) an increase of 2.5% to the monthly salary of the
above three Executive Directors commencing from
the year 2012; and (iii) an increase of around 3% to
the consultancy fee of INEDs commencing from the
year 2012. The Board subsequently approved these
recommendations put forward by the Remuneration
Committee.
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For the purpose of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
amount for the monthly rental-related expenses which
form part of the emoluments of Mr. Lee Seng Huang
and are varying in nature have changed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since
April 1985 and currently consists of four INEDs and
one Non-Executive Director. To retain independence
and objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by

an INED who possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The current members of the
Audit Committee are Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones
(Chairman of the Committee), David Craig Bartlett,
Carlisle Caldow Procter, Peter Wong Man Kong and
Roy Kuan (with Ho Chi Kit as his alternate). The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy
when necessary.

Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i) to consider and recommend to the Board the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
address any questions of resignation or dismissal
of such auditor;

(i) to consider and discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of each year’s audit;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

(iv) to review the interim and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board,;

(v) to discuss any problems and reservations arising
from the interim review and final audit, and any
other matters the external auditor may wish to
discuss;

(vi) to review the external auditor’'s management
letters and management’s response;

(vii) to review the Group's financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems;

(viii) to review the internal audit plan, promote co-
ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and review whether the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group; and

(ix) to consider any matters arising from internal
audit’s investigations and management’s
responses.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the
Company is revised from time to time to comply with
the code provisions, in particular code C.3.3 of the
CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision
regarding the Audit Committee’s responsibilities to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure that management has discharged its duty
to have an effective internal control system;

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and
external auditors; and

(iv) ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the listed company.
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The Board considers that:

(i) the Audit Committee of the Company should
recommend (as opposed to implement) the
policy on the engagement of the external auditor
to supply non-audit services for the following
reasons:

— it is more proper and appropriate for the
Board and its Committees to develop policy
and make appropriate recommendations;

—  the proper and appropriate mechanism
for implementation of such policy and
recommendations is through the Executive
Directors and management; and

— INEDs are not in an effective position to
implement policy and follow up the same on
a day-to-day basis.

(i) the Audit Committee only possesses the effective
ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure)
whether management has discharged its duty
to have an effective internal control system. The
Committee is not equipped to ensure that the
same is in place, as this would involve day-to-day
supervision and the employment of permanent
experts.

(iii) the Audit Committee is not in a position to ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, but it can promote the same.

(iv) the Committee cannot ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced but it
can review whether it is adequately resourced,
and recommend the correction of any identified
deficiency.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least three times a
year in accordance with its terms of reference. Three
meetings were held in 2011 and the attendance of
each member at these meetings is set out as follows:

Number of
Committee
meetings
attended/held

Committee members:

Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman) 3/3
David Craig Bartlett 3/3
Carlisle Caldow Procter 3/3
Peter Wong Man Kong 3/3
Roy Kuan 3/3
Ho Chi Kit (alternate to Roy Kuan) N/A

Apart from Committee meetings, the Audit Committee
would also deal with matters by way of circulation,
when necessary. In 2011, the Audit Committee
performed the work as summarised below:

(i) considered and approved the terms of
engagement and fees proposed by the external
auditor regarding the final audit of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the
interim review for the six months ended 30 June
2011;

(ii) reviewed the reports from the external auditor,
management representation letters and
management’s responses in relation to the
final audit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 and for the interim review for the
six months ended 30 June 2011;
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(iii) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended
31 December 2010 and for the six months ended
30 June 2011 and recommended the same for the
Board'’s approval;

(iv) reviewed the progress of the implementation

of recommendations for improvements in the

internal control system of the Group made by

an external consultant on a business division

of the Group and reviewed the risk assessment

performed by the Risk Management Committee

for the year ended 31 December 2010;

reviewed the audit planning memorandum for the
year ended 31 December 2011 submitted by the
Internal Audit Department; and

(vi) reviewed the lists of audit reports issued by the
Internal Audit Department and discussed the risk
and internal control issues of the Group.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established

since November 1983 and currently consists of four
Executive Directors, being Messrs. Lee Seng Huang
(Chairman of the Committee), William Leung Wing
Cheung, Joseph Tong Tang and Peter Anthony Curry.
The Executive Committee is vested with all the general
powers of management and control of the activities of
the Group, save for those matters which are reserved
for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the
written terms of reference of the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee is mainly responsible

for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day
management of the Company, and is empowered,
subject to the general policies adopted by the Board:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for
the business activities, internal control and
administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted

for the business activities of the Group.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee (“"RMC" or the
“Committee”) was established in January 2007, and
currently consists of four Executive Directors, being
Messrs. Lee Seng Huang (Chairman of the Committee),
Joseph Tong Tang (Alternate Chairman of the
Committee), William Leung Wing Cheung (appointed
on 22 March 2012) and Peter Anthony Curry, one
Non-Executive Director being Mr. Roy Kuan (with Ho
Chi Kit as his alternate) and three other members from
the Company’s management.

The major roles and functions of the RMC are:

(i) to analyse and define risks likely to be
encountered by the Group in the various aspects
of its operation;

(i) to ensure through appropriate mechanisms

including committee(s) and divisional/department

heads, where applicable, the review, assessment,
recording and monitoring of the various risks
which may be encountered by the Group and the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
controls, including but without limiting the
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions;
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(iii) to act as a provider of assurance (in conjunction
with the Group’s Internal Audit and Compliance
departments and the Group’s external auditor) to
the Board in its annual review of:

(a) the changes in the nature and extent of
significant risks likely to be encountered
by the Group since the last annual review,
and the Group’s ability to respond to such
changes in its business activities and external
environment;

(b) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and system of
internal controls;

(c) the adequacy of the extent, and frequency
of the communication relating to results of
monitoring to the Board such that both the
Board and the Audit Committee are able

(e) the effectiveness of the Group’s processes
relating to financial reporting and Listing
Rules compliance; and

(f) all other relevant issues appropriate to risk
identification and management and internal
control issues.

The terms of reference of the RMC was adopted by
the Board in January 2006 and several updates had
been made on the same since then.

The RMC meets quarterly, unless as otherwise directed
by the Chairman of the RMC. Throughout the financial
year of 2011, a total of four meetings were held. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
RMC meetings
attended/held

to develop a cumulative assessment of the
state of control undertaken across the Group ~ Committee members:

and the effectiveness in which risk is being Lee Seng Huang (Chairman) 4/4
managed; Joseph Tong Tang (Alternate Chairman) 4/4
Thomas Bennington Hulme 3/4

(d) any major incident that poses substantial risk Kevin Tai Yiu Kuen 4/4
and/or loss exposure to the Group, whether Roy Kuan 2°/4
actual loss is incurred or not; in the event Ho Chi Kit (alternate to Roy Kuan) 2/4

of likely or actual violations of the Code of Peter Anthony Curry 4/4
Conduct or applicable laws, regulations, Leung Tung Yip 4/4
regulatory guidelines/codes; significant Tony Leung King Yuen 3/4

internal policy, operational or technological (resigned on 31 October 2011)

failures; and any other significant events
* One of these Committee meetings was attended by a representative duly

that may expose the Group to substantial appointed by Mr. Roy Kuan,

reputational risk;
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During the financial year of 2011, the RMC performed
and monitored the followings:

(i) Review and update the terms of reference of
RMC.

(i) Command an Independent Internal Control
Review by a major professional firm to enhance
and improve securities business controls;

(iii) Review the legal and compliance issues and
requirements arising from businesses activities and
regulatory issues;

(iv) Determine the feasible market risk monitoring and
reporting approaches;

(v) Controlling and reviewing the annual
Responsibility Statement regarding Risk,
Compliance and Internal Control Procedures for
the Financial Year ended 31 December 2010; and

(vi) Review and regular update important risk
mitigating measures and controlling parameters
e.g. Business Continuity Plan, Risk Limits.

CODES FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specified enquiries being made
by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code.

To comply with the code provision A.5.4 of the CG
Code, the Company has also adopted the Model
Code, to regulate dealings in the securities of the
Company by certain employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information
in relation to the Company or its securities.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing, with support from the Finance Department,
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which
also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
have been complied with. The Directors believe that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
ensured the financial statements are prepared on a
“going concern” basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s
external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
("Deloitte”), are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 128 and 129.
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External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor,
Deloitte, is set out as follows:

Fees paid
HK$ million

Services rendered for the Group
Audit services 6.7
Non-audit services (taxation and

other professional services) 3.4

10.1

Total

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard the Group's corporate interests.

The Group continues to strengthen its internal control
framework to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss; to
manage prudently, but not completely eliminate, the
risk of system failure; to assist achieving the Group's
objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group's
corporate interests, the internal control framework
provides a basis for the maintenance of proper
accounting records and to comply with relevant laws
and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify,
measure, manage and control the risks arising from
different business and functional activities. Risk
control limits are established and approved according

to the appropriate authorisation hierarchy. More
detailed discussions of the policies and procedures

for managing major types of risk the Group are
included in the “Management of Risks” section in the
Management Discussion and Analysis; and in Note 56
to the consolidated financial statements — Financial
Risk Management (financial risks including market risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk, equity risk, interest rate risk
and foreign exchange risk).

The Group’s three independent control functions,
namely Internal Audit, Compliance and Risk Control;
in conjunction with the RMC, play an important role
in providing assurance to the Board and management
that a sound internal control system is being adopted,
implemented and maintained, relevant regulatory
requirements have been complied with.

Internal Audit provides an independent and objective
assurance and internal consultancy services to
improve the Group’s operations. It assists the

Group in accomplishing its objectives by bringing a
systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of the Group’s process

on risk management, control and governance. Risk-
based audit plan is formulated to ensure a systematic
coverage of all the Group’s operations. Independent
reviews of different business and functional operations
and activities are conducted in accordance with the
audit plan with resources focusing on areas with
higher risk. Ad hoc reviews are also conducted on
areas of concern identified. Reports published by
Internal Audit are issued to the Chairman, the Audit
Committee, relevant senior management and division/
department heads.
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Compliance assists management to fulfil its
responsibilities to maintain effective and appropriate
compliance policies, guidelines, procedures to ensure
that the regulatory rules and regulations as well as
internal policies and procedures of the Group are
complied with. It carries out ad-hoc and regular
reviews to monitor the Group’s regulated activities.
Compliance is an independent function reporting

to the Group Chief Financial Officer. The Head of
Compliance acts as the Group’s designated Complaint
Officer and Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

Risk Control is an independent function co-ordinated
by the Chief Financial Officer of Sun Hung Kai
Financial Limited reporting directly to the Group Chief
Financial Officer. It carries out independent assessment
of different risk exposures. Its functions include
formulation and review of risk management policies
and procedures, provides input on risk management
framework, such as setting various types of limits.
Reviews are conducted on new products, processes,
services and systems, to ensure that policies and
procedures are constantly updated in accordance with
risk-related changes in the operating environment.

Each year, the Group conducts a self-assessment of the
effectiveness of its internal control systems covering all
major areas such as front-office, compliance, finance
and operations. This self-assessment is conducted

with the purpose of assessing and documenting key
risks to enable control framework improvement. The
assessment is performed by the divisions and co-
ordinated by the Chief Financial Officer of Sun Hung
Kai Financial Limited. The results and findings are
reported to the Risk Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the Board.

In addition to this annual self-assessment, the Group
engaged external consultants in 2011 to perform
independent reviews covering a significant part of the
Group'’s operations.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions, along with their training
programmes and budget in accordance with the Listing
Rules’ requirements. The RMC, Audit Committee

and the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control systems of the Group and fulfilled the
requirement of the CG Code regarding internal control
systems in general.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of strong
communication with our shareholders. Information in
relation to the Group is disseminated to shareholders
in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. Such published
documents, together with the latest corporate
information and news, are also made available on the
Company’s website.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the
Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman actively participates at the AGM and
chairs the meeting to answer any questions from the
shareholders. The Chairmen of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee, or in their absence,
another member of the respective committees or
failing that their respective duly appointed delegate,
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are also available to answer questions at the AGM. The
chairman of any independent board committee formed
as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no
such chairman is appointed, at least a member of the
independent board committee) will also be available

to answer questions at any general meeting of the
shareholders to approve a connected transaction or
any other transaction that is subject to independent
shareholders’ approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general
meetings for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of retiring Directors.

Notice of meetings to shareholders is to be sent in the
case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days
in case of all other general meetings. An explanation
of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is
provided to the shareholders at the commencement
of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions from
shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The
poll results of the resolutions are thereafter published
in the manner prescribed under the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a revised set of
Corporate Governance documentation to be effected
on 1 April 2012 which is in line with the new code
provisions of the CG Code (the “New CG Code”)
effective on even date. In summary, the Company,
while adopting the code provisions in the New CG
Code, has made enhancement in the following major
areas:

—  the Board has adopted a corporate governance
policy which sets out the overall corporate
governance values of the Company;

— a Nomination Committee would be set up with a
majority of its members being INEDs; and

— a Shareholders Communication Policy by which
shareholders and other stakeholders of the
Company can communicate with the Company
and the Board has been adopted.

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code of the
Stock Exchange, but about promoting and developing
an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will
continue to review, and where appropriate, improve
our current practices on the basis of our experience,
regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders to promote and
improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Seng Huang
Group Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
pleased to present the Annual Report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries, principal associates and jointly
controlled entities are set out in Notes 50, 51 and 52
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
Details and respective analysis of the main business
segments of the Group during the year are set out in
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in the Consolidated
Income Statement. An interim dividend of HK10 cents
per share was paid to shareholders on 19 October
2011. The Directors recommended the declaration of a
final dividend of HK10 cents per share to shareholders
of the Company, making a total dividend for the year
2011 of HK20 cents per share. The final dividend will
be paid in the form of scrip, with the shareholders
being given an option to elect cash in respect of part
or all of such dividend. A circular giving full details of
the scrip dividend proposal and a form of election will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company in due
course.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property and equipment during 2011
are detailed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The total donations made by the Group for charitable
purposes during the year amounted to HK$3,099,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the year
are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity.
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DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report comprises:

Executive Directors

Lee Seng Huang (Group Executive Chairman)
William Leung Wing Cheung
(appointed on 26 March 2012)
Joseph Tong Tang
Peter Anthony Curry

Non-Executive Directors

Goh Joo Chuan
Leung Pak To
Ming Cheng
Roy Kuan
Ho Chi Kit (alternate to Roy Kuan)
Fevzi Timucin Engin
(resigned on 17 March 2011)
Josefh Kamal Eskandar

(alternate to Fevzi Timucin Engin and ceased to act as such
on 17 March 2011)

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
(resigned on 30 September 2011)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

David Craig Bartlett
Alan Stephen Jones
Carlisle Caldow Procter
Peter Wong Man Kong

In accordance with Article 94 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, a new Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting and a new Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold
office only until the next following Annual General
Meeting (“"AGM") of the Company. Besides, one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall be subject
to retirement by rotation, and eligible for re-election,
at each AGM in accordance with Article 103 of the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

Accordingly, pursuant to Article 94, Mr. William Leung
Wing Cheung shall hold office until the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.
And pursuant to Article 103, Messrs. Lee Seng Huang,
Ming Cheng, David Craig Bartlett and Peter Wong
Man Kong, Directors being the longest in office since
their last election, will retire at the forthcoming AGM.
Except for Mr. Ming Cheng who decided not to

offer himself for re-election due to his other business
commitment, all other three retiring Directors being
eligible, offer themselves for election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of Directors in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying

Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares

Directors

Capacity

underlying Shares

Number of  Approximate %

Shares and of the issued

share capital

Lee Seng Huang

Joseph Tong Tang

Peter Anthony Curry

Notes:

Beneficiary of trust

Beneficial owner

Beneficiary of trust

Beneficial owner

Mr. Lee Seng Huang, Director, together with Mr. Lee Seng Hui
and Ms. Lee Su Hwei are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being
a discretionary trust. Lee and Lee Trust together with Mr. Lee Seng
Hui indirectly owned approximately 56.76% interest in the issued
share capital of Allied Group Limited (“AGL") and was therefore
deemed to have interests in the Shares of the Company in which
AGL was interested.

This refers to the interest in 1,128,363,302 Shares.

(a) These include the deemed interests in:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

22,000 unvested Shares out of the total of 66,000
Shares granted to and accepted by Mr. Joseph Tong
Tang on 6 May 2009 under the EOS. Such awarded
Shares are subject to a vesting scale in tranches
whereby one-third of the Shares thereof (i.e. 22,000
Shares) was vested and became unrestricted from
15 April 2010; another one-third thereof was vested
and became unrestricted from 15 April 2011; and
the remaining one-third thereof shall be vested and
become unrestricted from 15 April 2012;

52,000 unvested Shares out of the total of 78,000
Shares granted to Mr. Tong on 5 May 2010 under

the EOS and accepted by him on 10 May 2010. Such
awarded Shares are subject to a vesting scale in
tranches whereby one-third of the Shares thereof (i.e.
26,000 Shares) was vested and became unrestricted
from 15 April 2011; another one-third thereof shall be
vested and become unrestricted from 15 April 2012;
and the remaining one-third thereof shall be vested
and become unrestricted from 15 April 2013; and

162,000 Shares granted to Mr. Tong on 13 April
2011 under the EOS and accepted by him on 19 April
2011. Such awarded Shares are subject to a vesting

Interests of controlled corporation (Note 1)

(b)

1,128,363,302 53.49%

(Note 2)
236,000 0.011%

(Note 3(a))
170,000 0.008%

(Note 3(b))
105,000 0.004%

(Note 4(a))
12,000 0.001%

(Note 4(b))

scale in tranches whereby one-third of the Shares
thereof shall be vested and become unrestricted from
15 April 2012; another one-third thereof shall be
vested and become unrestricted from 15 April 2013;
and the remaining one-third thereof shall be vested
and become unrestricted from 15 April 2014.

This represents 170,000 Shares out of the 205,000 Shares
granted under the EOS that were vested and became
unrestricted.

These include the deemed interests in:

(i)

(ii)

24,000 unvested Shares out of the total of 36,000
Shares granted to and accepted by Mr. Peter Anthony
Curry under the EOS according to an offer letter
dated 29 October 2010. Such awarded Shares are
subject to a vesting scale in tranches whereby one-
third of the Shares thereof was vested and became
unrestricted from 1 November 2011; another one-
third thereof shall be vested and become unrestricted
from 1 November 2012; and the remaining one-third
thereof shall be vested and become unrestricted from
1 November 2013; and

81,000 Shares granted to Mr. Curry on 13 April 2011
under the EOS and accepted by him on 19 April 2011.
Such awarded Shares are subject to a vesting scale

in tranches whereby one-third of the Shares thereof
shall be vested and become unrestricted from 15
April 2012; another one-third thereof shall be vested
and become unrestricted from 15 April 2013; and

the remaining one-third thereof shall be vested and
become unrestricted from 15 April 2014.

This represents the Shares granted to Mr. Curry under the
EOS that were vested and became unrestricted.
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(b) Interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of associated corporations

Associated

Directors corporations

Capacity

Approximate
Number of % of the
shares and relevant issued

underlying Shares

share capital

Lee Seng Huang AGL
(Note 1)

Allied Properties (H.K.)
Limited (“APL")

Allied Overseas Limited
(HAOLH)

SHK Hong Kong
Industries Limited
("SHK HK Ind")

Trustee (other than a
bare trustee) (Note 2)

Interests of controlled
corporation (Note 3)

Interests of controlled
corporation (Note 5)

Interests of controlled
corporation (Note 7)

Beneficial owner

Joseph Tong Tang APL

Notes:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Huang, by virtue of his interests in AGL and APL, was
deemed to be interested in the shares of the subsidiaries of AGL
(including SHK HK Ind, a listed subsidiary of AGL) and APL (including
AOL, a listed subsidiary of APL), which are associated corporations
of the Company as defined under the SFO.

A waiver application was submitted to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for exemption from disclosure
of Mr. Lee’s deemed interests in the shares of such associated
corporations of the Company in this report, and the waiver was
granted by the Stock Exchange on 24 February 2012.

2. Mr. Lee Seng Huang is one of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust,
being a discretionary trust which indirectly owned 115,976,492
shares of AGL.

3. This refers to the same interests held directly or indirectly by AGL in
APL.

4. These include interests in (i) 5,030,365,045 shares of APL; and (ii)
listed physically settled warrants of APL giving rise to an interest
in 1,006,006,209 underlying shares of APL. The warrants of APL
entitle the holders thereof to subscribe at any time during the
period from 13 June 2011 to 13 June 2016 (both days inclusive) for
fully paid shares of APL at an initial subscription price of HK$2 per
share (subject to adjustments).

115,976,492 56.75%
6,036,371,254 81.95%
(Note 4)
178,042,931 86.02%
(Note 6)
2,953,509,606 71.83%
(Note 8)
120,951 0.001%
(Note 9)

This refers to the same interests held indirectly by APL in AOL.

These include interests in (i) 149,165,776 shares of AOL; and (ii)
listed physically settled warrants of AOL giving rise to an interest in
28,877,155 underlying shares of AOL. The warrants of AOL entitle
the holders thereof to subscribe at any time during the period from
4 March 2011 to 4 March 2016 (both days inclusive) for fully paid
shares of AOL at an initial subscription price of HK$5 per share
(subject to adjustments).

This refers to the same interests held indirectly by AGL in SHK HK
Ind.

This refers to the interest in 2,953,509,606 shares of SHK HK Ind.

These include interests in (i) 100,793 shares of APL; and (ii) listed
physically settled warrants of APL giving rise to an interest in 20,158
underlying shares of APL. The warrants of APL entitle the holders
thereof to subscribe at any time during the period from 13 June
2011 to 13 June 2016 (both days inclusive) for fully paid shares of
APL at an initial subscription price of HK$2 per share (subject to
adjustments).
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All interests stated above represent long positions.

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors held
any short positions in the Shares, underlying shares of
equity derivatives or debentures of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011,
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in

the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

SHK EMPLOYEE OWNERSHIP SCHEME

On 18 December 2007 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted the SHK Employee Ownership
Scheme (the “EOS") to recognise the contributions
by any employee or director (“Selected Grantees”)
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
and to provide them with long-term incentives in
order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

A Committee comprising senior management of the
Company has been formed, with the power and
authority delegated by the Board, to administer the
EOS. An independent trustee (“Trustee”) has been
appointed for the administration of the EOS. Under
the EOS, Selected Grantees are to be awarded Shares
which have been purchased by the Trustee at the cost
of the Company and be held in trust for the Selected
Grantees until the end of each vesting period. Upon
the management’s recommendation, the number of
Shares awarded to the Selected Grantees (other than
a Director) shall be determined, with the vesting dates
for various tranches, by the committee. Any shares
award under the EOS to a Selected Grantee who is

a Director shall be subject to the Board’s approval
following a recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee of the Board.

Subject to the terms thereof, the EOS shall be valid and
effective for an initial term of five years commencing
on 18 December 2007 and automatically extended

for another three subsequent terms of five years each
unless otherwise terminated. The maximum number of
Shares which can be awarded under the EOS and to a
Selected Grantee throughout its duration are limited to
5 per cent (i.e. 83,989,452 Shares) and 1 per cent (i.e.
16,797,890 Shares) of the Company’s shares in issue
as at the Adoption Date.

During the year, a total of 1,803,000 Shares (2010:
1,182,000 Shares) were awarded to the Selected
Grantees subject to various terms including, amongst
other things, vesting scales whereby awarded shares
will vest and become unrestricted over a three-year
period. A total of 1,538,000 Shares (2010: 1,254,000
Shares) were vested during the year.

Since its adoption, a total of 8,033,000 Shares

have been awarded up to the date of this report,
representing about 0.48 per cent of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date.

As at 31 December 2011, the outstanding awarded
Shares under the EOS (excluding Shares awarded, but
subsequently forfeited) amounted to 2,735,000 Shares.

ARRANGEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION
OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the year and as at 31 December 2011, none of
the Directors had any personal interests in the options
to subscribe for shares in the Company’s holding
company, AGL, granted under the share option scheme
of the said company.

Other than the EOS, at no time during the year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2011, the following shareholders had interests in the Shares and underlying Shares as

recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (the “SFO Register”):

Shareholders

Capacity

Number of Shares and  Approximate % of the
underlying Shares

issued share capital

APL

AGL

Lee and Lee Trust
Dubai Ventures L.L.C

("Dubai Ventures”)

Dubai Ventures Group
(L.L.O) ("DVG")

Dubai Group (L.L.C)
("Dubai Group”)

Dubai Holding Investments
Group LLC ("DHIG")

Dubai Holding (L.L.C)
("Dubai Holding")

Dubai Group Limited
("DGL")

HH Mohammed Bin Rashid
Al Maktoum

Penta Investment Advisers
Limited (“Penta”)

Asia Financial Services Holdings
Limited (“AFSH")

Asia Financial Services
Group Limited (“AFSG")

CVC Capital Partners Asia lll
Limited (“CVC Capital”)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 1)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 3)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 5)

Beneficial owner

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 7)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 9)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 10)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 11)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 12)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 13)

Investment manager

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 15)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 16)

Interests of controlled corporation
(Note 17)

1,128,363,302
(Note 2)

1,128,363,302
(Note 4)

1,128,363,302
(Note 4)

166,000,000
(Note 6)

166,000,000
(Note 8)

166,000,000
(Note 8)

166,000,000
(Note 8)

166,000,000
(Note 8)

166,000,000
(Note 8)

166,000,000
(Note 8)

126,262,788
(Note 14)

409,920,000
(Note 18)

409,920,000
(Note 18)

409,920,000
(Note 18)

53.49%

53.49%

53.49%

7.84%

7.84%

7.84%

7.84%

7.84%

7.84%

7.84%

5.97%

19.36%

19.36%

19.36%
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Notes:

The interests were held by AP Emerald Limited (“AP Emerald”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of AP Jade Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of APL. APL was therefore deemed to have interests in the
Shares in which AP Emerald was interested.

This represents an interest in 1,128,363,302 Shares held by APL through
AP Emerald.

AGL owned approximately 68.29% interest in the issued share capital of
APL and was therefore deemed to have interests in the Shares in which
APL was interested.

This refers to the same interests in 1,128,363,302 Shares held by AP
Emerald.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang (a Director)
are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They
together owned approximately 56.76% interest in the issued share
capital of AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interest) and
were therefore deemed to have interests in the Shares in which AGL was
interested.

This represents an interest in 166,000,000 Shares.

DVG owned a 99% interest in the issued share capital of Dubai Ventures
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Dubai
Ventures was interested.

This refers to the interests in 166,000,000 Shares held by Dubai Ventures.

Dubai Group owned a 99% interest in the issued share capital of DVG and
was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which DVG was
interested.

DHIG owned a 51% interest in the issued share capital of Dubai Group and
was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Dubai
Group was interested.

Dubai Holding owned approximately a 99.66% interest in the issued share
capital of DHIG and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which DHIG was interested.

DGL owned a 49% interest in the issued share capital of Dubai Group.
DGL was therefore deemed to have interests in the Shares in which Dubai
Group was interested.

HH Mohammed Bin Rashid Al Maktoum owned approximately a 97.40%
interest in the issued share capital of Dubai Holding and was therefore
deemed to have interests in the Shares in which Dubai Holding was
interested.

This includes interests in (i) 70,122,824 Shares; and (ii) unlisted cash
settled derivatives of the Company giving rise to an interest in 56,139,964
underlying Shares.

This represents an interest through a wholly-owned subsidiary namely Asia
Financial Services Company Limited (“AFSC").

This represents an interest through two of its subsidiaries, Asia Financial
Services Holdings Limited and AFSC.

CVC Capital, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, owns 88% interest
in AFSG and is therefore deemed to have interest in the Shares and
underlying Shares in which AFSG was interested.

This represents the interests in (i) 341,600,000 Shares; and (ii) the deemed
interest in the underlying Shares arising from the HK$427,000,000 in

face value of Warrants issued by the Company to AFSC pursuant to a
Subscription Agreement dated 22 April 2010.

Save as disclosed above, the afore-mentioned interests

represent long positions and as at 31 December 2011,

no short positions were recorded in the SFO Register

of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the

Directors are not aware of any other persons who have

interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying

shares of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would require to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(1) Sharing of Management Services Agreement
for three years from 2011 to 2013

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 January 2011, and in its Annual

Report for the year 2010, a Renewed Sharing of
Management Services Agreement was entered into
between the Company and AGL on 31 January
2011 (the “Renewed Services Agreement”) to
extend the term of the Sharing of Management
Services Agreement dated 31 January 2008 for a
period of three years from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013, in relation to the provision of
management, consultancy, strategic and business
advice services (the “Management Services”) by the
senior management and selected staff of AGL (the
“AGL Management Staff”) to the Company and

its subsidiaries, and the reimbursement of costs
payable to AGL. Pursuant to the Renewed Services
Agreement, the aggregate amount payable to AGL
for the three respective financial years ending 31
December 2013 shall not exceed HK$3.24 million,
HK$3.63 million and HK$4.08 million respectively.
The total amount paid to AGL for the year ended
31 December 2011 was HK$3.24 million.

(2) Insurance Brokerage Services Agreements for
two years from 2011 to 2012

As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 January 2011 and in the
2010 Annual Report, Sun Hung Kai Insurance
Consultants Limited (“SHK Insurance”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered

into an insurance brokerage services agreement
with each of AGL, APL, AOL, Tian An China

Investments Company Limited (“TACI”) (an
associated company of APL) and Yu Ming
Investment Management Limited ("YMIM") (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of AGL) on 31
January 2011 (the “Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreements”) whereby SHK Insurance would
provide packaged insurance brokerage services

to the AGL Group, APL Group, AOL Group, TACI
Group (as defined in the said announcement) and
YMIM for two years from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2012 by assisting them in procuring
insurance policies to be taken out with third party
insurers (“Insurance Services”) in accordance with
the terms of the Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreements. The maximum aggregate amount
payable by AGL Group, APL Group, AOL Group,
TACI Group and YMIM under the Insurance
Brokerage Services Agreements for the two
financial years ending 31 December 2012 shall be:

2011 2012

HKS$ million HKS$ million

AGL Group 0.8 0.88
APL Group 1.2 1.32
AOL Group 1.5 1.65
TACI Group 4.0 4.4
YMIM 0.144 0.16

The total amount paid by the AGL Group, APL
Group, AOL Group, TACI Group and YMIM to
SHK Insurance for the year ended 31 December
2011 under the Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreements were approximately HK$0.54 million,
HK$1.0 million, HK$1.14 million, HK$1.37 million
and HK$0.11 million respectively.
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Given that APL is a substantial shareholder of the
Company; and AGL, AOL, TACI and YMIM are all
associates of APL under the definition of the Listing
Rules, each of AGL, APL, AOL, TACI and YMIM and
their respective associates is regarded as a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. As
such, the entering into of the Renewed Services
Agreement and the Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company (the “Continuing
Connected Transactions”) under Rule 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules. In accordance with the requirements of
Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing Rules, details
of the said two Continuing Connected Transactions are
included in this report.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on

the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements

Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note

740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect
of the Continuing Connected Transactions. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company,
being Messrs. David Craig Bartlett, Alan Stephen
Jones, Carlisle Caldow Procter and Peter Wong Man
Kong, reviewed the above Continuing Connected
Transactions and confirmed that they were entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the Renewed Services
Agreement and the Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreements governing them on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into
in the manners stated above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Underwriting Agreement

On 29 December 2011, an Underwriting Agreement
(the “Underwriting Agreement”) was entered into,
among others, between Sun Hung Kai Investment
Services Limited (“SHKIS") (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), TACI and Allied Cement Holdings
Limited (”Allied Cement”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of TACI as at the date of the Underwriting
Agreement, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
TACI as at the date of this Report) pursuant to which,
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SHKIS agreed to subscribed or procure subscribers
for, on the terms and conditions of the Underwriting
Agreement and the Prospectus, all the Offer Shares at
the Offer Price (the “Transaction”).

Detailed information of the Transaction was
disclosed in the announcement jointly issued by
the Company and TACI dated 29 December 2011
(the “Announcement”). Capitalised terms used
herein shall have the same meanings defined in the
Announcement.

As at the date of the Announcement, SHKIS was an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
which in turn was owned as to approximately

53.48% by APL. APL was a controlling shareholder
holding approximately 46.85% of the issued share
capital of TACI and thus a connected person of TACI.
The entering into of the Underwriting Agreement
constituted a connected transaction for the Company.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules, details of
the Transaction are included in this Annual Report.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other
borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the
year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a

high standard of corporate governance practices.
Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 37 to 51.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report,

save as disclosed below, none of the Directors (not
being the Independent Non-Executive Directors) are
considered to have interests in the businesses listed
below which compete or are likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Huang is one of the trustees of
Lee and Lee Trust which is a deemed substantial
shareholder of each of AGL, APL and TACI which,
through their subsidiaries, are partly engaged in
the businesses as follows:

—  AGL, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment;
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—  APL, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment; and

—  TACI, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment.

2. Mr. Peter Anthony Curry is a director of Ormil
Energy Limited and APAC Resources Limited
and an alternate director of Mount Gibson Iron

Limited which, through certain of its subsidiaries,

are partly involved in the investment and/or
trading in listed securities in the resources and
related industries.

3. Mr. Leung Pak To is the chairman of Luminary
Capital Limited which carries out Type 6 licensed
activity (advising on corporate finance) in Hong
Kong.

4.  Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei (a former Director
resigned on 30 September 2011) is a director of
TACI, which, through certain of its subsidiaries,
is partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending and property investment.

Although the abovementioned Directors have
competing interests in other companies by virtue of
their respective common directorship, they will fulfil
their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that they will
act in the best interests of the shareholders and the
Company as a whole at all times. Hence the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently
of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such
companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company

or any of its subsidiary companies was a party and

in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the
total turnover for the year.

Also, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group'’s five largest suppliers taken together were less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Company repurchased a total of 11,087,000 Shares
on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
(before expenses) of HK$44,421,080. All the
repurchased Shares were subsequently cancelled.
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Particulars of the repurchases are as follows:

Aggregate

Number consideration

of Shares  Purchase price (before

Month repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)
(HKS)  (HKS$) (HK$)

June 49,000  5.600  5.560 274,140
July 358,000  5.600  5.450 1,988,000
October 3,135,000 4350  4.100 12,882,600
November 2,750,000  4.180  4.000 11,229,290
December 4,795,000  4.090  3.725 18,047,050
11,087,000 44,421,080

The repurchases were made for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole with a view
to enhancing the earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s securities during the year ended
31 December 2011.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Seng Huang
Group Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

E_Uli?%lﬁfﬁiﬁi

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF SUN HUNG KAI & CO. LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
130 to 271, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BHBRERRARZMERR
(REEZMA LA FRE E])

TZEEITE TR EZHENE 1308 EF 271 B
FEEARAR(TERA D REKE AR (FE
BIEEE ) ZHEAVBE®RE  BER=F——
F+-_A=+t—HZ&EAEK EAA Zﬁﬁ‘kﬂﬂ:/ﬂ
x REEZBLEFEZRERER  KE62H
LBZ’\EE :Tm*giﬁzibﬁﬁz?/m\fﬁiuw@]% A
FTESHECRBE R E MR

ESHGREMBRRNEE

a’AET%%ﬁéfﬂﬁﬁ%%\;‘%@?rﬁfﬁ@@bﬁﬁzfé
BHBREEIRBERAGD  FREEEHR
FEeMBERE ﬁﬁ%%bmﬁﬁ{%%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂ
ERER - AR AR BAR A M ISR TR R HRGE
IR MEB A B A REL -

BB EE

Kﬁﬁ’]f&%@f$”%?lfﬁm  HZF
REMBRREFERR  XREFEAFGHFE
14V15ER BERREEBRRFEL®RE KRtz
S NEERIEEMAR - RITATRARSE 2
ARREREMALTE EEESAETE - K17
RIEBE GRS RMOBTBRBCENETE
ZIAF - RFRERNREARTRBTEERSE - X
REIRMITEZ  UEBEEABGRSMBHREK

BIE|EFAEB A RRA -



Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2011
IREBR AT o 2011FFIR

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEERE

129

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

e REER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE2011F 1231 BILFE

2011 2010
Restated
&7
Notes HKS$ Million HK$ Million
B 5 BEBTT ABBT
Revenue (turnover) Un s (& %%E) 6 3,593.2 3,064.1
Other income E g A 8 224.3 45.8
Total income BUT 5 3,817.5 3,109.9
Brokerage and commission expenses #£472 M{A& & (214.4) (219.0)
Direct cost and operating expenses — ELHZ KR M 4% & & F (260.1) (296.4)
Administrative expenses EIRE (1,218.4) (949.5)
Net (loss) gain on financial Brig T A (EE) ks
instruments gl 11 (132.3) 121.2
Net exchange gain or loss JRIE A8 (46.0) 10.7
Bad and doubtful debts REEER 12 (184.5) (109.6)
Finance costs Rl E A 13 (160.3) (115.6)
Other expenses Hih & A (9.5) (15.0)
1,592.0 1,536.7
Loss on disposal of a listed associate H & — B A FERE — (159.3)
Share of results of associates Fﬁ1£ﬂ§ﬁ§’&7%ﬁz 17.1 210.1
Share of results of jointly controlled & $£ 12 I 2
entities B 6.2 5.0
Profit before taxation 7R AR A 14 1,615.3 1,592.5
Taxation fiIE 15 (278.8) (233.0)
Profit for the year = F Em A 1,336.5 1,359.5
Profit attributable to: FEihmF
— Owners of the Company — RAFIREER 1,032.4 1,087.0
— Non-controlling interests — R 304.1 272.5
1,336.5 1,359.5
Earnings per share BRAR 17
— Basic (HK cents) — EARCEM) 48.8 56.8
— Diluted (HK cents) — E5E OBL) 48.8 56.8




Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2011

FBREBR AT « 20115FFR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

a2 H W R

131

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

2011 2010
Restated
El
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT AEBTT
Profit for the year =EERRN 1,336.5 1,359.5
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 H
Available-for-sale investments AEHERSE
— Net fair value changes during the year — 2FE AV EZS)F5E (19.2) 12.2
— Reclassification adjustment to profit or — RHEREERFRNEH
loss on disposal DIRFE (4.3) (2.1)
(23.5) 10.1
Exchange differences arising on translating #T&E /87N EFEHE X
foreign operations =7 109.3 48.1
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss /B &M B A B EE KRR
on liquidation of subsidiaries REF D AR — (6.7)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss R HIE — F il &N B E
on disposal of a listed associate WS BRRE T D B — (320.5)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or PAE & — FE R A 7] B
loss on liquidation of a jointly controlled BREWmRNEHNSHE
entity R (0.3) —
Revaluation gain on properties transferred AR B W% & 2
from property and equipment to EREMENER
investment properties g 146.0 137.5
Share of other comprehensive income PGB 2 ) Ao 2 i as
(expenses) of associates (ZH) 0.1 (2.1)
Deferred tax relating to components of B 2E AR 2B E
other comprehensive income FEIEFRIA — (2.1)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) HBRHIBER 2 EFEEMER
for the year, net of tax W () 231.6 (135.7)
Total comprehensive income for the year REESEWHRETE 1,568.1 1,223.8
Total comprehensive income attributable (2 EU
to: 4aza
— Owners of the Company — RREIRE 1,220.4 933.7
— Non-controlling interests — FEPER R 347.7 290.1
1,568.1 1,223.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

At 31 December 2011
R2011F12A318

31/12/2011 31/12/2010 1/1/2010
Restated Restated
=5 =7
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
Mo BEBTT BEBTT ABBTT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Investment properties wEME 18 714.0 288.4 130.1
Leasehold interests in land THE i 19 10.0 10.0 13.0
Property and equipment EYSE e 20 220.6 274.6 248.7
Intangible assets | A E 21 1,023.5 1,186.7 1,354.3
Goodwill S 22 2,384.0 2,384.0 2,384.0
Interest in associates N P 25 56.7 56.6 4,185.2
Interest in jointly controlled HEZEH A A
entities s 26 122.1 116.4 72.0
Available-for-sale investments AIEEERE 27 316.2 292.1 286.2
Statutory deposits ETERS 26.9 50.8 36.0
Deferred tax assets REFIE & E 28 92.7 94.1 100.5
Amounts due from associates Bt N\ R ER 30 51.3 56.2 56.1
Loans and advances to consumer FAABBEEER
finance customers INEE 31 2,972.6 2,291.9 1,870.2
Deposits for acquisition of BEMERSREZ
property and equipment and R REAM
other receivables UL BR 36.5 33.4 —
Financial assets at fair value #Eim e RiR AT E
through profit or loss HIBR 89 B 75 B B 32 236.7 — —
8,263.8 7,135.2 10,736.3
Current Assets RENEE
Amounts due from associates Bt N\ R ER 30 12.5 14.1 3.0
Loans and advances to consumer M ABBEEEHK
finance customers INEE 31 4,583.5 3,172.6 2,524.2
Financial assets at fair value BiEW = RE AT E
through profit or loss DI BR A B 15 B B 32 536.0 641.5 677.6
Trade and other receivables & H b UL BR 33 6,345.7 6,676.4 5,587.2
Amount due from a fellow CESLEPNGD!
subsidiary RER — — 0.7
Taxation recoverable JE R 18 16.9 1.4 2.3
Cash, deposits and cash Re - FREBEE
equivalents S 34 2,736.0 2,510.1 1,346.0
14,230.6 13,016.1 10,141.0
Current Liabilities RBEE
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAB AR 35 (1,646.4) (1,695.7) (2,242.7)
Trade and other payables R R H AR 36 (1,023.7) (1,358.8) (1,547.0)
Financial liabilities at fair value iﬁiﬂﬂﬁl SRR A A
through profit or loss PIBRM TS B R 37 (14.9) (6.3) (36.1)
Mandatory convertible notes ?ﬁ%ﬂ \EET?@H&?E?E 38 — (32.6) —
Amount due to an associate of bl NG /N
a holding company féff!ﬁ 39 (24.7) — —
Amounts due to fellow GEY N =EPNG
subsidiaries and a holding N ¥R A A)
company iR 39 (1,256.2) (767.8) (1,573.1)
Amounts due to associates FAlNET= = 39 (2.2) (8.4) (8.1)
Provisions Pt 40 (46.5) (72.9) (12.4)
Taxation payable FERTTEIE (100.6) (105.1) (74.2)
(4,115.2) (4,047.6) (5,493.6)
Net Current Assets nEBEEFE 10,115.4 8,968.5 4,647 .4
Total Assets less Current WEERME
Liabilities =N 18,379.2 16,103.7 15,383.7
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At 31 December 2011
®20114128318

31/12/2011 31/12/2010 1/1/2010
Restated Restated
=5 =5l
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
B = BEAR BEBTT ABBT
Capital and Reserves BEARR#E
Share capital [N 41 421.9 355.1 350.4
Reserves G 11,665.6 11,010.1 12,320.3
Equity attributable to owners of  ARAFPREENL
the Company T 12,087.5 11,365.2 12,670.7
Non-controlling interests FEFEAGE S 2,315.5 1,862.9 1,743.7
Total Equity S AA =R 14,403.0 13,228.1 14,414 .4
Non-current Liabilities FnBERE
Deferred tax liabilities FRIEFIH B F 28 204.6 224.0 250.7
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EABIEFR 35 3,203.5 2,044.8 209.9
Mandatory convertible notes ?ﬁ%ll MR AR R 38 — 459 —
Amount due to an associate of 2y NI /N
a holding company iR 39 — 47.2 —
Provisions A 40 12.3 1.3 6.0
Bonds BE% 43 555.8 502.4 502.7
3,976.2 2,875.6 969.3
18,379.2 16,103.7 15,383.7
The consolidated financial statements on pages 130 to 271 S 130B 25271 BENGATBRRELESTSN

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lee Seng Huang
e
Director

EZE

Peter Anthony Curry

Director

EFE

2012 3 H 26 B#/ERERETZE - R F5IE
EREEE
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B F5 AR I 2R

At 31 December 2011
R2011F12A318

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
P 5T BEETT BEBT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Intangible assets B EE 21 1.1 1.1
Interest in subsidiaries NI 24 3,990.9 4,290.4
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIHE B 28 — 0.4
Amounts due from subsidiaries IENEIVNES 29 6,253.0 3,869.2
Amounts due from associates Bt 2N B) KR 30 54.4 59.2
10,299.4 8,220.3
Current Assets REEE
Trade and other receivables il Ky H b e U BR 0.3 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries Bﬁ% AR AR 29 684.4 —
Amounts due from associates B & N A R BR 30 0.9 0.8
Cash, deposits and cash equivalents 3% - TR MRS EEY 34 1.4 1.1
687.0 1.9
Current Liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries WEAREER 29 (111.0) (240.6)
Trade and other payables A I Bt FE AN AR (5.7) (6.1)
Amount due to a holding company % RARIERR (0.8) (0.9)
Financial liabilities at fair value BRI RREATE
through profit or loss PRI S B & 37 (0.6) (4.6)
Mandatory convertible notes o I 1 AT IR AR R 38 — (32.6)
Taxation payable e TR (2.8)
(120.9) (284.8)
Net Current Assets (Liabilities) REBEE(EE)FHE 566.1 (282.9)
Total Assets less Current HWEERRE
Liabilities =L 10,865.5 7,937.4
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital N 41 421.9 355.1
Reserves s 44 10,443.6 7,536.4
Equity attributable to owners of the 7N &A% fE(S
Company Em 10,865.5 7,891.5
Non-current Liability FRBAME
Mandatory convertible notes SR Il 1 TR R R 38 — 459
10,865.5 7,937 .4

Lee Seng Huang
FHE
Director

EF

Peter Anthony Curry
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
KRIRRELR

Equity  Shares Employee
element of held for share-based
Capital convertible  Employee con- Re- Non-
Share  Share redemption notesand Ownership pensation Exchange valuation  Capital Retained Dividend controlling ~~ Total
capital premium  reserve warants  Scheme  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserves eamings  reserve  Total interests  equity
a8  AEE  URH
FER ROHA XA
EARE ARER HEEE RRME FER
Bx REEE  GE GEERG 0 RE  RE ENBE EGEE SRR REEN RERE  BE B RRAE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million  Million
BBEn FERn FEET BREr AR AERR BREL BREn AARn FEER BEEn AR AEER AEEL

t 1 January 2011 RONE1A1E 355.1 54380 583 1,616.5 (237) 103 108 3795 06 32002 319.6 11,3652 18629 13,2281
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - - - - - 10324 — 10324 3041 13365
Other comprehensive REFANEE

income (expenses) for Wa (i)

the year (Note 42 (Ka2) - - - - - - A om0 - 10 86 B
Total comprehensive income  EEE2ANE

(expenses) for the year (%ih)ag - - - - - - 654 1ms 02 10323 — 1204 377 15681

Recognition of equity- ERitER

settled share-based fkhES

payments i - - - - - 90 - - - - - el - 50
Purchase of sharesheld ~ AHEZESRH

for the SHK Employee FEEmEA

Ownership Scheme #ik{? - - - - (1) - - - - - - () - ()
Vesting of shares of the SHK  #TEEEE R

Employee Ownership EETINRG

Scheme 78 - - - - 188 (102 - - - (8.6) - - - -
Final dividend paid RS - - - - - - - - - - (132 (132 - (3132
Interim dvidend declared ~ EEH RS - - - - - - - - - ) am - - -
Interim dividend paid APERS - - - - - - - - - - (1997)  (199.7) - (1997)
Shares issued for scrip SRR

dividends ) 07 1.7 - - - - - - - - (189) - - -
Shares repurchased and mE RS

cancelled i3 (22) - 22 - - - - - LY - (M) - (42
Conversion of mandatory ~ Bl

convertible notes S 683 15553 - (15589 - - - - - - - 64.7 - 64.7
Proposed final dvidend ~ BHEAEHE - - - - - - - - — (108 208 - - -
Formation of new R3HE

subsidiaries Al - - - - - - - - - - - - 4 14
Dividends paid tonon-  XAREFIHER

controlling interests R - - - - - - - - - - - - (175 (179

At 31 December 2011 RONE12A318 e 7,010 60.5 56 (19.6) 9.1 762 5020 08 37572 2108 120875 23155 14,4030
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
R EHR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE2011F 1231 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALRRRES
Equity  Shares Employee
element of  held for share-hased
Capital convertible Employee con- Re- Non-
Share  Share redemption notesand Ownership pensation Exchange valuation  Capital Retained Dividend controlling ~ Total
capital premium  reserve warrants  Scheme  reserve  reserve  reserve reserves earnings  reserve  Total interests  equity
TaR  AEE  URH
FER BOER XA
EARE RMER ENE REME FER
ke RHEE B NERRG 0 RH  BE EXRE EMRE SARE R2EY RERE  BF  BE RGEE
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million ~ Million  Million
BRET BEET FERn BEET AERR ARERT BEAR RERRT AEET BRER RERR ARET EEER AEER
At 1 January 2010, as R2010E1A18
previously stated RS 3504 53062 57.6 = (28.0) 90 3213 451 14) 61634 2198 126834 17447 144281
Effect on changes in EiRuE
accounting policies LB
(Note 2) (HiE2) = — - - — — - — — (12.7) - (127) (1o (137)
As restated & 3504 53062 576 — (28.0) 9.0 313 1451 214 6,150.7 2198 126707 17437 144144
Profit for the year REREA = = = = = = = = - 10870 — 10810 2125 13595
Other comprehensive income REEEM2E
(expenses) for the year Y (zit)
(Note 42) (Hi42) = = — — — — (3105 1344 220 08 - (1533) 176 (1357)
Total comprehensive income  REE2EME
(expenses) for the year (xin)es — — - - - — (3105 1344 20 10878 — 937 101 1238
Recognition of equity- Bt ERR
settled share-based HARDES
payments % - - - - - 92 - - - - - 92 - 92
Purchase of shares held ~ A#EEEERN
for the SHK Employee HAEm
Ownership Scheme BARRD - - - - (3.6) = = = = = = (36) = (36)
Vesting of shares of the SHK  #EEEER(
Employee Ownership FERELIN)
Scheme G5B - - - - 19 (19 - - - - - - - -
Adjustment t0 2009 final 2009
dividend RE = = = = = = = = = (05) 05 - - -
Special dividend EhRE - = - - - - - - — (352700 35270 = - -
Distribution in specie ENAR = = = = = = = = = — (38073 (38073) - (38073
Interim dividend declared S5 S - — — - = = = = — (1749 1748 = = =
Interim dividend paid TfmERE = = = = = = = - = — (1749 (1749) — (1749
Shares issued for scrp SRR AT
dividends 30 54 1318 - - - - - - - - - B - B
Shares repurchasedand ~ EIE R
cancelled iz (07) - 07 - - - - - - (163) — (163 - (163
Issue of mandatory Eranit
convertible notes and TEREER
warrants ARiER - - — 16165 - - - - - - — 16165 — 16165
Proposed final dividend ~ EERREIRS = — — — — — — — — (3196 3196 = = =
Dividends paid tonon- ~ ftRE TR
controlling interests i - - - - - - - - - - - — (1709  (1709)
At 31 December 2010 20105127318 3551 54380 583 16165 23) 103 108 37195 06 32002 3196 113652 18629 132281
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
hE=s BHEBT AEBTT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REES
Profit before taxation MR A5 B4 A 1,615.3 1,592.5
Adjustments for: FHEIEE :
— Share of results of associates — PGB QRS 17.1) (210.1)
— Share of results of jointly controlled — Btk E3ZE &I A 7]

entities E (6.2) (5.0)
— Dividend income — BRBMA (14.1) (10.3)
— Interest income — FEA (2,760.3) (2,098.4)
— Profit on disposal of a subsidiary — HEMB ARG — (29.3)
— Profit on liquidation of subsidiaries — — &5 &HE A &% A — (3.7)
— Loss on disposal of a listed — HE— EmEBE AR

associate E518 — 159.3
— Profit on disposal of an associate — HEHE R TR T (13.4) —
— Profit on disposal of available-for- ~ — HERHHERE

sale investments pinl (5.2) (2.1)
— Reversal of impairment loss on — B A RERREERE

interest in associates 2= — (0.2)
— Bad and doubtful debts — REER 184.5 109.6
— Increase in fair value of investment — &X&YWEATE

properties 30 (192.6) (5.3)
— Impairment loss on intangible — B EERRE

assets E518 — 1.0
— Impairment loss on available-for- — At EERERRIE

sale investments &8 0.5 —
— Impairment loss on amounts due — BE R RRERRE

from associates [E518 4.9 0.3
— Fair value loss (gain) on financial — BB ITANAFEBE

instruments (Wea) 202.1 (4.2)
— Amortisation of leasehold interests — — #E§57H & + 3

in land s 0.4 0.4
— Amortisation of intangible assets — BRI EE 198.9 186.1
— Depreciation of property and — YRR

equipment e 49.4 40.9
— Expenses recognised for the SHK — RIEEEERODES

Employee Ownership Scheme TEIFERNE A 9.0 9.2
— Interest expenses — A EEH 155.8 107.6
— Net loss on disposal of equipment  — HERERELEEN

and intangible assets E518 558 4.1 3.7
— Exchange difference — [EHZER 61.1 23.6
Operating cash flows before TMENE R EEN RIS &

movements in working capital BeRE (522.9) (134.4)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeaRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE2011F12A31BILFE

2011 2010
Notes HKS$ Million HK$ Million
M5 BEETT BEET
Increase in loans and advances to fA/\ﬁﬁk%}EE
consumer finance customers i (2,165.6) (1,126.6)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other Z<<<A&H{TE}*H&EEM’J\
receivables (38n) 304.7 (1,089.4)
(Increase) decrease in financial assets iﬁLHﬁZﬁnﬁETﬁ“$ﬁ§lJﬁEE’J
at fair value through profit or loss B igE E (g )R (348.4) 41.8
Decrease in amount due from fellow EESNIENEIVS:S
subsidiaries A — 0.7
Decrease in trade and other payables 44 K H fib & (< BE ) (332.2) (186.0)
Increase (decrease) in financial BiER R AT E
liabilities at fair value through profit 5'JE§E@E7T?F%E\T§
or loss O A) 8.6 (31.4)
Decrease in amounts due to fellow ] ?W%’AT&T /N
subsidiaries and a holding company BRI (0.2) (0.2)
(Decrease) increase in provisions M CRA )0 (16.8) 54.7
Cash used in operations BEMARSE (3,072.8) (2,470.8)
Interest received BUF) 8 2,721.5 2,061.3
Dividends received from held for BUIFEEERE
trading investments f% 2. 5.0 4.6
Interest paid EAFLE (147.4) (110.0)
Taxation paid IR ER) (317.6) (222.2)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEEEMARE
ACTIVITIES ekl (811.3) (737.1)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Purchase of property and equipment 08 A5 R a5t (67.1) (66.0)
Purchase of intangible assets BAEFEE (34.0) (19.5)
Disposal of a subsidiary & BT B A A — 39.6
Liquidation of subsidiaries BENE AT — (11.8)
Repayment of amount due from NS DN
associates B — 2.1
Dividends received from associates UG R BS: 2 8 B AR B, 13.7 47.5
Expenses paid for disposal of a listed HE— EmiEna
associate Frfst & A — (2.9)
Proceeds on disposal of an associate HEB N RIS RIA 13.4 —
Capital injection to a jointly controlled ¥ A HFI#ZEH| A=
entity [N — (0.2)
Repayment of amount due to a jointly  {E3& L [F#H| A A
controlled entity B — (52.0)
Liquidation of a jointly controlled B ;/\HT il
entity NS 1.0 —
Dividends received from available-for- HﬁZHX—H HERE
sale investments 4.9 5.7
Purchase of available-for-sale ﬁ%)\—ﬁﬁﬂjﬁ
investments wE (52.9) (6.8)
Proceeds on disposal of available-for- ﬁE—H HERE RS
sale investments A 10.0 7.4
Net refund (payment) of statutory /imhz‘i\ R (R0
deposits SHFE 24.0 (14.8)
Payment of deposits for acquisition of ﬁ%%“f“fﬁﬁfrﬁ
equipment b (16.2) (20.4)
Purchase of long-term financial assets  §& AJEE A5 BUEER
designated as at fair value through BATHEYIBR R
profit or loss WG EE (44.9) =
Fixed deposits with banks placed R RITEFER (653.5) (282.4)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEFBMARS
ACTIVITIES SRR (801.6) (374.5)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeaRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

2011 2010
Notes HKS$ Million HK$ Million
hE=s BHEBT AEBTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R R E
Dividends paid A% B X £+t (512.9) (37.7)
Dividends to non-controlling interests i FIEHEARfE 25 2 IR B (17.4) (171.3)
Capital contribution by non-controlling  FEFERRAERS )T A
interests f&Zs 122.4 —
Net short-term bank and other RER(EER ) HRTR
borrowings raised (repaid) HAhfEROF 58 10.5 (925.7)
New long-term bank and other loans  $REUHT & EIERTT I
raised H A 8 R 1,139.7 2,177.1
Repayment of long-term bank loans BB RHERITIER (17.3) (15.6)
Issue of bonds BITES 591.0 —
Repayment of bonds BEES (500.0) —
Short-term loans due to fellow REFTRREZMB A A
subsidiaries raised HHIER 600.0 —
Short-term loans due to fellow BEMRRARME AR
subsidiaries repaid HEER (112.7) (802.8)
Loan due to an associate of a holding  2HUZEAR A 7] 2 B2 A A
company raised B — 471
Loan due to an associate of a holding  EEIEAY A A 2 Bi& A a]
company repaid B (24.1) —
Purchase of shares for the SHK ?jz%ﬁ,l%ﬁﬁ,\ﬂxfﬁﬁggiﬁﬁgj
Employee Ownership Scheme FriE AR AR 15 (14.7) (3.6)
Shares repurchased and cancelled @E%&?E\Eﬁﬁﬂi@ (44.2) (16.3)
Proceeds from issue of mandatory ﬁ?ﬁ%” |$TT’*'HX7RTJ€)§2
convertible notes and warrants R FT1S 5K IE — 1,708.0
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RREZBAERS
ACTIVITIES FEE 1,220.3 1,959.2
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH RekBReEFEBWORL)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HNFEE (392.6) 847.6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS K1 A1EREE KRS
AT 1 JANUARY ZEW 2,177.7 1,328.0
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN [ 3 A B Y
changes w2 10.0 2.1
1,795.1 2,177.7
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MR12A31ENBEER
31 DECEMBER, represented by REeEEY
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEFEY 34 1,795.1 2,227.7
Bank overdrafts RITEX 35 — (50.0)
1,795.1 2,177.7
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HZE2011%F12A31BLLEE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its parent is AP Emerald
Limited. Its ultimate holding company is Allied Group
Limited, a public limited company which is listed and
incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate controlling
party of the Company is the trustees of Lee and Lee
Trust. The address of the principal place of business of
the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust is 24/F, Allied Kajima
Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The address of the registered office of the Company is
disclosed in the Corporate Information of the Annual
Report. The principal place of business of the Company
is in Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an
investment holding company and the principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 50.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
new and revised Standards, Amendments to Standards
and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). Except as described below, the adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the current or prior accounting periods.

o
=

|

ARRA—BEEFBEMAILHRARERA
A EHRARBEBBARZHAERAR L
e AT AAP Emerald Limited @ &4
[ AR BEBRERIE EMZAREBREA
AMAEEEERARF @ MARBRKIEHH
A lee and Lee TrustIZsEA @ HEB &2
B E) M A B ST S T8 138 RS
BEERNE 2418 o AR A EMN =R a R A
FRATBER —HPHEE - ARAIEBHLE
@ EBRS o

He ot

R B HRRIABITZS BTN RFN

DEER -

ARREBREBEERIEBRIRERR X
R A B E B XS EE 50 HIRE -

%g%&ﬁ%ﬂ%é%%ﬁﬁ%

T

RAEE  KECEAZHEAFEGEA
IR E RIS KB AR - ERNE I K
(R 18 R EMERTHKFRSs]) © BRAT
P A DA SN - BR 4R 7 18 K2 AR 12 5] HKFRSs $f K
SR MESBESHHE 2K EEE M H
RUBERTE o
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) has changed the
definition of a related party. The application of the
revised definition of related party set out in HKAS 24
(as revised in 2009) in the current year has resulted
in the identification of related parties that were not
identified as related parties under the previous Standard.
Specifically, associates of the Company’s ultimate
holding company and its subsidiaries are treated as
related parties of the Group under the revised Standard
whilst such entities were not treated as related parties
of the Group under the previous Standard. The related
party disclosures set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements have been changed to reflect the
application of the revised Standard. Changes have been
applied retrospectively.

HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to
the general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should
reflect the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the entity expects to recover the
carrying amount of an asset. Specifically, under the
amendments, investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS
40 Investment Property are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred
taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

FRAFREETNE B KRS
Bl )

e s

HKAS 24 (&3] ) BB AL 2 E

HKAS 24(2009 F&{EE] ) ¥ A FE A T8 E
EIEHE R - RAFEFEAHKAS 24 (2009
FEASE]) FTH BB E ATREIERT E &
BYRBBAERREZRR 2 BAEATR
B ABREAL - BBME - BELBER]
AR AR B REIER AR REN B AR
BENRERASENEBEAL - MBE
BARR > ZEERTEFREASEENERH
BAL - GRA Y IEIRERMEITH A A
BEACHEEBEEERER - LURBRERL
ERTER] - BEEAE R EBHER -

HKAS 12 (Z{&1E)IELERE : HEEEWE

HKAS 12 Z(EIERR B B HKAS 12 —f2 R A
RIBISME S - RTRBRE RIS = REER H
BEMNGTERERMEEERKDEENER
BENHFRAEROBREER - BB E @ B
BZEEE B2 EERE B HKAS
A EMERAATFERAGENREDE
WREABBIEEWRE @ BRIFLBREES T
B TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets (continued)

In current year, the Company has adopted the
amendments to HKAS 12 retrospectively in advance of its
mandatory effective date (i.e. from 1 January 2012). The
adoption resulted in a change in accounting policy in the
current year regarding the measurement of deferred tax
of investment properties of the Group. The adoption of
the amendments resulted in a decrease in the current
year's taxation of HK$27.9 million, an increase in other
comprehensive income for the year of HK$23.3 million
and an increase in basic and diluted earnings per share
of HK1.3 cents. The adjustments to prior periods are as
follows:

FRAMREKETNE B KRS
AR )

Js

HKAS 12 (218 1E) &
(#&)

RAEE » £BEEHKAS 12 Z{EIEH) R
A BEHBI20124 1 A1 8 ) AlE BEHEMNZ
ZIEE - RMZESEEERAFTF @B =
SEREMFEET RN TBERNE - K
MZEETERREFRERBRAL27T9EE
B RFEEHMEE KL M233ES
BT AREREARREFRFE I35
il - ¥E A BARVER ORI T ¢

FIERTE - HEAEEWE

As previously

reported  Adjustments  As restated
BUEDIER i EL]|
HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BB BEBT BEBT
Consolidated income statement for HBZ2010F12 B31 B2HA
the year ended 31 December 2010 W iR
— Taxation — FE (232.3) 0.7 (233.0)
— Profit for the year — REE R 1,360.2 (0.7 1,359.5
— Profit attributable to owners of the — AARREENE
Company Al 1,087.7 (0.7) 1,087.0
— Basic earnings per share (HK cents) — BREXRZF (EWL) 56.8 — 56.8
— Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) — BlREERF (BWL) 56.8 — 56.8
Consolidated statement of financial R2010%F1 B 1 B2z B 075
position as at 1 January 2010 MR
— Deferred tax liabilities — EiEHIBERE (237.0) (13.7) (250.7)
— Retained earnings — [RE&RH (6,163.4) 12.7 (6,150.7)
— Non-controlling interests — JFERE R (1,744.7) 1.0 (1,743.7)
Consolidated statement of financial R2010F 1283182
position as at 31 December 2010 ReRBmRE
— Deferred tax liabilities — EETIEEE (229.2) 5.2 (224.0)
— Exchange reserve — ELREE (11.3) 0.5 (10.8)
— Revaluation reserve — BhiEE (359.4) (20.1) (379.5)
— Retained earnings — [RE&RF (3,213.6) 13.4 (3,200.2)
— Non-controlling interests — RS (1,863.9) 1.0 (1,862.9)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised standards and amendments that have been
issued but are not yet effective, and are relevant to the
operations of the Group.

HKAS 1
(Amendment)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures®

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
(Amendment) Financial Liabilities®
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
(Amendment) Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS
9 and Transition Disclosures®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements®
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

2w oN o

The amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and
(b) items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on
items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

FRAFREETNE B KRS
Bl )

i

ERRMERE R 2 RAEIET EANRE

SEYEIZF A IAT 2 BB AR 4RI
SEEER AR REERTERREL -

HKAS 1 (£&{E1E) Hiv2mWz=IEE 2
275"

HKAS 27 (2011 4) BB HRE"’

HKAS 28 (20114) REERAIREER
Al ZIEE?

HKAS 32 (&Z4E1E) S B 75 & e N B 7S
afE’

HKFRS 7 (& 1E) e — WP KE
ERTKaE?

HKFRS 9 Z 58 fl| & 3%

BE @R

HKFRS 9 =

HKFRS 10 A IREK

HKFRS 11 AEHE’

HKFRS 12 WENHEMERE 2
MR’

HKFRS 13 ANEEFE’

MN20126F7 A1 B EERBFEER
M20134F 1 A1 B EERBBFE LR
MN201451 A1 A EEARBFEER
20154 1 A1 B EERBBFE LR

5w N o

HKAS 12 1{E1E# EH b2 a3 BE
HEEINMEE @ BUFEMb2ENSIEE REA
MEER : () ERTEENDEEIBEMNE
B RO ERBEFEECGKEREND
HEIERMIEE - Htb2 WS EE B
AR —HEESR -
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in the future accounting periods.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, an entity
may make an irrevocable election to present changes in
fair value of equity investments in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income recognised in profit
or loss. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The
management is still in the process of assessing the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 9.

2.

FRAMREKETNE B KRS
AR )

Js

EEMERER 2 REERT
(#&)

HKAS 1 2B ER2012F7 A1 Bk HE%ERH
IMEEE AN - ZFEERRR ST HREE
R Ett2EkasEE 2 2588 R (e
IS -

ERMBE

HKAS 32 7 {& IF B B 3R B B 4K 35 4R F B BE Y
FERMEE - RRBME - ZFELMATE A
BAAAERFNITOEERE | R IRKEE
NEEINESR °

R 2009 FE B M HIHKFRS 95| A BRI 5 &
EDBRFENFHHRE - R2010F(EIEH
HKFRS 9 BHEH BB EDE KT E A KEUH
Eu/um%ﬁﬂi ©

4% HKFRS 9 - ZEHKAS 39[ M T A « #E
RETE | BEANBRANMENBEE &
BB AR AT ERE - FRIZ - £
WEAHNRERERSBNZEEEAREF
BWEFIRE  URARAES RS RKE
BRI EmMERS @fﬁéméwﬁ%&

& —RRERSHES E?ﬁzﬁﬁfﬁ}ﬁﬁ
T2 o TEEMEREE MRERE @ BN
EgestHEEERKRERAFEE - it

N (B ERYAI AT REAREME2E
W 27K EN AT EEZESE - WEE
B P RERRL B UL A - FEF HKFRS 9FTRE®
HEBPKEEZAEEETE - EEED
FERFEER 49 HKFRS 9 K2 -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (continued)

In June 2011, a package of five Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,
HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five Standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK(SIC) — Int 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities” has been
withdrawn upon the issuance of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS
10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is
control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over
an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint
Ventures”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement
of which two or more parties have joint control should
be classified. HK(SIC) — Int 13 “Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers”
has been withdrawn upon the issuance of HKFRS 11.
Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as
joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements.
In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of
joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required
to be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities are
currently under HKAS 31 accounted for using the equity
method of accounting.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

FRAFREETNE B KRS
AR )

%

EEMERER 2 REERTE
V1

R201156 7 BEESTMASHESD
B - A2%H BEARKEERMG—F
A2 28| - BFEHKFRS 10 ~ HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12 ~ HKAS 27 (2011 F & 1{& 57 ) &
HKAS 28 (2011 F&E5T) °

AR E

N

HRIBER T 2R EEHMAT -

HKFRS 10ERK HKAS 27 [4:4 I8 B 53R
x| BRI E M BHRE D o HK(SIC)
— Int 12[4RAKRE — BHHREMNARIER
HKFRS 1028/ 1&#5H ° BIEHKFRS 10 * R
B—A4AKEE E%E  BIFEHI4E o b
HKFRS 10 B 1EZEGIENFEE - ARBEE
—ArTE: QEEEHREHS  b)EE
B BREESEEHREBEMESZH0EIR
K(OBEENERAENTREHRUATERE
E B R4 % - HKFRS 10 ghE HE B N B
B AIMAFMAES -

HKFRS 11EXKHKAS 31[RA L R E 2 #
%5 ] o HKFRS 11 ETRAMIEzk A £ E B A &
EZGHENGELHEZDEAR » HK(SIC)
— Int 13[ EXRIEHIAR — & EHEZIE
EEMER A |2 HKFRS 11 B EHEY - 1B
BEHKFRS 11 GELHDBAEE XK
AENR] RT2ETHR RN ER
MmE ° Mk HBIEHKAS 31 B =FFETRH
Bt KEEGIAR - KEEHEEK
HRE I Z -

Itk SN+ HKFRS 11 T8 M) & & A Bl B & A #E
FIEAEE - M HKAS 31 AT £ E3EH A 7
RERRAESEALR -
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those
in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application
is permitted provided that all of these five standards are
applied early at the same time.

The Directors anticipate that these five standards
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January
2013. The application of these five standards may
have impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the Directors have not
yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the
application of these Standards and hence have not yet
quantified the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The Standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those required in the current
standards.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

2.

FRAMREKETNE B KRS
Bl )

i

EHEMERER 2 REBTEIMEE

V1

(&
HKFRS 122 —IHEZE XA XM EB A
Al - AeLHE - B RR R RIEEA AR
MEBEERTEEERNERER - —&
& + HKFRS 12 M3 5& #48 E BT RI A
HEEAEZ -

W RIBERR 2013461 A1 Bk EEHBH
FEEERKR - ZEEBTIZATER @ ML AIE
AERZE2 R IZATER °

EETEH L ABERENERER 2013 4F 1
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (continued)

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and result in more
extensive disclosures in the financial statements.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised standards and amendments will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES

In addition to the restatements arising from the change
of accounting policy as stated in Note 2 above, the
Group has made the following reclassification of
comparatives in its consolidated financial statements.

In prior years, the net gain or loss on financial
instruments (“Net Gain or Loss”) were classified under
revenue. The net exchange gain and net exchange loss
were classified under other income and other expenses
respectively. In the current year, the Directors have
determined that the Net Gain or Loss and the net
exchange gain and loss are classified as two separate
items in the consolidated income statement. Accordingly,
the comparatives of the consolidated income statement
are restated: — Net Gain or Loss of HK$121.2 million
and net exchange gain of HK$10.7 million were
reclassified out of revenue and other income respectively.

In the current year, accrued interest expense of the
Group as at 31 December 2010 amounting to HK$14.3
million (1/1/2010: HK$10.8 million) which was included
in trade and other payables in prior years was reclassified
to respective financial liabilities. In consistent with
the current presentation, which is considered to be
more appropriate, the comparatives of bank and other
borrowings, amount due to an associate of a holding
company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and bonds
were restated.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

3. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES
(CONTINUED)

In the current year in segment information, the Group
has renamed the Corporate Finance segment to Capital
Markets segment, changed the bases of cost allocation
and reorganised certain components of segments. The
comparatives of the segment information are restated.
Further details of the restatement are disclosed in Note 7.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the financial statements include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

(b) Basis of preparation and consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associates
and jointly controlled entities. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9]

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment transactions of the
acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with share-
based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that Standard.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9]

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Goodwill

(e)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognised
as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates
may be impaired. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of impairment
testing.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Interest in subsidiaries

A subsidiary (including special purpose entities) is
an entity over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies and is
generally accompanied by a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Interest in subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the accumulated amounts
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had
directly disposed of the related assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less impairment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received or receivable.

Interest in associates

An associate is a company not being a subsidiary or
a joint venture, in which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights.

Interest in associates is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recognised at cost. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Interest in associates (continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. In the consolidated statement of
financial position, interest in associates comprises
the Group’s share of the net assets plus goodwill
identified on acquisition (net of any accumulated
impairment losses).

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including its investment cost and other long-term
interests, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in
the Group losing significant influence over that
associate, any retained investment is measured at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the previous carrying amount of the
associate attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

When the Group transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(9)

Interest in associates (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the interest in associates is stated at cost less
impairment. The results of associates are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividends received
or receivable.

Interest in joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control
and over which none of the participating parties has
unilateral control.

A joint venture arrangement which involves the
establishment of a separate entity in which each
venturer has an interest is referred to as a jointly
controlled entity.

The Group's interest in its jointly controlled entities
is accounted for by the equity method, whereby its
interest in the jointly controlled entities is initially
recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of net
assets of the jointly controlled entities. The Group’s
share of post-acquisition results of the jointly
controlled entities is included in the consolidated
income statement. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, interest in jointly controlled
entities comprises the Group’s share of the net
assets plus goodwill identified on acquisition (net of
any accumulated impairment losses).

Where the Group transacts with its jointly controlled
entities, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

0

Investment properties

The Group's investment properties are properties
which are held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are initially measured at cost including
all transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition they are stated at fair value based on
an independent professional valuation at the end of
each reporting period. Any revaluation increase or
decrease arising from the revaluation of investment
properties is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which it arises.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasehold interests in land

Leasehold interests in land are classified as operating
leases and presented as “leasehold interests in land”
in the statement of financial position when all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership are not
substantially transferred to the Group. Leasehold
interests in land are amortised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0

Property and equipment

Property and equipment include buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance lease) held
by the Group for its own use. All property and
equipment are stated at cost, less subsequent
depreciation and impairment. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to write off the cost of each asset to
its residual value over its estimated useful life as
follows:

shorter of the estimated
useful life and the
remaining lease term of
land

Property —

Furniture and —
equipment

10% to 33% per annum

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

If an item of property included in “property and
equipment” becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained
earnings.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0

(k)

Property and equipment (continued)

For a transfer from an investment property carried
at fair value to owner-occupied property, the
property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the disposal proceeds
with the carrying amount and are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

(i) Exchange participation rights and club
membership

They comprise:

— the eligibility right to trade through The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and
other Exchanges; and

— the eligibility right to use the facilities of
various clubs.

The exchange participation rights are
considered by the management of the Group
as having an indefinite useful life because
they are expected to contribute net cash
flows indefinitely. The management also
considers that the club membership does not
have a finite useful life. They are both carried
at cost less any impairment losses and are
tested for impairment annually by comparing
their recoverable amounts with their carrying
amounts. Useful lives are also examined on an
annual basis and adjustments where applicable
are made on a prospective basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Intangible assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised using the straight-
line method.

Costs associated with developing or
maintaining computer software are recognised
as an expense as incurred. Costs that are
directly associated with the production of
identifiable and unique software controlled
by the Group, and that will probably generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one
year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct
costs include software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised from the
dates when the software becomes available for
use using the straight-line method.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are identified and recognised
separately from goodwill where they satisfy the
definition of an intangible asset and their fair
value can be measured reliably. Such intangible
assets are measured at their fair value at the
acquisition date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

0

Intangible assets (continued)

(iii) Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets
with indefinite lives are carried at cost less
any impairment losses and are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their
recoverable amount with their carrying amount.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

Investments/financial assets
(i) Classification

Financial assets of the Group are classified
under the following categories:

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”

This category has two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading, and those designated
at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
A financial asset is classified in the held for
trading category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term. All
derivative financial assets are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

4. EEETBEKR#)

(k) BEEE(HE)

(i) REHE G Tl iE B E
(&)
RYIFTHERR - AREAAFHZ
BB TR AR R AT B iE R AT
M REPREEEIR - BREAN B
FHZzBEEREMGAERF
HABREDETIARE - RBF
TE 5 PR HAMR 0 B T2 B B = A TR (EDR
EEBAR - BFLEERYE
HEMEEEFERBERSE

BUHMER B EEMRLG - MHEMRE
KB FREEERTE BN ZEGT
8 WHEBUREREERNZR A WK
R o

(I RE MBEE
(i) 7%
SEZHBEERJATER

355 38 W 25 BR 12 23 F 1 51 R 69 3 7%
BE

SRR S MR - FHERE BRI
BENMEEERREBRERIR
RNHEIIRNMIBEE - MBAZ
MHEENERERRHLE AR
AFHEEE SR - FRIFTTEM B E
ENEREGEE - BRI-2B8R

REEEE -




160

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0

Investments/financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (continued)
“Available-for-sale investments”

This category comprises financial assets, which
are non-derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. They include
both listed and unlisted investments which are
stated at fair value, except for those equity
investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured whereby they are
measured at cost.

“Loans and receivables”

This category includes trade receivables, bank
balances, loans and other receivables. They
arise when the Group provides money, goods
or services directly to clients or brokers with
no intention of trading the receivables. For
those secured margin or term loans, clients are
normally required to provide additional margin
or securities as collateral whenever there are
any shortfalls in their accounts.

Recognition and initial measurement

Purchases and sales of investments are
recognised on trade date, which is the date
that the Group enters into a contract to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value with transaction costs
recognised as expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets which are
not financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0

Investments/financial assets (continued)

(iii) Derecognition

(iv)

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”

Investments under this category are
subsequently re-measured to fair value at the
end of the reporting period until the assets
are derecognised. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value are
included in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which they occur. Upon
disposal, the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount is included
in the consolidated income statement.

“Available-for-sale investments”

Available-for-sale investments are carried at
fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
the investment revaluation reserve. When the
securities are sold, the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount,
and the accumulated fair value adjustments in
the investment revaluation reserve are treated
as gains or losses on disposal.

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0

Investments/financial assets (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
“Loans and receivables”

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment losses, if any.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair values of quoted investments are based on
bid prices. For unlisted securities or financial
assets without an active market, the Group
establishes the fair value by using appropriate
valuation techniques including the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other investments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models.

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the securities below their cost
is considered in determining whether the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale investments, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement) is
removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity investments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Investments/financial assets (continued) (0)

4. EEETBEKR#)

RE WK EE(#E)
(vi) JBt1E (4&)

(vi) Impairment (continued)

Each receivable that is individually significant
is reviewed for indication of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables that are individually not significant
and are assessed not to be impaired individually
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period on a collective portfolio basis.

Individual impairment allowance applies to
securities margin financing and secured term
loans which are individually significant or have
objective evidence of impairment. In assessing
the individual impairment, management
estimates the present value of future cash
flows which are expected to be received, taking
into account the borrower’s financial situation
and the net realisable value of the underlying
collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits
and the impairment allowance is measured
as the difference between the loan’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate.

Collective impairment allowances cover
credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans
receivable and other accounts with similar
economic and credit risk characteristics where
objective evidence for individual impaired
items cannot be identified. In assessing the
collective impairment, management makes
assumptions both to define the way the Group
assesses inherent losses and to determine
the required input parameters, based on
historical loss experience and current economic
conditions. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
bank balances, short-term time deposits and
treasury bills. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities for trading purposes are generally
classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss” which are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period,
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Other financial liabilities
including loans, bank borrowings and overdrafts,
bonds, trade and other payables, which are
recognised initially at fair value, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Share capital

Ordinary shares of the Company are classified as
equity.

When share capital recognised as equity is
repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, including directly attributable costs, is
recognised in equity. Repurchased shares that are
not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury
shares and presented as a deduction from total
equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Share capital (continued)

Dividend distribution to the Company’s owners is
recognised as a liability in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the shareholders.

Where the shares of the Company (“Awarded
Shares”) are purchased under the SHK Employee
Ownership Scheme, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental
costs, is presented as “Shares held for Employee
Ownership Scheme” and deducted from equity.
When the Awarded Shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related costs of the
Awarded Shares represented by the fair value at
the grant date, are eliminated against the employee
share-based compensation reserve (Note 4(w)).

Other equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded as the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Derivatives that are settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or other
financial assets for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments are classified as equity.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component regarding the fixed interest payment
during the life of the convertible notes is estimated
using the discounted cash flow method. This
amount is recorded as a liability and measured at
amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at
the instrument’s maturity date.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

Convertible notes (continued)

The equity portion of the convertible notes is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. The equity portion is not
subsequently remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, if it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Where the Group expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to any provision is presented
in the consolidated income statement net of any
reimbursement.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives are not subject to amortisation,
and are tested at least annually for impairment
and reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets
that are subject to depreciation and amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units) if an impairment test cannot be performed for
an individual asset. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately as an expense.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

Taxation

Taxation comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability
method at the reporting date, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the assets realised. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except when it relates to items recognised in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities (foreign
currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Foreign exchange gains and
losses arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
included in net profit or loss for the period, except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated to Hong
Kong dollars at exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s
exchange reserve. Such translation differences are
recognised as income or expenses in the period in
which the operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Interest expenses directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to prepare for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised on a
time apportionment basis, taking into account the
principal and the effective interest rates. They are
charged to the consolidated income statement in
the year in which they are incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

“The Group as lessor”

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

“The Group as lessee”

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the
|lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the
consolidated income statement.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are also spread on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Employee benefits

4. EEETBEKR#)

(w) EE®R

The Group operates defined contribution
retirement schemes, the assets of which are
held in independently administrated funds. The
Group’'s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as the employees
have rendered their services entitling them to the
contributions and are reduced by contributions
forfeited, if applicable, by those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate,
based on approved formulas that take into
consideration the profit attributable to the Group
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

For shares of the Company (“Awarded Shares”)
granted under the SHK Employee Ownership
Scheme, the fair value of the employee services
received is determined by reference to the fair value
of Awarded Shares granted at the grant date and
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee share-based compensation reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of Awarded Shares
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to the employee share-
based compensation reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related tax. Income is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on the following
basis:

(iii)

Commission income is recognised as income on
a trade date basis.

Underwriting commission, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income in
accordance with the terms and conditions
of the relevant agreement or deal mandate
when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.

Fees for management and advisory services for
funds are recognised when the related services
are rendered.

Income from the provision of services is
recognised upon the provision of the relevant
services or on a time apportionment basis over
the terms of service contracts.

Interest income from financial assets is
recognised on a time apportionment basis,
taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the effective interest
applicable, which is the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash flows through
the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the owners’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vii) Realised profits or losses from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised on a trade date basis whilst the
unrealised profits or losses are recognised from
valuation at the end of the reporting period.

(viii) Rental income arising on investment properties
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease term regardless of when the cash
rental payment is received.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are set out
as follows.

(a)

Impairment allowances on loans and receivables

In determining individual impairment allowances,
the Group periodically reviews its trade receivables,
secured term loans and margin loans to assess
whether impairment allowances exist. In
determining whether impairment allowances should
be recorded in the consolidated income statement,
management estimates the present value of future
cash flows which are expected to be received, taking
into account the borrower’s financial situation and
the net realisable value of the underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances
to consumer finance customers

The policy for collective impairment allowances for
loans and advances to consumer finance customers
of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectibility and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these loans and advances, including
the current creditworthiness, and the past collection
history of each loan.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

For listed available-for-sale equity investments,
a significant or prolonged decline in fair value
below cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment. Judgement is required when
determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant or prolonged. In making this judgement,
the historical data on market volatility as well as
the price of the specific investment are taken into
account.

For those unlisted equity investments that are
carried at fair value, the Group determines their
fair value by using appropriate valuation techniques
and making assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. The Group also takes into account other
factors, such as industry and sector performance
and financial information regarding the investee.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives

The Group conducts tests for impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives annually in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards. Determining whether the
goodwill and the intangible assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the fair value less cost to
sell or value in use on the basis of data available to
the Group. Where future cash flows are less than
expected, an impairment loss may arise.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(e) Deferred tax

()

Estimating the amount for deferred tax assets
arising from tax losses requires a process that
involves forecasting future years’ taxable income
and assessing the Group’s ability to utilise tax
benefits through future earnings. Where the actual
future profits generated are more or less than
expected, a recognition or reversal of the deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
the consolidated income statement for the period in
which such a reversal takes place. While the current
financial models indicate that the recognised tax
losses can be utilised in the future, any changes
in assumptions, estimates and tax regulations can
affect the recoverability of this deferred tax asset.

Fair value of derivative and financial instruments

The Group selects appropriate valuation techniques
for financial instruments not quoted in an active
market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied (Note 55).

The Group’s unlisted equity instruments that are
classified as available-for-sale investments and
carried at fair value with a carrying amount of
HK$73.5 million (31/12/2010: HK$70.8 million)
as set out in Note 27 are valued using generally
accepted pricing models such as discounted cash
flows.

For the valuation of unquoted bonds and unlisted
derivative financial instruments as set out in Notes
32 and 37, appropriate assumptions are used based
on quoted market data as adjusted for specific
features of the instrument. The carrying amounts
of these financial assets and liabilities are HK$35.4
million (31/12/2010: HK$35.3 million) and HK$13.2
million (31/12/2010: HK$1.5 million) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE
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6. REVENUE 6. W=
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivables WamAB WS ERNELEREMEE - F
for brokerage and commission, interest, dividends, rental B RE - HEHERFKE -

and service income.

2011 2010
Restated
=5
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT AEBTT
Brokerage, commission and service LoEe - HibfAsR
income Pl 7 W 2= 767.5 899.4
Dividends from listed investments ERRERE 5.9 6.5
Dividends from unlisted investments ELETIRERE 8.2 3.8
Gross rental income from investment I BE Y EFS
properties wEe 15.7 7.1
Interest income FEWA 2,760.3 2,098.4
Fees received from funds management ERESHRNE 33.9 458
Net charge on gold and leveraged e RIEEXINER S
foreign exchange positions REMMSE E/F8E 1.7 3.1
3,593.2 3,064.1
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. pEER
The operating businesses are organised and managed LB A TR MRS m RS EE M
separately according to the nature of the products and DREBRER  FHBRRKREETEE®
services provided, with each segment representing a KRB RIS EBE RSB o HIARKE
strategic business unit that offers different products and EREMBERKE -

serves different markets. Inter-segment sales are charged
at prevailing market rates.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

The main reportable and operating segments presented
in these financial statements are as follows:

(a)

Wealth Management and Brokerage:

— provision of financial planning and wealth
management services;

— provision of broking services and insurance
broking;

— provision of online financial services and online
financial information;

— provision of securities margin financing; and

— dealing in securities, funds, bullion, commodities,
futures and options.

Capital Markets: provision of corporate finance
services and structured finance.

Asset Management: provision of asset management
including funds marketing and management.

Consumer Finance: provision of consumer financing.

Principal Investments: strategic investments,
properties holding and rental.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE
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HZE2011%F12A31BLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

7. DIEER @)

2011
Capital
Wealth Markets
Management (formerly
and Corporate
Brokerage Finance) Asset Consumer Principal
HEEER EATA(AIE  Management Finance  Investments Total
gy tERE) BEER HARE IZRE it
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million
AR AEAT AEAT BERT BERT BERT
Brokerage/commission revenue mefehs 569.3 555 - - - 504.8
Non brokerage/commission revenue FLRels 515.2 303.1 528 2,0843 1176 30730
Segment revenue e 1,0845 3286 528 2,0843 1176 3,667.8
Less: inter-segment revenue W PERNG (2.0) (0.4) (0.1) - (1) (74.6)
Seqment revenue from extemal customers  RESNIEZHAERE 1,082.5 3282 52.7 2,0843 455 3,593
Seqment profit or loss HEER 356.1 149.5 @27 854.3 2748 1,592.0
Share of resulfs of associates il A=y - - - - 174 17.1
Share of results of jointly controlled entis ~ FriGZEE4ATLE 30 - - - 32 6.2
Profit before taxation RRETRA 359.1 1495 (#27) 8543 295.1 16153
Included in segment profit or loss: BEENEER
Interest income HEMA 458 2134 - 20745 142 2,7603
Other income HlA 20 36 153 0.7 202.7 243
Reversal of impairment loss on loans and BABBEPERRERL
advances to consumer finance customers HEFERD - - - 54.2 - 542
Net gain (loss) on financial instruments HBIENR(BR)FE 96 (943) (533) - 57 (1323)
Net exchange gain or loss FERER 16 (0.6) 08 (61.6) 18 (46.0)
Amortisation and depreciation EiaknE (125) (0.6) (07 (193.1) (41.8) (248.7)
Impairment loss AEEE
— Available-for-sale investments — T ERE - - - - (05) (05)
— Amounts due from associates —BERARE - - - - (49) (49
— Loans and advances to consumer ~ HARBEPESNR
finance customers B3 - - - (218.7) - (218.7)
— Trade and other receivables — WEREfRNE (21.0) - - - - (210)
Loss on disposal of equipment and HEREREN AR
intangible assets BE (1.0) - - - 3.1) (a.1)
Finance costs BERA (9.0) (02) - (146.0) (5.1) (160.3)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

7. DIEER @)

2010 (restated) (E5])
Capital
Wealth Markets
Management (formerly
and Corporate
Brokerage Finance) Asset Consumer Principal
HEEER  AXmA(EE  Management Finance  Investments Total
RS REEE) EEER AR IERE e
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEAT AEAT AEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Brokerage/commission revenue mefeha 6549 %6 - - 31 753.6
Non brokerage/commission revenue FELRels 3829 1595 13 1,659.5 907 23659
Segment revenue PENG 1,037.8 255.1 3 1,659.5 95.8 3,1195
Less: inter-segment revenue B PERNG (35) = (02) — (51.7) (55.4)
Segment revenue from external customers RENSERNH ARG 10343 255.1 . 1,659.5 44,1 3,064.1
Segment profit or loss ABER 2953 258.1 135 7512 593 13774
Share of resulfs of assaciates il EARRE - - - - 2101 2101
Share of results of jointly controlled entiis PG ZAEHATLE 20 - - - 30 50
Profit before taxation BRARA 2973 258.1 135 7512 m4 1,595
Included in segment profit or loss: BEEAEER:
Interest income HEMA 318 1013 - 1,646.8 185 20984
Other income EfplA 15 - 02 05 ;36 458
Reversal of impairment loss AEERRED
— Interest in assaciates —BENTER - - 02 - - 02
— Loans and advances to consumer — BARBEPESNR
finance customers 43 = = = 1093 — 1093
—Trade and other receivables — BEREMENE - - = = 19 19
Net gain on financial instruments SRTANGSE 129 7138 19 - 346 1212
Net exchange gain or loss FERER 0.1 1.0 02 (255) 349 107
Amortisation and depreciation BELNE (95 (05 0.7) (1873) (29.4) (221.4)
Impairment loss REBE
— Intangible assets —BYAE - - - (10) - 1,
— Amounts due from associates —BERARK - - - = 03) 03)
— Loans and advances to consumer — BARBEPESNR
finance customers 23 - - - 2179) - 17
— Trade and other receivables — BERAMpRNE (1.6) - = = (13) (29
Loss on disposal of equipment and HERBREREEN
intangible assets B (05) (05) (07 = (2.0) 7
Loss on disposal of a listed associate HE-FHBENREE - - - — (159.3)
Finance costs RERA (133) (1.1) = (96.3) (4.9) (115.6)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED) 7.

The geographical information of revenue and non-

current assets are disclosed as follows:

DIBE R (#)

Was RIERBEE ZHERMAT -

2011 2010
Restated
=27l
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT
Revenue from external customers by PERIS = el
location of operations (AgE &3 75 )
— Hong Kong — BB 3,044.2 2,817.7
— PRC and others — B E A 549.0 246.4
3,593.2 3,064.1
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
Non-current assets other than financial MRS TAREERIBEE L
instruments and deferred tax assets by EMBNE E
location of assets (REEMNE)
— Hong Kong — &8 4,266.2 4,110.6
— PRC and others — FRE R H At 149.3 117.3
4,415.5 4,227.9
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

As mentioned in Note 3, segment revenue and segment
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2010 were

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

7. 2HEER#E)
AHEE3 ATl - B E2010F12 A31 BEE
ZHHEWERDIEIBZEE TAES - AT A

restated. Below is the effect of the restatement: EXl a2
2010
Capital
Wealth Markets
Management (formerly
and Corporate
Brokerage Finance) Asset Consumer Principal
HEEER  EAMAGIE  Management Finance  Investments Total
ezn t¥#E) EEER TABT TERE h)
HKS Millon — HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milon ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon
BEAT AEAT AEAT AEAT AEAT AEAT
Segment revenue from external customers,  RESNIBXEAE &
as previously stated GO 1,145.2 2838 7. 1,659.5 257 31853
Reclassification of net (gain) loss on EMAEHRTIA(NR)
financial instruments BETE (48) (12) = — 02 (1212)
Change of bases of cost allocation and PERADREENREA
reorganisation of segment components AEESE (62.2) 440 - - 182 -
Segment revenue from external customers,  RESNIBRHNAERE
as restated ] 1,0343 255.1 1 1,659.5 4.1 3,004.1
Seqment profit or loss, as previously stated ~ 7EfRE  IATIE 4034 113 EEN 7445 (44.9) 13774
Change of hases of cost allocation and PERAARAENREA
reorganisation of segment components PEEA (108.1) 168 (19.6) 6.7 104.2 =
Segment profit or loss, as restated NEER  EJ 2953 258.1 135 751 593 13774
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8. OTHER INCOME 8. HgA
2011 2010
Restated
=l
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT
Net realised profit on disposal of HERE 2B A EF
investments 8
— Disposal of a subsidiary — HEKBAR — 293
— Liquidation of subsidiaries — BEMNB AR — 3.7
— Disposal of an associate — HEBE AR 13.4 —
— Disposal of available-for-sale — HERMEHE
investments wE 5.2 2.1
Reversal of impairment loss on interest in B4 A Rl REE B
associates 5l — 0.2
Increase in fair value of investment KEMENTFE
properties H#n 192.6 5.3
Miscellaneous income HIBUIA 13.1 5.2
224.3 45.8
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9. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

9. EERSABEME

(a) Directors (a) ==
2011
Salaries,
housing
and other
allowances Contributions
and henefits to retirement
inkind  Discretionary benefit
Director's  Consultancy ¥4 EER honuses scheme
fees fees  Efi2H BiEsH B Total
20t ErE il i BE LS &g
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
AERT AEET ABET ABER L ABET
David Craig Bartltt R 0.1 0.18 - - - 0.19
Peter Anthony Curry’ Peter Anthony Curry’ 0.02' - 244 225 0.09 480
Fevzi Timucin Engin Fevzi Timucin Engin - - - - - -
Josefh Kamal Eskandar Josefh Kamal Eskandar - - - - - -
Goh Joo Chuan RIR 0.1 - - - - 0.01
Ho Chi Kit fi4 - - - - - -
Alan Stephen Jones Alan Stephen Jones 0.01 0.24 - - - 0.25
Roy Kuan Roy Kuan (E3C5) - - - - - -
Lee Seng Huang (& 0.01 - 6.53 8.25 0.23 15.02
Patrick Lee Seng Wei ZE 0.1 - - - - 0.01
Leung Pak To 28 0.1 - - - - 0.1
Ming Cheng iz 0.01 - - - - 0.01
Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter 0.01 0.18 - - - 0.19
Joseph Tong Tang’ L 0.02 - 244 225° 0.12 483
Peter Wong Man Kong 20 0.01 0.18 - - - 0.19
0.13 0.78 1.4 12.75 0.44 2551

Including Director’s fee of HK$0.01 million for Sun Hung Kai
Financial Limited (2010: Nil).

Including Director’s fee of HK$0.01 million for Sun Hung Kai
Financial Limited (2010: HK$0.01 million).

: A cash equivalent of HK$1.50 million Awarded Shares under
the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme is approved to be
granted in relation to the performance in 2011. In addition,
total amount of HK$0.05 million represents 12,000 shares
vested during the year.

A cash equivalent of HK$1.50 million Awarded Shares under
the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme is approved to be
granted in relation to the performance in 2011. In addition,
total amount of HK$0.61 million represents 93,000 shares
vested during the year.

The amount represents an actual cash bonus of HK$2.25
million for the year 2011 (2010: HK$0.51 million).

The amount represents an actual cash bonus of HK$2.25
million for the year 2011 (2010: HK$5.01 million).

Bonuses, which are recommended by the
remuneration committee and subsequently approved
by the Board, are discretionary and are determined
by reference to the Group's and the individuals’
performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, Mr. Ho
Chi Kit and Mr. Roy Kuan waived emolument of
HK$0.01 million each.

! BENEESCHARARINESHES001H
BBT(20104F : &) °

: BIENEECHARARMNESHL001H
EBIT(20104 : 0.01 EEBTT) ©

’ HAEM2011 F2BE  BEARTBERE
BRMEAFEMETHORODASERS
1.50 BBAB LM - BN B#BERO0.05
BEBITZ 12,000 A R ANEANFE -

‘ HER2011 F 2B DEERTIBERE
ERGEANEMBETFTHARNDAEERS
1.50 BE@BITZRG - B - HHRER0.61
BEBIILZ 93,000 BRERHAAFREE

’ EBEAE20N F2EBRGEL225588
HIL(20104 : 0.51 BEEBTT) ©

¢ WEBEA0MNFZERBERTL22558
#IC(20104F : 5.01 HEBTT) °

HFMEEeRaTHEREETSHE
ZIEAL - RBIBERALSEREREA
RIRMETE °

HE2011FE12A831BIEFE - A&
BEERENEXERESEREZHE A
0.01 B&BTT °
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HZE2011%F12A31BLLEE

9. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)

(a) Directors (continued)

9. EENEHABEME @

(a) ES(A)

2010
Salaries,
housing
and other
allowances Contributions
and benefits to retirement
inkind  Discretionary benefit
Diectors ~ Consultancy %42 BER bonuses scheme
fees fees  EftizEE HfEEs R Total
508 BRE BNl Tt BE )i i
HKS Millon —— HKSMilion — HKS Milion ~ HKS Milon ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon
REAT REAT AEET REET REET REAT
David Craig Bartlett AEE 001 017 - - - 018
Fevzi Timucin Engin Fevzi Timucin Engin 0.01 = = = — 0.01
Josefh Kamal Eskandar Josefh Kamal Eskandar — — - - — —
Goh Joo Chuan R 0.1 - - - = 0.1
Ho Chi Kit il = = = = = =
Alan Stephen Jones Alan Stephen Jones 0.01 0.22 - - - 0.3
Roy Kuan Roy Kuan (&30%) = = = = = =
Lee Seng Huang £ 001 - 478 12.00 0.11 16.90
Patrick Lee Seng Wei B 001 - - - - 001
Leung Pak To A 0.1 - - - = 0.1
Ming Cheng Hiz 001 - - - - 001
Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter 0.01 0.17 - - - 0.18
Joseph Tong Tang® gy 0.02 - 184 5.00 0.09 6.95
Peter Wong Man Kong T4 0.1 017 - - = 0.18
0.12 0.73 6.62 17.00 0.20 2467
! 162,000 shares granted to Mr. Tong under the SHK ‘ HE2010F 287 - M2011F4A13H

wEBEEEERNERTEMETELEN
f& 15 % 162,000 f% °

Employee Ownership Scheme on 13 April 2011 in relation to
the performance in 2010.
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9. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND 9. EERSABEME @)
SENIOR EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)
(b) Senior employees (b) BHEE

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
include one Director (2010: two Directors) of the
Company. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2010: three) senior employees are analysed below:

SEAANESMEALTBEE —REAR
RAIEE(2010F MBESF) #hTHM
#£(2010%F : =R)"HRBEME O
wmr

2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEBT BEBT

Salaries, housing and other allowances, e FEREMER
and benefits in kind EWFz= 7.8 9.9
Bonuses TE4L 17.1 15.7

Contributions to retirement benefit RIREFIFT S

scheme R 0.3 0.3
Incentive/commission BEES HE 25.2 19.8
50.4 45.7

9,000 shares were granted under the SHK Employee
Ownership Scheme to the remaining four highest
paid individuals of the Group during the year.
In addition, a total amount of HK$0.07 million
represents 11,000 shares which vested for the
remaining four highest paid individuals during
the year. The total dividend expenses paid to the
remaining four highest paid individuals during the
year is HK$0.02 million (2010: Nil).

Emoluments of the senior employees were within
the following bands:

HIEEEERGHEETE MR AT E
RTEBHTNESRBE 2 KD A
9,000 % o kAN + BHEEA0.07 B BB
TLZ 11,000 BN R EEEFE T 5%
THEEREE  RAFE ST TPzl
LERMBMEREAHE0NREEB T
(20104 : £&) o

SHRBEMeomMT

Emoluments band (HK$) Number of employees
< 5 (GB¥) EE A

2011 2010
$8,000,001 — $8,500,000 1 1
$9,000,001 — $9,500,000 2 —
$12,000,001 — $12,500,000 — 1
$23,000,001 — $23,500,000 1 —
$25,000,001 — $25,500,000 — 1
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 10. EE&ER

(a) Retirement Benefit Scheme (a) BIREETE
The principal retirement benefit schemes operated REEHETHEZRINGTEIBBBLE
by the Group related to defined contribution INIFERHEERE T 2R ERITERK
schemes for the Hong Kong and overseas offices’ =& o
qualifying employees.
The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in the HZE201MF12831BIEFE - B
course of the year ended 31 December 2011 was HRAERERAKRBHF S #H5850.8
HK$0.8 million (2010: HK$0.9 million). BEBIT(2010F : 0.9BBHET) °

(b) SHK Employee Ownership Scheme (“EQS") (b) #FBREERERGESTE(TEERDET

During the year, 1.8 million shares (2010: 1.2
million shares) of the Company were awarded to
selected grantees under the EOS. The fair value of
the services rendered as consideration of the shares
awarded during the year was HK$10.5 million
(2010: HK$8.3 million) which will be amortised
to the consolidated income statement during the
vesting period. The amount expensed during the
year was HK$9.0 million (2010: HK$9.2 million).

11. NET (LOSS) GAIN ON FINANCIAL

EH)

REZ IR B RMDET MR T EE A
BRAZEARRIRGA1.88 &/ (2010
F:1288R) - EREHRRBRERN
BTYTROAFERAFANAEI0588
BIt(20104F : 83 BEBIT)  BRE
BHRNGAEBRIEPEE - RAFR
T2 EA9.0BEBT(20104F 9.2
AEETT) °

M. BB ITAE(EE) R FE

INSTRUMENTS
2011 2010
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEBT
Net realised and unrealised profit on METAEEHBERALE
derivatives i ) F8 61.7 80.6
Net profit on dealing in leveraged foreign  EEXINE E &)@ F
currencies L] — 0.5
Net profit on other dealing activities HAth B B & s A5 58 3.0 4.4
Net realised and unrealised (loss) profit EERERSE LB RARTEIR
on trading in equity securities (E548) M A F 58 (122.7) 27.2
Net realised and unrealised (loss) profit REARATFEYETBEE
on financial assets designated as at fair BRI RA IR (EE)
value through profit or loss i A FE (74.3) 8.5
(132.3) 121.2
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12. BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS 12. REER
2011 2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBTT BEABT
Loans and advances to consumer finance  FAABMBEEE R &
customers K
— Reversal of impairment loss — BEEERE 54.2 109.3
— Impairment loss — REEE (218.7) (217.9)
(164.5) (108.6)
Trade and other receivables £ 8 N H b e AR
— Reversal of impairment loss — BEEERE — 1.9
— Impairment loss — BEEE (21.0) (2.9)
(21.0) (1.0)
— Bad debts recovery after written off — RN MEE R Y 1.3 —
— Bad debts written off — ERERHMI S (0.3) =
(20.0) (1.0)
(184.5) (109.6)
The amounts directly deducted from allowance of BEEERERBINRASBEILAVEERE
impairment against the loans and advances to consumer KRR LA Je 48 & B Bl FE M BR 2 BREE & il
finance customers and trade and other receivables were 527338 &8 L(2010%F : 2746 5 B /5
HK$273.3 million (2010: HK$274.6 million) and HK$27.6 L) R27.6B BHAET(2010F 1.7 B8
million (2010: HK$1.7 million) respectively (Notes 31 and 70) (FfsE31 & 33) ©
33).
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13. FINANCE COSTS 13. BE A
2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEER BEBTT
Interest on: FMER :
— Bank loans and overdrafts wholly — RAFAZHEERIRTT
repayable within five years & m&iﬁﬁi (91.7) (52.4)
— Bonds wholly repayable within five — RAFAZHEED
years EH (21.7) (6.6)
— Short-term loans included in amounts — BEERZMMEARIEERN
due to fellow subsidiaries M EE R (20.0) (25.3)
— Other borrowings wholly repayable — RAFAZHEENEM
within five years fEak (19.3) (20.4)
— Mandatory convertible notes — RAFAZEEERERGE
repayable within five years AMAAR R (3.1) 3.0)
Other borrowing costs HMEERA (4.5) 7.9)

(160.3)
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14. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 14. BRBL AR R

2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BBATT
Profit before taxation for the year has = FERBLAR A
been arrived at after charging: BBk :
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & (5.6) (4.9)
Amortisation of leasehold interests in S T
land R (0.4) (0.4)
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREEER (110.8) (81.2)
Depreciation of property and equipment  #%¥ kXK EITE (49.4) (40.9
Amortisation of intangible assets BiEELEE
— Computer software (included in — BB (REEEE
administrative expenses) EHA) (24.5) (11.4)
— Other intangible assets (included in — HthEREE(RETER
direct cost and operating expenses) ARG EERNA) (174.4) (174.7)
Commission expenses and sales EFEERBHETH
incentives to account executives and HeBEAK
certain staff EERE (143.5) (168.3)
Operating lease rentals Z2EHEHS
— Premises — FEHE (139.8) (116.7)
— Others — Efh (9.2) (8.6)
Outgoings in respect of investment KEMZE
properties i
— Non-rental generating properties — JERRENE S W (0.6) =
— Rental generating properties — BEESmE (0.9) (0.7)
Staff costs (including Directors’ EERA(BEEEHE -
emoluments but excluding BTBIE (a) RIS T
(a) contributions to retirement benefit STEIREFTEEREE
schemes and expenses recognised for AT BT
the SHK Employee Ownership Scheme RN ER &
and (b) commission expenses and sales b)EFEFPEERIHLETL
incentives to account executives and NELEHA
certain staff) REkBES) (605.8) (454.3)
Contributions to retirement benefit BIREAETE
schemes R (39.0) (25.3)
Expenses recognised for the SHK MR EEEROERRE
Employee Ownership Scheme FriER e & A (9.0) (9.2)
Net loss on disposal of equipment and HESERELEESE
intangible assets R (4.1) (3.7)
Impairment loss included in other BREEEMERARE
expenses &8
— Intangible assets — B EE — (1.0)
— Available-for-sale investments — AHEEERE (0.5) =
— Amounts due from associates — Bt AR RER (4.9) (0.3)
Share of taxation of associates and jointly — Fr{hEf < A &) & @2 5l
controlled entities NGIL R (6.9) (89.5)
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15. TAXATION 15. B8
2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BHEBTT ABBTT
Current tax & BT I8
— Hong Kong — &F (230.9) (236.6)
— Other jurisdictions — Hha)xi @ (53.1) (27.9)
(284.0) (264.5)
(Under) over provision in prior years AT BB (1 /2 ) B RE
— Hong Kong — &F (13.4) 9.1
— Other jurisdictions — Hha)xi @ 0.5 (0.5)
(296.9) (255.9)
Deferred tax (Note 28) EIEFETE (M 5E28)
— Current year — BFE 18.1 22.9
(278.8) (233.0)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
the relevant jurisdictions.

AR B A B

BB PG IR BAFE (1 B R FO% A%
TR 16.5% (20104 : 16.5%) s & o H
BI#% BB AR 4F [ {f 51 FE R 7R
mAl REEKEERE BRI AEAIRT
TREFHE -
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15. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 15. B (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit & E I8 BRAR S W s BR P R 5 A 1 T BR
before taxation per the consolidated income statement R
as follows:
2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT
Profit before taxation B B Bl Al 1,615.3 1,592.5
Less: Share of results of associates B FTRERE D T%Zi (17.1) (210.1)
Share of results of jointly controlled Frit LRSI A
entities e (6.2) (5.0)
1,592.0 1,377.4
Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of 2 & B K 16.5%

16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (20104 : 16.5%)EIFiIAE (262.7) (227.3)
(Under) over provision in prior years AT BB (12 ) B RE (12.9) 8.6
Tax effect of non-taxable income EERRRARR B E 53.6 35.6
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DRAMHIFE X AT IR 52 & (28.7) (50.8)
Tax effect of unrecognised deductible RERANTEEZERTE

temporary difference and tax losses RIRIAN R & (13.6) 4.0
Items/countries subject to different tax PRI Y

rates BEH/BXR (14.5) (3.1)

(278.8) (233.0)
The deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive REM =S AERREEHR BN T
income is as follows:
2011 2010

HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
HERET BEAET

Deferred tax for revaluation gains on MESEEE
properties ERERIE — (2.1)
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16. DIVIDENDS 16. RE
2011 2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEER AEBTT
The aggregate amount of dividends paid S R ERRIZE
and proposed: 4aF
— 2010 special dividend equivalent to — 2010 F R EEREE
HK201.3 cents per share 201.3781l —_ 3,527.0
— 2011 interim dividend paid of HK10 — Bf12011 £ HREERIK
cents (2010: HK10 cents) per share 1078120104 : 10784L) 211.7 174.9
— 2011 final dividend of HK10 cents — REEREEIK 2011 FRE
(2010: HK18 cents) per share proposed &% B &K 10 #1L(2010
after the end of the reporting period & 18) 210.8 319.6
422.5 4,021.5
2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBRT BEBTT
Dividends recognised as distribution RAF A HER /37 KA
during the year: A& B
— 2010 special dividend equivalent to — 2010 F R EBREE
HK201.3 cents per share 201.3781l — 3,527.0
— 2010 final dividend of HK18 cents — 2010 F REIRR B BAUK
(2009: HK16 cents) per share 1871l (20094F : 1678(l) 319.6 280.3
— 2011 interim dividend paid of HK10 — 2011 FFHR EERIK
cents (2010: HK10 cents) per share 108U (20104 : 10784L) 211.7 174.9
531.3 3,982.2
The 2011 final dividend is subject to approval by the 20N EREIREBRERRERANGRITHA
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. FERBE RS FHLE - 2011 FRHAR B A5 A
The 2011 final dividend will be paid in the form of scrip, R EFNIRE - REAISEEHH 2 HRE
with the shareholders being given an option to elect IZIZIWEVIR & o

cash in respect of part or all of such dividend.
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

17. EIREF
A TR FEAS 2 SRR R 58 B A Jh IR

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on THEtE -
the following information:
2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET BEATT
Earnings ZR
Earnings for the purposes of basic AUt EERK
earnings per share and diluted BERBI KRG
earnings per share (profit for the B RF 2 B
year attributable to owners of the (RR B FENS
Company) EFEE ) 1,032.4 1,087.0
2011 2010
Million Million
Shares Shares
BER ASK
Number of shares IR &
Weighted average number of ordinary AT E SRR EA
shares for the purposes of basic A HYEm AR Nt
earnings per share T IR 2,113.7 1,914.0
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEEE BT
shares: Tl
— Warrants — RARHEE — —
— Shares held for the SHK Employee — BB EEERMNEAS
Ownership Scheme &M FA B GH — —
Weighted average number of ordinary RUAGTE SREE R T &
shares for the purposes of diluted AR N AE 1
earnings per share AR s 2,113.7 1,914.0
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWF
Group
58
2011 2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEER BEAT
Fair value AFE
At 1 January R1HA1B 288.4 130.1
Exchange adjustments b B 5.6 5.3
Transfer from leasehold interests in land EREHE THhERMN
and property and equipment LEYSE Y] 255.1 169.8
Transfer to property and equipment BT R FAE (27.7) (22.1)
Increase in fair value recognised in the iR & W e AR R R
consolidated income statement ANEEHE N 192.6 5.3
At 31 December ®12H31H 714.0 288.4
Analysed as: DA
— Medium-term lease properties in — REBZHHHEE
Hong Kong e 589.0 159.4
— Medium-term lease properties outside ~ — R/ESN 2 HATHE
Hong Kong e 125.0 129.0
714.0 288.4
(a) During the year, the Group reclassified certain (@) RAFE AREEREETUWER

owner-occupied properties with a total carrying
amount of HK$109.1 million (2010: HK$32.3
million) to investment properties due to the fact
that the usage of the properties had been changed
to being held for lease out and the Group ended its
occupation. A fair value gain on the date of transfer
of HK$146.0 million (2010: HK$137.5 million) was

recognised in the revaluation reserve.

BEHEARYFEILIER  FALER
B0 EZEEREMAE109.1BEB T
(20104 : 323 BEBIL) 2B AWM
EREWE RERBRBZAFEKEE
146.0 8 & # 7T(20104 : 137.58 &
BIL) R BEMEE -
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTINUED)

(b)

(©)

The investment properties were valued on the
date of the transfer and at the reporting dates by
Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer, not connected with the Group.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.
Particulars of the investment properties at 31
December 2011 were:

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

18. REW ¥ (@)

(b) BEMEREEEERENBE LA AR
BEGHEMTHERTIHEERAR R
HEAREE AT - ZHEUBED
(¥R GEBIEHNTEREERRE - 84
PIER2011F 12 AT HZERNT ¢

Location Classification Term of lease Interest

3 3k =5l FHAOH xR

11/F, Tian An Centre, No. 338 Nanjing Road West, Commercial 2044 100%
Huangpu District, Shanghai, the PRC

R EEEBEERAK338HRELFLAE 111 EES

Room 1901, 19/F, Tian An Centre, No. 338 Commercial 2044 100%
Nanjing Road West, Huangpu District, Shanghai,
the PRC

R EEEBERERAK338HRLF LAE 191 EES
1901 =

2001 in Eastern Block and 2002 in Western Block, Industrial 2052 100%
Phase Il, Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park, Futian
District, Shenzhen, the PRC

R BRI T AR B R YR 22 i3 2 B 2 2001 T
= {E 2002 F

2201, 2201A and 2202, 22/F, Tower |, Admiralty Commercial 2053 100%
Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

BREERBE185EEF N 12212201 » 2201A [EES
N 2202 F

8/F, Tower Il, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Commercial 2053 100%
Hong Kong

BEERBI18TEEFT 2 E8IE EES

11/F, Tower Il, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Commercial 2053 100%
Road, Hong Kong

BEERBISTEEF L 2E11E EES

At the end of the reporting period, investment
properties with a total carrying value of HK$668.9
million (31/12/2010: HK$232.1 million) was pledged
as security for the Group’s bank loans.

(0 REEHB  BERTRITEASERITE
RERmOEEYERMA4RE 5 668.9
A &8 % t(2010F 12 A318 : 232.1
BEBIT) °
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19. LEASEHOLD INTERESTS IN LAND 19. HE Lz

Group
%

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT BEBT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong ERBAINHE T
— Medium-term lease — FREIHE 10.2 10.1
— Short-term lease — RHHEE 0.2 0.3
10.4 10.4
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RS B MFTER S 4T -
— Non-current assets — SEMEBEE 10.0 10.0
— Current assets (Note 33) — B EE (K1EE33) 0.4 0.4
10.4 10.4
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20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 20. MERKE
Group
=M
Furniture
and
Property equipment Total
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET BEET
Cost R{E
At 1 January 2010 201041 A1 H 197.9 215.5 413.4
Exchange adjustments b B 0.7 0.8 1.5
Additions B — 76.8 76.8
Transfer from investment HEEHRE
properties S 22.1 — 22.1
Transfer to investment properties EERSREYE (34.1) — (34.1)
Disposals & — (11.0) (11.0)
At 31 December 2010 M2010F12 A31H 186.6 282.1 468.7
Exchange adjustments bE X SR 2.7 2.7 5.4
Additions B — 85.0 85.0
Transfer from investment HERRE
properties LJES 27.7 — 27.7
Transfer to investment properties B I A (123.2) — (123.2)
Disposals & — (57.6) (57.6)
At 31 December 2011 M2011412 A31H 93.8 312.2 406.0
Accumulated depreciation and ZBHER
impairment RiE
At 1 January 2010 M2010F1 H1H 26.6 138.1 164.7
Exchange adjustments P& 5 A% 0.1 0.6 0.7
Depreciation provided for the year =R EEE 4.4 36.5 40.9
Transfer to investment properties HBESIEYHE (4.9) — (4.9)
Eliminated on disposals o ET 8 — (7.3) (7.3)
At 31 December 2010 M2010F12 A31H 26.2 167.9 194.1
Exchange adjustments P& 5 A% 0.2 1.3 1.5
Depreciation provided for the year R EEHE 1.8 47 .6 49.4
Transfer to investment properties HBESIREYHE (14.1) — (14.1)
Eliminated on disposals o ET 8 — (45.5) (45.5)
At 31 December 2011 M2011F12A31H 14.1 171.3 185.4
Carrying amount at 31 December 2011412 A31H
2011 AREE 79.7 140.9 220.6
Carrying amount at 31 December 2010612 H31H
2010 AREE 160.4 114.2 274.6
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

20. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (conTiNnUED)  20. ¥ ¥R %8 &)
Analysis of the carrying amount of the properties: MEZRHRESTNOT :

Group
£8
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT BEATT

Medium-term lease in Hong Kong REBZPHHEME 10.1 119.5
Medium-term lease outside Hong Kong RgsNz R EARE Y% 69.3 40.5
Short-term lease outside Hong Kong RBIN FEEREE Y 0.3 0.4
79.7 160.4
At 31 December 2011, no properties were pledged 2011412 A31 8 » WEEFIEETFRT
as security for the Group’s bank loans (31/12/2010: EREERHARITERNERM(201054 12

HK$109.1 million). HA31H :109.1B&ABTT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

21.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B EE
Group
e
Computer software
Exchange HE
Club participation Internally Customer Web
membership rights ~ Acquired  developed  Trade mark relationship domain Total
EfeR RAMSEE BA REER [ EFBf ) ag
HKS Million ~ HK$ Millon ~ HK$ Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BERT BEAT BEATL BEAT BEAT BERT
Cost RE
At 1 January 2010 R201051A18 5.0 26 989 30.2 875.0 1,1540 780 2437
Additions bl - - 147 48 - - - 195
At 31 December 2010 R2010512A318 50 26 113.6 35.0 875.0 1,154.0 780 2,263.2
Additions bl = = 103 263 — - — 36.6
Disposals HE - - (92) - - - - (92)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E124318 5.0 26 1147 613 875.0 1,154.0 780 22906
Accumulated amortisation ~ ZEEHR
and impairment HE
At 1 January 2010 R201051518 12 1.1 345 29 70 809.6 3.1 889.4
Amortisation charged for REERH
the year EH — — 103 1.1 — 167.9 6.8 186.1
Impairment loss HEEE - - - - - 10 — 10
At 31 December 2010 R2010512 4318 12 1.1 4438 40 70 9785 39.9 10765
Amortisation charged for REERH
the year i - - 198 47 - 167.7 6.7 198.9
Eliminated on disposals (i - - (83) - - - - (83)
At 31 December 2011 R2011%E12A318 1.2 1.1 56.3 8.7 7.0 1,146.2 46.6 1,267.1
Carrying amount at 011124318
31 December 2011 HaE 38 1.5 58.4 52,6 868.0 78 314 1,0235
Carrying amount at 20105124318
31 December 2010 e 38 1.5 68.8 31.0 868.0 175.5 38.1 1,186.7
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

21.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. BEEE @)
The intangible assets of the Company are as follows: KRB ZBEEEERT
Company
PN

2011 2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEERT BEBT

Club membership, at cost BgERE
At 1 January and 31 December W1A1TBR12A31H 2.1 2.1

Accumulated impairment ZERE

At 1 January and 31 December M1A1TBR12A31H (1.0) (1.0)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31 BEREE 1.1 1.1

Other than the club membership, exchange participation BTEeMeE XS MBEEREERSR
rights and the trade mark, which have indefinite useful EBEEERHRE  EUNETEER TNV EBE
lives, the intangible assets are amortised on a straight- R DA B 45 8 55 SR 4
line basis over the following periods:
Acquired computer software 3 - 5 years B A E RSB 3 _ 54
Internally developed computer software 5 - 10 years A6 R B 1 E RS B 5- 104
Customer relationship 5.4 years = =% 544
Web domain 10 years 4913 104
22. GOODWILL 22.BE
Group
58
2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEERT AEBT
Cost R{E
At 1 January and 31 December R1A1BEX12A31H 2,384.0 2,384.0
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23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

For impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2011 were
allocated as follows:

23.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

B

BB RRA NSRS
EE S RERSE

MR2011F12 A31 HREERRAERTEER
HRENEFEESDEN TR EELEEN
EERERS :

%

Goodwill Trade Mark
weE g

31/12/2011 31/12/2010 31/12/2011 31/12/2010

HKS$ Million HK$ Million  HKS$ Million HK$ Million

BHEBETRT BEABT BEAR BEAT
United Asia Finance RIFATE D
Limited ("UAF") in m§ENIWE

“Consumer Finance” HBBERA
segment = gWJ) 2,384.0 2,384.0 868.0 868.0

The recoverable amount of UAF, a cash-generating
unit, represents the value in use at 31 December 2011
based on a business valuation report on the UAF group
prepared by an independent qualified professional
valuer, Norton Appraisals Limited. It is based on a five-
year performance projection and certain key assumptions
(updated with latest market data) including an average
growth rate of 10.1% from 2012 to 2016 (2010: 12.7%
from 2011 to 2015), a sustainable growth rate of 3.0%
beyond 2016 (2010: 4.5% beyond 2015), and a discount
rate of 15.4% (2010: 10.0%) to determine the value in
use. The recoverable amount of UAF was determined to
be in excess of its net carrying amount.

The management believes that possible changes in any
of the above assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of UAF to exceed its recoverable amount.

£ {2 ) # A] Y (Bl B
R B R AF S

HEB(—EREELES
EENBUAEREEAEMT
ERARAMBENEBGHERSHES
BEBR201MF12A3MBZEREE-
FREESEARAFXERERETEER
RARE M HEIEERN) - 235K 2012
F FE2016F & F 1518 & %£10.1% (2010
F 2011 F E2015%F 512.7%) * 2016 4F
B E I EE R E3.0% (20104 : 20154
% B4.5%) K BHIE T 15.4% (2010 -
10.0%) ~ Bt & B e ] W B (B 2T AKX
REREFE -

R BRSBTS YT R3IHK
B B OB (R B L AT M L1
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

24 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

24. B A EIRERS

Company
RAT

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BHEBTT AEBT

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRR S RE 4,039.0 4,339.4
Less: impairment o ORE (48.1) (49.0)
3,990.9 4,290.4

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2011 are shown in Note 50.

25.INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

201112 A31 BN EZEH BRI E L

iy
PAMIEE 50 ©

25. E N AR

Group
58

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEER BEBTT
Carrying amount of unlisted associates JELEMEE A RIREE 60.7 60.6
Less: impairment B ORE (4.0) (4.0)
56.7 56.6

(a)

The summarised financial information of associates (@) U TABERAFN2011F12A31H
at 31 December 2011 was as follows: MY BERBE -
2011 2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ABBT
Total revenue UGz 470.1 1,795.8
Total profit for the year EEEm N B R 82.5 603.1
Group’s share of profit or loss of SEMEHEAREEE
associates for the year & ) 2k 1R 17.1 210.1
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25.INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

25 Bt N TR (®)

(@) (continued) (a) (&
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
AEET BEBTT
Total assets BEE 1,231.7 1,269.6
Total liabilities BEE (1,214.0) (1,258.9)
Group's share of net assets of associates &£ B Fr{EHE N TEEE 56.7 56.6

(b) Particulars of the principal associates at 31 (b) M2011F12A31BEHETEHZ R A
December 2011 are shown in Note 51. AR ENMIEES o
26.INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26. L EEGH A R ER
ENTITIES
Group
5
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BAEET BEATT
Cost of investment in unlisted jointly IE TR HEEHEHIA A
controlled entities B AN 108.0 109.0
Share of post-acquisition reserves Frik Uk g 1% e 14.1 7.4
Carrying amount of unlisted jointly FE T FEH A R
controlled entities BRI B 122.1 116.4

Particulars of the jointly controlled entities at 31
December 2011 are shown in Note 52.

2011412 A 31 B HERESH AR &R 5

RHFFES2 »
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

26.INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26. L EESA T @)
ENTITIES (coNTINUED)
The summarised financial information in respect of the TR ABBEBR AR EFTE 2 HERZE
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities which N B ERBE
are accounted for using equity method is set out as
follows:
2011 2010

HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAT ABBT

Income WA 19.8 17.5
Expenses 2 A (14.0) (12.5)
Other comprehensive income Hoth 2 E W a — —

31/12/2011  31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BHERER BEAET

Current assets mEEE 126.9 224.4
Non-current assets EMBNE E 8.0 8.9
Current liabilities mEIBE (11.6) (116.9)

Non-current liabilities EmBAEE — —
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27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

27. [ HERE

Group
L]
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBERT BEAT
Listed equity investments issued by BAEEETH EMRERE
corporate entities, at quoted price EmE
— Listed in Hong Kong — E&EBLEM — 0.9
— Listed outside Hong Kong — EEBAIN £ 31.0 458
31.0 46.7
Unlisted equity investments issued by B EITHIIE E T ARHE
corporate entities ®E
— Hong Kong shares, at cost less — BERG - RIRER
impairment BE 0.4 0.4
— Overseas shares (primarily in South — BHINRG (EEEBERE
Asia engaging in hotel management BIEERER) - RIRER
business), at cost less impairment B 211.3 174.2
— Macau shares, at fair value — BFIRG - BRAFE 42.3 51.7
— Shares in overseas investment funds, — JBIMEEEL D
at fair value E /NS 31.2 19.1
316.2 292.1

Available-for-sale investments are intended to be held
for a continuing strategic or long-term purpose.

As there are no sufficient market comparables as input
to measure the fair value reliably, some of the unlisted
equity investments are measured at cost less impairment.
The fair value of the Macau shares was established by
using discount cash flow method with a discount rate at
prevailing prime interest rate. The fair value of shares in
overseas investment funds are established by reference
to the prices quoted by respective fund administrators as
these equity securities may be redeemed at the request
by the holders based on such quoted prices.

Further details on financial risk management of available-
for-sale investments are disclosed in Note 56.

FAEAHOERENBN - RIERIHEMR
g RS R EIRE -

HRMERA SEHEFEATFENES RN S
BABBY TR - BN L TIRERER
RRERBETE - RFIROH 2 AFERE
RBITREBNERZFRBAERITEFE -
HRBIMNRERE S RN 2 FHE AR RIZIEREE
HEEEANREMERED - ZRHOAF
BEZHIETD2EZERE -

AHEERENS R EAREENHMES6H
HE— TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. IEIERIIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets and UTASEEHRAZFTZELCHEEERS
liabilities of the Group recognised and movements BERERRNEMEFEEHED :

thereon during the current and prior years:

Group
%8
Undistributed
Provisions earnings
Accelerated and  Revaluation  Unrealised  and others
depreciation  impairment  of assets profit ~ RAKEF  Taxlosses Total

NEFE  EERWE BEEf  ARBEER REf FARE o
HKS Million  HK$ Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BERT BEAT BEET AEAT BEAT BEAT BERT

At 1 January 2010 R2010F1 418 (194) 104.0 (226.5) (4.4) (8.2) 43 (150.2)
Exchange adjustments A% (0.1) 0.5 (0.7) 0.2) (0.1) 0.1 (0.5)
Recognised in consolidated  RFAMERHER
income statement (Note 15)  (Ff&15) 2.1) 45) 276 (2.0 15 24 29
Recognised in other REMEERER
comprehensive income %3 - - 2.1) - — — 2.)
At 31 December 2010 R2010%12A31A (21.6) 100.0 (201.7) (6.6) (6.8) 6.8 (129.9)
Exchange adjustments A% (0.1) 0.9 (1.0) (0.4) — 0.5 (0.1)
Recognised in consolidated A& MERRRER
income statement (Note 15) ~ (Ff&15) 4.1) (1.6) 45 (6.8) 06 55 18.1
At 31 December 2011 R201E12A318 (25.8) 99.3 (178.2) (13.8) (6.2) 128 (111.9)
For reporting purposes, certain deferred tax assets and VERBRERH  BETEERBEEAEHEGE
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis BEES c LM EIEAREBENZER
of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial EER BT

reporting purposes:

Group
=8
31/12/2011 31/12/2010 1/1/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET BEATT BEATT

Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE B 92.7 941 100.5
Deferred tax liabilities BEETIBEE (204.6) (224.0) (250.7)

(111.9) (129.9) (150.2)
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION (CoNTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unrecognised deductible temporary differences
of HK$1.6 million (31/12/2010: HK$1.7 million)
and unrecognised tax losses of HK$820.1 million
(31/12/2010: HK$720.0 million) available to offset
against future profits. The deductible temporary
difference and tax losses have not been recognised as it
is uncertain that there will be sufficient future taxable
profits available for the utilisation of these temporary
differences. The unrecognised tax losses included a sum
of HK$3.7 million (31/12/2010: HK$3.2 million) that will
expire from 2012 to 2015.

The Group also had unrecognised taxable temporary
differences arising from investment in PRC subsidiaries
of HK$277.4 million at the end of the reporting
period (31/12/2010: HK$111.5 million). The taxable
temporary differences have not been recognised as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

All the temporary differences of the Company (arising
from unused tax losses) are recognised as deferred tax
assets and the movements during the current and prior
years are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

28. IEIEBLIE ()

REEH SEAAERUNREE =5
16 @EET(20105E12 3180 - 1 7AS&HT) *
T Al K 8 R 2R 0m A B R ME SR A 15 820.1 B
&8 (2010512 A31H : 720.0F & /&
JL) e AR ARABEFETE R R E B HIE R A
Bl IEEZEEEEENEA - HZEA
MR =B RRET AR - BIEEARE
RIFEAF3.7EBEBLIHE010F 12 A
318 :3.28 88 7L) 88 K2012%F £2015
FEREIE -

EBREN T RN E QR INE RERER
HETRZEZ RNEERAR2774BE A T
(20105128318 : 1M1 5@A&BBT) ° B
REB T EREREER =20 UK
RERENRTIERA R RYEE - ZER
FRAS B R =0 R TR o

AARFARER=ZAREES) RERE
FLEFRIBEE - ZEERANFNEFEHE
E N

Company
PN

2011 2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET BEBT
Balance at 1 January 1H1 B&TF 0.4 —
Recognised in profit or loss R R (0.4) 0.4
Balance at 31 December 12 A31 B&7F — 0.4




208

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) 29. B AR (E)ER

SUBSIDIARIES

Company
P NN
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT AEBT
Amounts due from subsidiaries IEINEIDNES 7,255.5 4,226.5
Less: allowance for impairment o ORE RS (318.1) (357.3)
6,937.4 3,869.2
Less: current portion B RENER S (684.4) —
Non-current portion* JERENEL D * 6,253.0 3,869.2
* After taking into account the expected settlement period, the * NEEFEHERERE  EAHBARXKEL S

amounts due from subsidiaries are not expected to be repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period and the
balance is therefore shown as non-current.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
repayable on demand, and non-interest bearing
except for a sum of HK$1,381.3 million (31/12/2010:
HK$2,162.8 million) bearing interest at rates ranging
from 2% to HIBOR plus 2%. The Company assesses
at year-end whether there is objective evidence that
the amounts due from subsidiaries are impaired. The
impairment is made if and only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss

EFAERRI2EARNEE  ZAEKREMmIIRIER
PR -

bR4BER1,381.3B8HBL(20105F 12 A 31
H:2,1628E 8B T)MREZNEFE
(2% ZEBBRITRAEREM2%) © B
RERERTVEERE  ERANEEREE -
AR ERKTEWNBRAAIRESRAR
BURERE - BEREEATERTEE
EREREFANE BEXZHEBESHEH
E(BIEFEEERE)  HREMNBARMN
RRGFHEESTREAFE - WAl LAR SEHTE

events including unsustainable operating losses occurring o UTARERENES :
and having an impact in the estimated future cash
flows of subsidiaries that can be reliably estimated. The
movements in the allowance for impairment were as
follows:
Company
ARATF
2011 2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
ER- Yo BEATT
At 1 January W1HA1A (357.3) (357.3)
Amounts recognised in profit or loss Bz TR 2 S5 39.2 =
At 31 December 12 A31H (318.1) (357.3)
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29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

29. B ARX(E)ER#@)

Company
¥ N

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

HKS$ Million  HK$ Million

BEET AEET
Gross amount of impaired advances to BREMNRBARREZ

subsidiaries R{E 788.2 756.7

Less: allowance for impairment B BB R (318.1) (357.3)
Net carrying amount of impaired BREMNKBARKREZ

advances to subsidiaries REVFE 470.1 399.4

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
repayable on demand and non-interest bearing.

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

MEBARERDERR BRIREENRS

=i

5

30. BtE DA A X

Group Company
55 RAFE

31/12/2011 31/12/2010  31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS Million  HK$ Million HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBTT BEBTT BHEBT BEBAT
Amounts due from associates B N B R ER 94.0 95.6 60.2 60.0
Less: allowance for impairment 3 : F/ERE (30.2) (25.3) (4.9) —
63.8 70.3 55.3 60.0
Less: current portion B OmENE S (12.5) (14.1) (0.9) (0.8)
51.3 56.2 54.4 59.2

Further details of amounts due from associates are
disclosed in Note 39.

BRFREZ FERM 39— S

e
IS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

The impairment is recognised when there is objective
evidence of impairment (such as unsustainable operating
loss) after the Group’s evaluation of the collectibility
of amounts due from associates. Movements of the
impairment during the year are as follows:

30. Bi& A AR BR (%)

BB IR 5 [ R Bt & 1 ) R BR O IR SR RE
% BERBERESRER(WNHELEBER)E
HHER < BERBERAFZEBMT

HKS$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBTT BEBTT BEBT BEBT

Group Company
%8 AAF
2011 2010 2011 2010

At 1 January E’W A1H (25.3) (25.0) — —
Amounts recognised in profit RERFHERZ
or loss e (4.9) (0.3) (4.9) =
At 31 December K12 A31H (30.2) (25.3) (4.9) —
Group Company
£H RAT
31/12/2011 31/12/2010  31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEATT BEBT BEBT BEBTL
Gross amount of impaired BRER S A A
advances to associates REEZ RIE 82.5 82.3 59.3 —
Less: allowance for impairment & : Fl{ERE (30.2) (25.3) (4.9) =
Net carrying amount of impaired A Ri{ERIEZ A &)
advances to associates RERZ BRERE 52.3 57.0 54.4 —
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31.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

3. MAMBEFERRBRK

Group
56
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT BEBT
Loans and advances to consumer finance FAABBEEERL
customers IR 7,961.8 5,923.2
Less: impairment allowance R E R
— Individually assessed — B (0.1) (0.3)
— Collectively assessed — A (405.6) (458.4)
7,556.1 5,464.5
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RS B ETER AT -
— Non-current assets — ERBEE 2,972.6 2,291.9
— Current assets — RBEE 4,583.5 3,172.6
7,556.1 5,464.5
Movements of allowance for impairment during the year PATR AR B R E gy
were as follows:
Group
-
2011 2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAR ABBT
At 1 January m1HA1H (458.7) (567.5)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 % (1.4) (0.7)
Amounts deducted directly from loans BEERMATBER
and advances to consumer finance EFREBFTHR2
customers £ 273.3 274.6
Amounts recognised in consolidated RERE W RER Z
income statement £ (164.5) (108.6)
Recoveries of amount previously WEIAFEBEER
deducted directly from loans and LA R P
advances to consumer finance B3 kB
customers kg 2 SR8 (54.4) (56.5)
At 31 December ®12A31H (405.7) (458.7)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

31. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER 31.
FINANCE CUSTOMERS (conTINUED)

Certain loans and advances are secured by properties. All
the loans and advances bear interest at market interest
rates.

The loans and advances to consumer finance customers
have been reviewed by the Consumer Finance division
to assess impairment allowances which are based on the
evaluation of collectibility, ageing analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection statistics
of individually significant accounts or a portfolio of
accounts on a collective basis.

A BEFERRER (#)

ETERRBRIUNEIERER  FEE
HR KRG TIRFE -

AR BHEEMLABBEFER LR
o RMEREREETIE  FEERS
AU EMERE - Rk DT R EEEHE - B2
REYABEFSAERAGEFABNEE
SR EWGREUE -

Group
£8
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT BEATT

individual assessment ERZRE
Less: loans impairment allowance under ¥ : B i ERE
individual assessment SE B

under individual assessment ZIREFE

Gross amount of impaired loans under BB AR E

Net carrying amount of impaired loans BB E I B R EER

1.2 2.0
(0.1) (0.3)
1.1 1.7

The following is an ageing analysis for the loans and
advances to consumer finance customers that were past
due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired:

AT RRERE A aRBERENLAMS
BEFPEREBROREDIT :

Group
%
31/12/2011  31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET BEETT

Less than 31 days past due BERD 31K
31 - 60 days 31 — 60K
61 — 90 days 61 — 90K
Over 90 days 90 R E

437.8 261.5
98.4 39.0
119.4 19.6
60.1 81.0

715.7 401.1
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31.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (conTINUED)

The amount and type of collateral required depend
on an assessment of the credit risk of the customer or
counterparty.

The main types of collateral and credit enhancement
obtained are as follows:

— for personal lending, mortgages over residential
properties; and

— for commercial lending, corporate guarantees,
charges over real estate properties, pledge of shares
or debentures over the borrower’s assets.

In general, the loans and advances which are granted
on a secured basis, are made to the consumer finance
customers with sufficient amount of collateral provided
by them. Management requests additional collateral
as appropriate in accordance with the underlying
agreements, and monitors the market value of collateral
during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for
impairment losses.

Estimate of fair value of collateral are based on the fair
value of collateral determined using valuation techniques
commonly used for the corresponding assets at the time
of borrowing.

For the secured loans and advances to consumer finance
customers with the carrying amount of HK$760.5
million (2010: HK$307.1 million), the fair values of the
collaterals of such can be objectively ascertained to cover
the outstanding amount of the loan balances.

The carrying amounts of the loans and advances to
consumer finance customers approximate their fair
values.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

3. MAMEEFERRBRE)

ERmHRERENBRRTALELPRY
FEOEERRBNARMNE o

ESNERRIEEERERIE/NUTE

Pin

— BEAERNZRBERSEEDE K

— BAXREFNERRARER  HED
% BEERSAERAZBEERRE
MIEZF -

—RME - AEREERENEERBRE
RHGEERAHSENERRILATBR
F - BEES HEHERRERSEZRKENER
m - WRREREBRREN TN IERER
ERmAHE -

AR ERRZ A FERENREERIAER
BERDAEENERR A FEMEE -

LA BEFRENEEFERRBREE
ME A£760.58 & /& ;L(20104F : 307.1 &
EXT) HEHRMNATEIREREEA
EHENREENERLER °

FAA B TSRS BRI B3R R (6 ) B0
AT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

32%%%%%%@$Eﬂﬁ%%ﬁ

Group
55
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEBTT
Held for trading investments, BEEERE  EME
at quoted price
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong EEB LEMHRERS
— Issued by corporate entities — BT 173.5 157.8
— Issued by banks — HERITET 94.7 176.9
— Issued by public utility entities — HAEKEBET 1.2 0.2
Equity securities issued by corporate R EFIT 2B LT AR
entities listed outside Hong Kong B 124.1 73.3
Warrants, futures and options listed in EEE TR RIRER
Hong Kong A % B 1.3 6.0
Unlisted bonds FEMESH 23.8 53.4
418.6 467.6
Held for trading investments, BIEEERE  RATHE
at fair value
Equity and currency over the counter HBINEE 2 IREREEITAE
derivatives THA 1.5 —
Unlisted Hong Kong options IE TR E A A — 3.2
Unlisted overseas warrants and options  3E T H)/E SN R RE 5 K Hide 0.1 0.9
Unlisted bonds ETES 33.8 31.2
354 35.3
Investments designated as at fair BEREATFEIIRL B
value through profit or loss issued BITHRE » RAVE
by corporate entities, at fair value
Unlisted overseas redeemable convertible 3E & 754N A & [0 7] &
securities k2 50.0 —
Equity securities in unlisted overseas IE FTEIMRE RS B REE
investment funds B 268.7 138.6
318.7 138.6
772.7 641.5
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AHRE B RFTER DT -
— Non-current assets — FRBEE 236.7 —
— Current assets — REBEE 536.0 641.5
772.7 641.5

Further information of the fair values of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed in Note

55.

BRWERIEAFEIENYBEEATE
Z BRI FE 55 R — I -
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33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

33. FE R HAb R WU AR

Group
L]
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBERT BEAT
Trade receivables — accounts receivable K& EWEE — XS - K42 Kk
from exchanges, brokers and clients = e YR 843.3 1,145.5
Less: impairment allowance R E R (19.3) (2.8)
824.0 1,142.7
Secured term loans BHEMEEER 1,021.4 705.2
Less: impairment allowance B R E R (56.6) (56.6)
964.8 648.6
Margin loans 78 5 UK 4,343.0 4,524.3
Less: impairment allowance R E R (66.0) (87.8)
4,277.0 4,436.5
Consideration receivable for the disposal A _E 785 e A & LA HA
of held for trading investments secured  {Ei& 2 HERFIEE TR AR
by listed shares repayable by instalment (& — 123.7
Deposits e 66.8 29.4
Dividend receivable on behalf of clients &5 U EL 2 fE U A% B 51.9 32.8
Claims from counter parties, receivable  [AIZ ¥ F 7 =K -
from sale proceeds and other FEWHERE R
receivables HAth e U B 149.1 233.8
Less: impairment allowance R E R — (1.3)
Less: non-current portion of other R H A EUAR 2 JERED
receivables o) (7.8) (3.1)
260.0 415.3
Trade and other receivables at e R H A AR - R SH 1A
amortised cost %N 6,325.8 6,643.1
Prepayments A& 19.5 32.9
Current portion of leasehold interests HE TSRS
in land (Note 19) (MtsE19) 0.4 0.4
6,345.7 6,676.4
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables
is after netting off the following impairment allowances:

3. REREMEWRE)

RERHEMEWERZREED MRIA TEZ
BB -

Secured
Trade term loans Margin Other
receivables BHEA loans  receivables Total
TEERE BHER BENF Hit kR g
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million  HKS$ Million
BE%R BEBER B8R BEBET BEBR
At 1 January 2010 2201051518 (32) (56.6) (87.8) 27) (150.3)
Exchange adjustments AR — — — 1.1 1.1
Amounts written off S 17 — _ _ 17
Amounts recognised in the RiEa K RER .
consolidated income statement #E (13) — — 03 (1.0
At 31 December 2010 R2010%12A31H (2.8) (56.6) (87.8) (1.3) (148.5)
Amounts written off SR - - 26.3 13 21.6
Amounts recognised in the RiEa K RER 2
consolidated income statement e (16.5) — (4.5) = (21.0)
At 31 December 2011 R2011% 128318 (19.3) (56.6) (66.0) — (141.9)

Impairment loss on trade receivables, margin loans,
term loans and other receivables is recognised in the
consolidated income statement after proper review
by the Credit Control Department or the Credit and
Executive Committees of the Company, based on the
latest status of trade receivables, margin loans, term
loans and other receivables, and the latest announced
or available information about the underlying collateral
held.

RARAEESEBMAXKEEZE G LRT
ZEQEEHERLERUE  FEFH
BHERREMEREROBERE(RELE
FEM PR « FE AR - A BIE SR E Al e AR
B RFIENR&H A FE WA BER M
MER)  MEEARERBIER  NEREE kS
AR RER



Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2011 2 ’l 7
IREBR AT o 2011FFIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 33. RERH MW AR @)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables e HMEKENERELNZENRNE AT
at amortised cost approximate their fair values. (ER
Group
28
3171272011 31122010
Gross Net carrying Gross Net carrying
amountof  Individually ~ amountof  amountof  Individually  amount of
impaired assessed impaired impaired assessed impaired
advances allowances advances advances  allowances advances

BREER Buif DEEER  CHEER Budt  EREER
R ikt ZREFE LR Ll CEEEE

HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Millon ~ HKS Millon ~ HK$ Million
BE#T BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT AEAT

Impaired trade and other receivables BV AT A HERNLE

under individual assessment AR
— Trade receivables — R 1017 (193) 82.4 29 (28) 0.1
— Secured term loans — BEREHER 58.1 (56.6) 15 58.1 (56.6) 15
— Margin loans — BENE 178.8 (66.0) 1128 184.5 (87.8) 9.7
— Other receivables — RftElR - - - 13 (13 =
338.6 (141.9) 196.7 2468 (148.5) 9.3
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables T AR BB @ ERE 5k Ve R E fY 48 &
and secured term loans that were past due at the end of FEUCER N A IR A BiE R Z BRER D AT ¢

the reporting period but not impaired:

Group

5
31/12/2011  31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
AEET AEET

Less than 31 days PR31K 11.4 172.2
31 - 60 days 31 — 60K 1.8 4.3
61 — 90 days 61 — 90X 300.5 110.2
Over 90 days 90 A E 233.5 28.4

547.2 315.1
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

33. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 33.
(CONTINUED)
The following is an ageing analysis of trade and other
receivables based on date of invoice/contract note at the
reporting date:

R B W ER ()

NTAREREMEBRENGEE R NER/
BEERAYHEZREDN

Group
£8
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT BEATT

Less than 31 days PHR31K 761.4 1,116.7
31 - 60 days 31 — 60K 2.8 10.1
61 - 90 days 61 — 90K 94.0 4.2
Over 90 days 90 RIA E 32.3 142.2
890.5 1,273.2

Term loans, margin loans, and trade and KRB iRl 2 B HIEK - BHIGK
other receivables without ageing * Ross o oAt pE AR 5,455.2 5,403.2
6,345.7 6,676.4

* No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin loans and term loans
financing, as, in the opinion of Directors, the ageing analysis does
not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin loans
and term loans financing business.

Listed securities, unlisted securities and properties of
clients are held as collateral against secured margin loans
and term loans. The fair value of the listed securities at
31 December 2011 held as collateral was HK$12,622.5
million (31/12/2010: HK$19,601.5 million).

Further details on financial risk management of trade
and other receivables are disclosed in Note 56.

* BN EBEESHARAHEREBNOED  EE
MRABE ZEERNRE AT RpEREFRIMEE -
B IR B AL BRI D AT ©

SEBERF EMES  ELTEHFRME
ERBRMESIRRAIRAEHERZE
e R20115F 128318 k& AK
HE EmESNAFEER12,62258887T
(2010512 A31H : 19,601.5 A&EHETT) o

A T EC RENREE 7  BURR BRI 56
it — S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

34. CASH, DEPOSITS AND CASH 3. BRRESEEY
EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
55 XA F]
31/12/2011 31/12/2010  31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBTT BEBTT BEBT BEBT
Bank balances and cash IRITEENRE 893.6 1,393.5 1.4 1.1
Fixed deposits with banks with a  EAfR A3 8 A /&
term within 3 months ZIRITEHER 901.5 826.4 — —
Treasury bills Bl % — 7.8 — —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE&EEY 1,795.1 2,227.7 1.4 1.1
Fixed deposits with banks HRA4Z1N2EAR
with a term between ZIRITEH
4 to 12 months 2N 940.9 282.4 — —
2,736.0 2,510.1 1.4 1.1
The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts EERFRBTREEIENBIERERL, &
with licensed banks to hold clients’ deposits arising RS H S EBEMBEREEERER
from normal business transactions. At 31 December MR2011 512 A31 8 » It KB E KN
2011, trust and segregated accounts not dealt with in BERNEAENBILIERS 501955838 7T
these financial statements totalled HK$5,019.5 million (201012 A31H : 5398 4F&EHT) °

(31/12/2010: HK$5,398.4 million).

The carrying amounts of cash, deposits and cash Be  GBRERSEEYHEREEENSERE
equivalents approximate their fair values. NEE -

Further details on financial risk management of cash, B4 GRAEESEEYzSrEARES RS
deposits and cash equivalents are disclosed in Note 56. BRI 56 F s — Z R ©
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

35.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

35. SRIT R EAb SR

Group
£H
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
Bank loans RITIER

— Secured term loans — BEHE HER 241.0 92.8
— Unsecured term loans — EIWAHER 4,431.0 3,258.2
4,672.0 3,351.0
— Secured instalment loans — B BE R 146.1 163.4
4,818.1 3,514.4
Secured bank overdrafts EEMIRITESL — 50.0
Total bank borrowings IRITAE K 4,818.1 3,564.4
Other borrowings B AR 31.8 176.1
4,849.9 3,740.5

Analysed for reporting purposes as: s B BT ER ST
— Current liabilities — REEE 1,646.4 1,695.7
— Non-current liabilities — ERBEE 3,203.5 2,044.8
4,849.9 3,740.5
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BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

35.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35. R1T R H SR )
(CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2011, bank and other borrowings were R2011F12 A318 @ SRITREMERNE
repayable as follows: FERINTE
Group
£H
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT AEBT
Bank borrowings RITIER
— On demand or within one year — RN—FAREKTEE 1,432.9 1,285.4
— In the second year — E=F 2,355.5 —
— In the third to fifth year — = E R 848.0 2,044.8
Bank borrowings with a repayment on MERERTERIERZ
demand clause RITER
— Within one year — — RN 70.9 88.2
— In the second year — E=F 8.5 35.1
— In the third to fifth year — E=FFRHF 102.4 110.9
4,818.2 3,564.4
Other borrowings H g
— On demand or within one year — R—FARERTEE 8.6 8.2
Other borrowings with a repayment on  MARERK NEB KR
demand clause Hfth fE K
— Within one year — — RN 23.1 144.3
— In the second year — E=F — 23.6
4,849.9 3,740.5
The secured instalment bank loans are repayable by BIFIRT D HEREAD BEEZ2015
instalments up to December 2015. Interest is charged on F128 c FIBIRREBERIUTISG B KRG
the outstanding balances at market rates. g o
All the bank loans and other borrowings are in Hong REZER/IBIABBTZBRR/ARE
Kong dollars except for equivalent amounts of HK$138.9 (201012 HA31H : EEH A /281.98
million which was in Renminbi (31/12/2010: the amount EETNTISABABLZARERETLZE
in Renminbi and US dollars were equivalent to HK$281.9 FOLASN - FTBRIT R EAMERE BB T -
million and HK$7.8 million respectively). Further details HEEHN S AR EERMFESe P —
related to financial risk management of such balances SHEE -
are disclosed in Note 56.
The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings BITREMERNEEENSENREATE -

approximate their fair values.




222

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 36. R&E K HME(SER
Group
=8

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT ABEBT

Accounts payable to exchanges, brokers R ZF7 « KL MEF

and clients eSS BR 688.2 1,079.5
Dividend received on behalf of clients REPYEZ B WAR S 51.9 30.1
Other accounts payable B FE S AR 137.2 113.5
Amounts due to investee companies BENAEER 0.1 4.3

Trade and other payables at amortised e R H A ERT AR - iR sH &

cost [DEN 877.4 1,227.4
Accrued staff costs and other accrued FERT B TR A K2 B Ath FE A~
expenses =53] 146.3 131.4
1,023.7 1,358.8
The following is an ageing analysis of the trade and UTAREREMEMBENGEERNEE
other payables based on the date of invoice/contract BEHEAMGTENRRST

note at the reporting date:

Group
|
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
Less than 31 days P31 K 779.4 1,146.5
31 — 60 days 31 — 60K 10.6 14.1
61 — 90 days 61 — 90K 7.0 7.4
Over 90 days 90 KA E 26.7 21.0
823.7 1,189.0
Accrued staff costs, other accrued RAIRERZFERT B TACAK
expenses and other payables without HEmErERREM
ageing & RR 200.0 169.8
1,023.7 1,358.8
The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables at TREE B AN 2 488 & B b FE T BR BRI BRE (B

amortised cost approximate their fair values. NENEANFEE -
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BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

37.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 37. FEB W R RE A FE 5 BRAY B
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =R

Group
55
31/12/2011  31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT AEBT

Held for trading, at fair value BEEERZ  BATHE
Futures and options listed in Hong Kong, fE&E 2 HiE K HA%E -
at quoted price BB 1.7 4.8
Equity and currency over the counter BINEE 2 REREEITAE
derivatives TA 13.2 1.5
14.9 6.3
Company
YN

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAR ABBT

Financial guarantee contract for banking KB A TRITEEZ

facilities granted to subsidiaries WIS IRE A ) 0.6 4.6
Further information of the fair values of financial FRWEREATFEINENTEEEATE
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed Z BRI EE 55 A — SRR o
in Note 55.
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

38. MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES

AND WARRANTS

On 13 July 2010, the Company issued mandatory
convertible notes (“MCN”) in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,708.0 million and warrants in an
aggregate face value of HK$427.0 million.

The MCN bear interest of 2% per annum payable semi-
annually and will mature on 13 July 2013 (the “Maturity
Date”). The holders of the MCN have the right to convert
their MCN into shares of the Company at a conversion
price of HK$5.0 per share at any time during the issue
date to the Maturity Date. Any outstanding MCN at the
Maturity Date will automatically convert to shares of the
Company.

The holders of the warrants have the right to subscribe
for the shares of the Company by paying a subscription
price of HK$6.25 per share at any time during the issue
date to the Maturity Date. No warrants were exercised
during the year.

The MCN and warrants were classified under equity
except for the financial liability element of the MCN
which represented the present value of the fixed interest
payment during the life of the MCN. All outstanding
MCN were converted into shares of the Company in
August 2011 and the balance of the financial liability
element was transferred to equity at the conversion date.

38. MM AR R RIE R R R R

BR2010F7H 138 » KRRARIETAEBE
1,708.0 B &B roa fl M Al R ik M EE
427 0 B &B LR BHERE o

MR E R M A E B 2% 2 F B iR
FEFELTAN—K - KR2013F7 138 ([
HR ) B E - bR R RIR IS E A G
RETEEIHE 2 EAEBANERES
B% 5.0 78 T 82 3% H o i) |4 AT 2 IR EAR AR A AR
AR - FREIHER B 2 A R 3 88 2 19 5% il
MR IAAR IR 3G B BRI AN A RIRR S ©

REEBEFEANERRETEEIHB 2FE
A E A RBESR6.25 8T IAREAR
READ o RANFER A EF BB RITE -

SR Il 1 PR IR IR K R R D R
A - B 75 850 Hi) 1 AT A% 2= HR R B A BT S A+
EEMBZEE RAVEAGERED - B
201148 A ' FTATIKREEEEHIRAEARN
AR - M N2 B AaEIs IRER A
S ERA -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

39. FEEALTZR S
EERAFRNREMEALETATHER

material transactions with related parties: R
Group
£H
2011 2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET BEBTT
Associates of a holding company ER AR ZEE D
Insurance premiums received from RERRRESLERBET
associates of a holding company in 2 /Nl o
the course of provision of insurance Bk & X B U ER
brokerage services B R b 2 1.4 2.9
Loan due to a listed associate of a (EE)IRBUER ARz —M LM
holding company (repaid) raised Bt N Al B R (22.5) 47.1
Finance costs to a listed associate of a MY ER ARz —MH EmiEeE
holding company NAElEE KA (2.5) (1.1)
Service fee to a listed associate of a T ER ARz —MH EmeE
holding company NERBE (2.0) -
Jointly controlled entities HEZESAR
Management fees received from a jointly  #—F& £ E1#2 %A B Fr U EX B9
controlled entity EEE 3.5 2.6
Holding company and its subsidiaries 1R A 8 % &} B 2 &
Brokerage received from fellow R[] 22 BT /8~ &) P R ER 9
subsidiaries L me 1.4 1.3
Insurance premiums received from RERRRESLERBET
a holding company and fellow MEER A A R A F
subsidiaries in the course of provision B8 A =) AT IR Y
of insurance brokerage services N 8= 2.8 5.5
Short-term loan due to a fellow RE(EE)RXRMBE AR
subsidiary raised (repaid) EHIE 500.0 (800.0)
Finance costs to fellow subsidiaries NRHEES ] =UNGIEE - 159N (27.8) (33.4)
Management fees paid to a holding NYERARER
company = {33! (3.2) (3.4)
Repayment of bonds BEES (500.0) =
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

3. FEEEATZRZ (#)

FTEEE AS KR
NTREERTEEEENA MK EERTF
NS

2011 2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT ABEBIT

Short-term benefits 5 EE A
Post-employment benefits RINEARA

56.7 56.3
1.3 0.8
58.0 57.1

567,000 shares were granted under the SHK Employee
Ownership Scheme to key management personnel
during the year. In addition, a total amount of HK$2.1
million represents 316,000 shares which vested for
key management personnel during the year. The
total dividend expenses paid to the key management
personnel during the year is HK$0.7 million (2010: Nil).

In addition to the above, the Group had year-end
trading account balance of HK$3.5 million payable to
key management personnel. Brokerage and service fees
received from the key management personnel during the
year amounting to HK$0.1 million.

REIEEEERDERTEMRAFERT
TEEHAE 2% A567,000 8% o N -
BB A2 1B5EBIT 316,000 &85 K
REEFBETFTEIEEEAE  RAFEELf
FEEZEBABZREBELHEE0TEEST
(20104F : 4&) o

B BN REARENTEEEEAS
CIREP OB A3SAEBIT - NEAR
TEEEABMBKERNELAS KRG E R
BO1TBEBEBIT -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

39. BRAEALT ZRF (&)
(CONTINUED)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the REEH  SEEAEBAEALTAENTEARN
following material balances with related parties: LR
Group
£H
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Notes HK$ Million  HK$ Million
Liks3 BEET BEBTT
Associates N
Amounts due from associates Bt N B R BR (a) 63.8 70.3
Amounts due to associates S N AIERR (a) (2.2) (8.4)
61.6 61.9
Associates of a holding ERA T ZEE A
company
Trade receivable due from a listed #EI& A &2 — Lt
associate of a holding company N AEIFTR B8 & FE IR 1.6 2.5
Amount due to a listed associate I A R 2 — &
of a holding company NI (b) (24.7) (47.2)
(23.1) (44.7)
Jointly controlled entities HEEZESAF
Guarantees for banking facilities  #% % @2 4| A 7
granted to a jointly controlled RITEED
entity RE (5.8) (1,661.0)
Holding company and fellow ERARRERMNE AR
subsidiaries
Short-term loans due to fellow USEEG1EPNGILES
subsidiaries SN E N (0) (1,252.4) (763.8)
Trade payable due to a holding RIZERR A RIS &
company FEAT BR (0.8) (0.9)
Trade payable due to fellow REAZRKHB AR MLEE
subsidiaries FEAT BR (3.0) (3.1)
(1,256.2) (767.8)
Bonds due to a fellow subsidiary R —F[F &K B AR NES (d) — (502.4)
(1,256.2) (1,270.2)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The amount due to a listed associate of a holding
company is denominated in Renminbi. It has a term
of 2 years and bears interest at 4.25% per annum.

The short-term loans included loans of HK$1,250.0
million drawn under a revolving loan facility of
HK$1,750.0 million granted by a fellow subsidiary to
the Group. The facility will expire on 2 March 2012.
The loans drawn under the facility carry interest
at 2% above HIBOR per annum. In March 2012,
the loan facility was extended for a further two
years to 3 March 2014. The facility was reduced to
HK$600.0 million and the interest rate was changed
t0 2.9% above HIBOR per annum.

3. FEEEATZRZ (#)

BEQRNR(E)RDEER - 28 %
EERAMEER

(a)

(b) ERAFRZ —MLETHERRERR
ARBER RYME YHEFR
4.25% -

CHERBEAEE,25008 88T
NER  2REE—FHREWB R AR
TEBEAH1,7500 8 8B THRERE
FEE ZE=EBR201243 82 8E
H o RZEERINEREWAEEEBIR
TRIZEFREN2% 2 F B ° BR2012F
38 %EELTEHE2014F3 A3

LR

EfME600.0AEB T ME

[=IE=N

MERAEBRITREFREN2.9% -

(d) Details of the bonds are disclosed in Note 43 to the d) BEEZHBEHEEBEBNGEMBERRN T
consolidated financial statements. 43 °
The carrying amounts of the amounts due from (to) EAEALTXR(E)RNEEENSEREAFE
related parties approximate their fair values. ERE
40. PROVISIONS 40. 245
Group
5
Employee

benefits Others Total
EBEEF Hith we
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
AEBT ER- Vg BAEAER
At 1 January 2011 M2011E1H1H 50.9 333 84.2
Additional provisions for the year & AZE{&E1E AN 41.4 1.1 42.5
Amount written back FER O] — (0.4) (0.4)
Amount utilised during the year  ZN4E (X {s F 58 (4.5) (12.8) (17.3)
Amount paid during the year RENZFEER (45.0) (5.2) (50.2)
At 31 December 2011 M2011412A31H 42.8 16.0 58.8
Less: current portion B mENESD (42.6) (3.9) (46.5)
0.2 12.1 12.3
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. i
Number of shares Share capital
ROBHE (&N
2011 2010 2011 2010
Million Million
Shares Shares HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HER BB HEAER BEAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each  E@RFA0.2/87T
Authorised SEER AR
Balance at 1 January and 1TH1RER
31 December 12831 B&&E 15,000.0 15,000.0 3,000.0 3,000.0
Issued and fully paid BRIIRBERAE
Balance at 1 January 1A1B&ERF 1,775.4 1,752.1 355.1 350.4
Shares issued for scrip AR EFTEATHY
dividends B fn 3.4 26.6 0.7 5.4
Conversion of mandatory it 0 ) 1 TR
convertible notes E374 341.6 — 68.3 —
Shares repurchased and [B] % 2 7 55
cancelled dn) (11.0) (3.3) (2.2) (0.7)
Balance at 31 December 12 A31 B&TF 2,109.4 1,775.4 421.9 355.1

(a) During the year, 3.4 million shares of the Company MRAFEE » 52010 FARHAL S KX 2011

(a)

were issued and allotted under the 2010 final and
2011 interim scrip dividend schemes for HK$18.4
million.

In August 2011, the Company issued and allotted
341.6 million shares at a price of HK$5.0 per share
for the conversion of mandatory convertible notes
(Note 38).

FrR R R 2 AR BT 81317 AR 2
34FERARTRG  BER18.48
EABTT e

R2011F 8 A + pLeziaos &l 1%k Al Ak
ZE(HI5E38) * AR RIAERS5.087T
BT RERE 341 .6 A BIRARD ©
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

41.SHARE CAPITAL (conTINUED)

(©)

During the year, the Company repurchased its own

41. R (%)

shares through purchases on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as follows:

(©)

ATRARARANFRAEBEEHAR
ZFRBERABMEBHARRERD

Aggregate
considera-
tion paid
Number Price per share (including
of shares SRRE expenses)
RAHE Highest Lowest REAHE
Million RS RE (BEEAR)
Shares HK$ HK$ HK$ Million
Month of repurchase B A 47 HER BT BT HEET
June 2011 201146 A 0.1 5.600 5.560 0.3
July 2011 201147 A 0.4 5.600 5.450 2.0
October 2011 2011410 A 3.1 4.350 4.100 12.9
November 2011 201111 A 2.7 4.180 4.000 11.2
December 2011 2011412 A 4.8 4.090 3.725 18.1
11.1 44.5

Less: amount to be settled 35 : RN&EE A%

after the reporting e

date EE] (0.1) (0.3)
11.0 44.2

All the above shares were cancelled after they were

repurchased.

During the year, the appointed trustee of the SHK
Employee Ownership Scheme (the “EOS”) acquired
2.6 million shares of the Company (2010: 0.4 million
shares) through purchases on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for the awarded shares of the
EOS. The total amount paid to acquire the shares
during the year was HK$14.7 million (2010: HK$3.6
million), which has been deducted from the owners’

equity.

(d)

A LR EIREERE 2B

HEEEERMNBEATE(RERERD
ENDZZARTEARESR D2
MEFRORAFEREBEBHARS
FTERARIEA2.6 BSKRARRBKG
(2010F : 0.4 BERK) - BARMGATX
N#EBEAE1478H 85 7T(20104F : 3.6

B&EET)

SRR BRRER TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

42. ANALYSIS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 42 . Hit2HEW 2 0

INCOME
Non-
Exchange  Revaluation Capital Retained  controlling
reserve reserve reserves  earnings  interests Total
EffGfE EfififE ERGf REER  FERES L]
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BEER BE%ER BE%R BERT BEER BEER
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BZ2011E12 831 ALEE
Available-for-sale investments AL ERE - (235) - - - (235)
Exchange differences arising on TEBNFHMEL
translating foreign operations =8 65.7 - - - 436 1093
Reclassification adjustment on liquidation 5& 3 FHI AR 2 B
of a jointly controlled entity PR (0.3) - - - - (03)
Revaluation gain on properties NEERYE - 146.0 - - - 146.0
Share of other comprehensive income ~ FrEBE AR M 2 ENE
(expenses) of associates (ZH) - - 0.2 (0.1) — 0.1
65.4 1225 0.2 (0.1) 43.6 231.6
For the year ended 31 December 2010 EZ2010£12 831 ALEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE - 101 - - = 10.1
Exchange differences arising on TEBNFHMEL
translating foreign operations 8 305 - - - 17.6 481
Reclassification adjustment on liquidation EEMBAR 2 EH 7 &
of subsidiaries HE (6.7) - — — - (6.7)
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of HE— ERBEAE 25
a listed associate NEAE (333.1) (9.1) N7 — = (320.5)
Revaluation gain on properties NEERYE - 1375 - - — 1375
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) FriREEE AAIEMAE ()
income of associates ey (1.2) (2.0) 03 08 — 2.1)
Deferred tax relating to components of ~ Et2EREARDH 2 B
other comprehensive income EEHE — (2.1) = = = 2.1
(3105) 1344 220 08 176 (135.7)
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

43.BONDS 43. 8%
Group
56
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BEBT
Hong Kong dollar denominated bonds NBTEREN 2 EFH — 502.4
Renminbi denominated bonds UWARBIEREN ZEFH 555.8 —
555.8 502.4

The Hong Kong dollar denominated bonds were issued
to a fellow subsidiary, bearing interest at the rate of
1% above HIBOR per annum and payable half-yearly
in arrears. The interest rate is repriced on the first day
of every six-month period. They are due for repayment
on 23 August 2012. The Group early repaid the bonds
during the year.

On 27 April 2011, a non-wholly owned subsidiary issued
Renminbi denominated bonds to third parties of RMB450
million (equivalent to HK$538.5 million at the issue
date) with 3-year maturity. The bonds are unsecured,
guaranteed by another non-wholly owned subsidiary and
carry an interest rate of 4% per annum. Details were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement on 19 April
2011.

The fair value of the bonds at the reporting date,
calculated by discounted cash flows at prevailing market
rate, approximate to HK$476.7 million.

EUBTEABN 2 ESH 2R —ER XK
BAR - MAEFBREBRITRAIZEREMN—
ExtE  B¥EFIMAFE—K  FERTE
FrE—KRER  HHEEHAF20124F8 A
238 - SERATFEEANCIREEEZES °

R2011F4H8278  —3kE=EBHNB AR
TUARBEABN 2 =FHESTE=
E HEAAREASOAET(RNETES
B538.5BBAT) - %EHFAEHRA A5
—F2EWNBRARRE  UMBEFE4% °
HEBECORNARQAT2011F48198EEZ A
iR -

BEREEH RIS RITIRIE &R
STE AT EEE4TCTEEEIT -
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44. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

44. X QX B W bR

Share premium account
Balance at 1 January
Issue of shares

Balance at 31 December

Capital redemption reserve

Balance at 1 January

Transfer from retained earnings on
repurchase of shares

Balance at 31 December

Equity element of convertible notes
and warrants

Balance at 1 January

Issue of mandatory convertible notes and
warrants

Conversion of mandatory convertible
notes

Balance at 31 December

Retained earnings

Balance at 1 January

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

Dividends proposed/declared

Premium on shares repurchased

Transfer to capital redemption reserve on
repurchase of shares

Balance at 31 December

Dividend reserve

Balance at 1 January

Dividends proposed/declared (after
adjustment)

Distribution in specie

Cash and scrip dividends paid

Balance at 31 December

Total balance at 31 December

Company
KT
2011 2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT ABBT
BB = ER
1 A1 B&EF 5,422.6 5,290.8
Sl dn) 1,573.0 131.8
12 A31 B&E 6,995.6 5,422.6
EAREE #E
1 A1 B&F 58.3 57.6
SRR (R B IRER
v Al 2.2 0.7
12 A31 B&7F 60.5 58.3
AR EE R RRERN
EEHD
181 B&E 1,616.5 —
BT B MR &
RIRFEE — 1,616.5
3 460 08 5| 1 AT 4R A%
=g (1,558.9) —
12 A31 B&1F 57.6 1,616.5
REER
181 B&E 119.4 2,297.5
NN =
v Al 3,466.4 1,859.7
Bk RZE S B (422.5) (4,021.5)
OG5 2 mlE (42.0) (15.6)
TLEIBARMDEREEE AR
1B ol (2.2) (0.7)
12 A31 H&F 3,119.1 119.4
BB
1 A1 B&TF 319.6 280.3
R R ZE R B
(HR=) 422.5 4,021.5
DK — (3,807.3)
LR & R IARRAR BRI AR & (531.3) (174.9)
12 A31 B&7F 210.8 319.6
12831 BE&EEY 10,443.6 7,536.4
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

44. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (conTINUED) 44, 7D BBV 1 (&)

The distributable reserves of the Company at 31 ANARR20114F12 A31 BWH A H 5 R
December 2011 amounted to HK$545.9 million 6 /54598 & % ;t(20106F 12 A31 8 :
(31/12/2010: HK$439.0 million), being its net realised 4390 B&EB L) @ WHIRERS A &R 5
profits calculated under Section 79B of the Hong Kong 79B KT EME KR m ) F5E -
Companies Ordinance.
45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45. EAREIE
Group
58

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT

Contracted for but not provided in the EENEBERETBHHREFRIED

financial statements EfE 3.8 1.5
Authorised but not contracted for BHEBERZLNE — =
3.8 1.5
46. OPERATING LEASES 46. € EHE
(a) The Group as lessee (a) EEEAHAEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REZER  SERESATHELER
commitments for future aggregate minimum lease 49 MZARERRZ TR SEEE 5K E
payments under non-cancellable operating leases R0 :

which fall due as follows:

Group
%£H
31/12/2011  31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEATT

Within one year —FRA 146.1 115.2
In the second to fifth year inclusive BEEE-_EFERE 232.5 190.1
Over five years AFLAE 121.9 155.1
500.5 460.4
The lease payments represent rentals payable by the HENFEREEARAESYERRAT
Group for its office premises and office equipment HEEEEHELZHTENOEE - 9
under operating lease arrangements. The lease FMHEMKEERETE —ET5MH o

terms and rentals of properties are fixed at one to
ten years.
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46. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b) The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

46. EEHE (@)
(b) EEfEBHEEA
REEH  SEEMEZRITATREKSR

contracted with tenants for the following future EKBRER N :
minimum lease payments:
Group
55
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET AEET
Within one year —FA 18.0 9.8
In the second to fifth year inclusive PREF_EZFR1F 31.3 17.6
49.3 27.4

The Group has properties leased to tenants for
rental. The lease terms and rentals are fixed at two

to four years.

47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

SEAEMFEETEFAKERES - 2
HEIREEREEE —EMHFRE -

47. REE

(a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had (@) SEREZEREUTRSE :

guarantees as follows:

Group
£E
31/12/2010
HK$ Million
BEETT

31/12/2011
HK$ Million
BHEBTT

Guarantees for banking facilities granted
to a jointly controlled entity

Indemnities on banking guarantees
made available to a clearing house and
regulatory body

Other guarantees

BT RS A RRT
BEEZIRFE 5.8
HET—BEERREE
BRI TR B FTIERY

1,661.0

4.5
3.0

ER 4.5
H A RE 3.0
13.3

1,668.5
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HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cONTINUED)

(b)

In 2001 an order was made by the Hubei Province
Higher People’s Court in China (“the 2001 Order"”)
enforcing a CIETAC award of 19 July 2000 (“the
Award”) by which Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited
(“SHKS"”) (now known as Sun Hung Kai Financial
Limited) was required to pay US$3 million to Chang
Zhou Power Development Company Limited (“the
JVC"), a mainland PRC joint venture. SHKS had
disposed of all of its beneficial interest in the JVC to
SHKS’ listed associate, Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (“Tian An"”), in 1998 and disposed
of any and all interest it might hold in the registered
capital of the JVC (“the Interest”) to Long Prosperity
Industrial Limited (“LPI”) in October 2001.
Subsequent to those disposals, SHKS' registered
interest in the JVC in the amount of US$3 million
was frozen further to the 2001 Order. SHKS is party
to the following litigation relating to the JVC:

(i) On 29 February 2008, a writ of summons with
general indorsement of claim was issued by
Global Bridge Assets Limited (“GBA"), LPI and
Walton Enterprises Limited (“WE") (the “2008
Writ”) in the High Court of Hong Kong against
SHKS (“HCA 317/2008"). In the 2008 Writ,

GBA claims against SHKS for damages for
alleged breaches of a guarantee, alleged
breaches of a collateral contract, for an
alleged collateral warranty, and for alleged
negligent and/or reckless and/or fraudulent
misrepresentation;

LPI claims against SHKS damages for
alleged breaches of a contract dated 12
October 2001; and

WE claims against SHKS for the sum
of US$3 million under a shareholders
agreement and/or pursuant to the Award
and damages for alleged wrongful breach
of a shareholders agreement. GBA, LPI and
WE also claim against SHKS interest on
any sums or damages payable, costs, and
such other relief as the Court may think
fit.

47 . SAREE@®)

(b)

M20014 - AEBIEESRARZE
B e 4 (12001 #£ 1) & #1877 R
20007 A198 Z CIETACH| k([ #]
) BRFDREMFBR AR (B
Btk ) (BREXRBAETEESRER
RE)HEPEEEAFTRMNENERER
BRArl([6&ERRDIM3IEEET -
R EF AR 1998 EBHHNE LA
RAZHEEE R IE FHRELS
ZETBERNRRTFRAELEERA
BI(TRZ]) » MR 2001410A @ #B
B AFEHERAE QAR ZEMERT
Az AMKA AR ]S
£ F Long Prosperity Industrial Limited
(TLPI)) - RZELER  FTIRELFH
FEERRZzEMESZ(EEIEEE
JL)IE 2001 #l2#E —E R o IS
B HTIA TN A &R R ZsFidm)—
jj_:

() MR2008F2H29H ' Global
Bridge Assets Limited ([GBA]) -
LPI &2 Walton Enterprises Limited
(WEDmFSEAFELESS
ZXE —MEBARTHZEASK
(2008 F 2R D (TmEERRES
FFRA2008 53175 1) ° 142008
FLMRAF

GBAB E B —HERZ
ER - -BHER—MOWEBE
B —EBEMBRENE
WR2R/XEEERRR
HEHFFERD 2 KRERIMEM
[RI¥TBEAE 75 A REF(E

(a)

LPIEFEBLET R A LB R A
HI A2001E10R8 128 2 &
HMRE &

WE R & — B R 7% &=k
BIFHPRAFIEEFSFRES3
BEETUEREEREER
32 [ — T8 IR R 15 5 1M [A) 5
V& EL AL F B R B {8 o GBA -
LPI X WE 71\ [7] #7 %5 £ FiE % BB
RENZERNESHENKNBER
BZHE  THAKERR
BEE2 EmEE -
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47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cONTINUED)

(b)
(i)

(i)

(continued)

(continued)

The 2008 Writ was served on SHKS on 29
May 2008. It is being vigorously defended.
Among other things, pursuant to a 2001 deed
of waiver and indemnification, LPI (being the
nominee of GBA) waived and released SHKS
from any claims including any claims relating
to or arising from the Interest, the JVC or any
transaction related thereto, covenanted not
to sue, and assumed liability for and agreed
to indemnify SHKS from any and all damages,
losses and expenses arising from any claims by
any entity or party arising in connection with
the Interest, the JVC or any transaction related
thereto. On 24 February 2010 the Court of
Appeal struck out the claims of GBA and LPI,
and awarded costs of the appeal and the strike
out application as against GBA and LPI to
SHKS. Subsequently, GBA, LPI and WE sought
to amend their claims which was opposed by
SHKS and is pending a determination by the
Court. While a provision has been made for
legal costs, the Company does not consider
it presently appropriate to make any other
provision with respect to HCA 317/2008.

On 20 December 2007, a writ (“the Mainland
Writ”) was issued by Cheung Lai Na sREEHB
(“Ms. Cheung”) against Tian An and SHKS
and was accepted by the Intermediate People’s
Court of Wuhan City, Hubei Province (“IPC")
OB ROEm R RARZERR) [(2008) H R
SIS 857 ] (the “Mainland Proceedings”),
claiming the transfer of a 28% shareholding
in the JVC, and RMB19,040,000 plus interest
thereon for the period from January 1999 to
the end of 2007, together with related costs
and expenses. Judgment was awarded by the
IPC in Tian An and SHKS’ favour on 16 July
2009 which judgment was being appealed
against by Ms. Cheung. On 24 November 2010,
the Higher People’s Court of Hubei Province
(1L %E S AE)ERT) ordered that the case
be remitted back to the IPC for retrial. The
IPC subsequently ordered upon Ms. Cheung'’s
unilateral application that the liquidator of
Changjiang Power Development (H.K.) Co.
Ltd. be joined as a third party to the PRC
proceedings. The substantive retrial hearing
will take place on a date to be decided. While
a provision has been made for legal costs,
the Company does not consider it presently
appropriate to make any other provision with
respect to this writ.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

47 . SAREBE#)

(b) (&)
(i)

(ii)

(%)

2008 SRR 20084 5 A 29 H#k
EFTBEA S o xS ARIES 8
Ho B RIE—152001 FEH %
NIBERA » LPI (1A GBAKIKE
NEBREREBRNTEEILIFES
ERR - BiFHEZR 5= 20
SRR R 5 A B8 sk A Ik i 5] 2R
ZAERER FIL LPIEAG IS
{EH AR - WAER ERERS - A%
RANEMEEARZERB 2 ERNE
B — 2 ERERERMELEZER
MREEERE BARERA &
REMFEREISFREELEER
B -EBELAXREBH- R2010F2A
24 B - EFFARESIBR GBA K LPIAY
R WAFEEILSHELD FFRE
FA Ko 58 37 96 AL i 5 ER 45 &1 ¥ GBA
M LPIH) I BR R &5 - BETE © GBA -
LPI X WESK(EFTHEBRZER - mEH
WEEFFT R R ERFERERTE o
HRARRE BEEE R IEL &
B BARARERBEL T EEH
= E AR R EFFA2008F F 317
RAFRAE DR E At B o

MR2007F12 A208 @ REM(IR
ZEDERXERITIEEAFED
Z—BESRIBEASHKD I E E
At A RE T A AR A RIEB ([
HARERR 1) FE((2008)H R
SNIFEE8S)([BHAEFAD + A
AeRREZELLNAZ228%0%
# - & AR 19,040,000 7TiE Al A
19994 1 A 5T £2007 F K 2 7
EURBEBEEBRARASL - AEAR
SEBE Y2009 F 7 A 16 B #HR K%
MR EL 5B - R TIERE
EFF REZHAFR - R2010F 11
A248  #HitEEHEARZERE
EZEEBRPARATESE -
MAREREEBRIBERZTERE
HeBESR IS HNFEE(EE) AR
NAMBEAKBBEANFRNE =
A BERANBBESITEE - B
RARBE BERERELRE -
HARRNBR AR T EERILS
ARV R AT E AL B o
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48. ASSETS PLEDGED 48. B EK H
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount REEEH - BB TFIRIT AT BEREAESLG
of assets pledged to banks and financial institutions FEECZENEEERENT :
as security for facilities granted to the Group were as
follows:
Group
%
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBR BEBT
Assets belonging to the Group BREBNEE
— Listed securities pledged for banking — {EAKRTEBIRITEE
facilities granted to the Group, at B FHES
fair value EAYE 125.9 1.4
— Investment properties (Note 18) — BB (M E18) 668.9 232.1
— Properties (Note 20) — W (£ 20) — 109.1
794.8 342.6
Assets belonging to clients * BREFPHNEE *
— Listed securities at fair value — FWES  BEAFE 1,554.2 1,941.6
2,349.0 2,284.2
* Based on the agreement terms, the Group is able to repledge * RIGHIER SR NEZSFRAEEMIEET

clients’ securities for margin financing arrangements with other
financial institutions under governance of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Securities belonging to clients are assigned with
specific margin ratios for calculating their margin values. Additional
funds or collateral are required if the amount of receivable
outstanding exceeds the eligible margin value of securities
deposited. The fair value of the listed securities at 31 December
2011 was HK$12,622.5 million (31/12/2010: HK$19,601.5 million).
The collateral held can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle
any outstanding amounts owed by the margin clients. Margin
clients receivable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

LASEBH IR R HE TR F B 5 BRI 72 i
BHE - BREP MBS T AR E R
LAGtEERRER - WEREEEKRESEBS
ERGEEFNGERRIE  FEEREBENE
SR o N2011F12 8318 EHEHHN
NTEA12,62258&H7L(2010612A318 -
19,601.5B&EBT) I AMNERRIHEEER
HHE  UXNBREERAOEAREESHE -
MR EFPEURERERNREELHM A EETR

=S ©
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49. MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND 49. EEREERHD M
LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2011
R2011E128318
Within 3 3 months to 1 year to After
On demand months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
PEER =Rk Z@AZE-§ -E%1f ki3 ag
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BEET BEAT BEAT BEARL BEET L
Assets &E
Loans and advances to consumer LABBERER
finance customers (before EE(T =il
impairment) HE) 798.5 1,045.9 2,975.0 2,392.1 750.3 7,961.8
Bonds included in financial assets at fair ~ REBREEIZATES
value through profit or loss BHEBEETR L BF - - - 57.6 - 576
Fixed deposits with banks KITEHER - 11014 7410 - - 18424
Secured term loans BERERER R
(before impairment) AE) 502.6 1.2 297.6 - - 10214
Liabilities gf
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER (100 (1,469.3) (5420  (33144) - (4,849.9)
Amount due to an associate of a BRAR B
holding company NAER - - (47) - - (247)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RAZNBAAER - (1,252.4) - - - (1,252.4)
Bonds i - - - (555.8) - (555.8)




240

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HZE201MF 12 A31BIEFE

49. MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

49. EERBEBIHS @)

At 31 December 2010
20106124318
Within3 3 months to 1 year to After
On demand months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
e HAR ZEAE-& -£RE% bk Eek
HKS Million — HKS Millon ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK§ Million ~ HKS$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT
Assets EE
Loans and advances to consumer LABEXPER
finance customers (before EE(T =il
impairment) HE) 4526 7813 21765 2,246.5 260.3 5923.2
Bonds included in financial assets at fair ~ PEBKHERATES
value through profit or loss BHEHERER 5 - - - 84.6 - 84.6
Fixed deposits with banks FOTHER = 826.4 2804 = = 1,108.8
Treasury bills S - 78 - - = 78
Secured term loans BERE B3 (R
(before impairment) HE) 317.6 46 3414 = = 705.2
Liabilities gf
Bank and other borrowings KITREMER (12.0) (1,079.0) (435.1) (2,2144) = (3,7405)
Mandatory convertible notes BHETAREE = = (326) (45.9) - (785)
Amount due to an associate of a RN B
holding company NEER - - - (47.2) = (47.2)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RAZHBAFER - (751.4) (12.4) = = (763.8)
Bonds 5 = = = (502.4) - (502.4)

The above tables list out the assets and liabilities based

EFRINERBEOZMANEEREE &
REEFMRERTER

Z 1

RN & AT

on the contractual maturity and the assumption that the
repayment on demand clause will not be exercised. Loans
and receivables are stated before impairment allowances.
Overdue assets are reported as on demand.

:3
B AR EE M B ES AENEER

o B R EWRRAREHBIRERE - T

o
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

50. T EM B

R20114F12 A31 8 KX2010F12 A31 HA
NEIHMEBHMBARMT ¢

Place of incorporation

and operation Issued and paid up Group effective

BEREBRRA

Principal subsidiaries B ES share capital equity interest Principal activities
TENEAF REwH RORSERE KESAEREZ IEXK
2011 2010

Boneast Assets Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERLES (E ERRE

Champstar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% — Assets holding
REBRAEE (E BERE

Constable Development S.A. Panama US$5 100% 100% Investment holding
B SETT ERRE

Dynamic Force Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAEE (E EREE

First Asian Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 58% 58% Asset holding

TNE—SEBRAR BB 28T BERE

Gloxin Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
BE 2B ERRE

Hing Yip Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Property investment

ERERAR AR RBRAES (E NERE

I-Market Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAES (E3 ERRE

Itso Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Securities trading
BE 2B BEHER

Lexshan Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Nominee services

ELREABRAR BE 2B REARS

Oakfame Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding

B 2ET EREE
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

50. X EME AR (&)

Place of incorporation

and operation

Issued and paid up

Group effective

Principal subsidiaries AR ERE share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEMEAF Ed- ik RIRMERE KESREREE IEXK
2011 2010

Onspeed Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 58% 58% Investment holding
EBRUES (E ERIRE

Plentiwind Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
B 2R and trading

ERREREE

Ranbridge Finance Limited* Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100% 100% Financial services

REMBEERAR* BR 20,000,000 57T SRR

Scienter Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100% Share trading
BE 2077T BHER

Shipshape Investments Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAES 1% ERRE

SHK Absolute Return Managers Ltd Cayman Islands us$10 100% 100% Investment holding
RERS 10%7T ERRE

SHK Alpha Managers Ltd. Cayman Islands us$10 100% 100% Funds management
FERS 10%7T HeEE

SHK Alternative Managers Limited ~ Cayman Islands Us$1 100% 100% Funds management
FERS (E HeE8

SHK Capital Management Limited ~ Cayman Islands us$10 100% 100% Investment holding
FEfS 107 ERRE

SHK Dynamic Managers Ltd. Cayman Islands us$10 100% 100% Funds management
Fefs (VE EEeER

SHK Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$150,000,000 58% 58% Money lending

MEERBEERAA &E 150,000,000 7T fEE

SHK Financial Data Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51% 51% Financial

MBERCEABRATR Gy 10078 7T information

services

MEERRT
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

50. X EME AR (&)

Place of incorporation
and operation Issued and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries AR ERE share capital equity interest Principal activities
FEMBLF F-pp RIRMERE KESREREE TEXK
2011 2010
SHK Fund Management Limited Hong Kong HK$67,000,000 100% 100% Funds marketing
MBEERBEEBERARA e 67,000,000 7T and investment
advising
HemuRER
REARERM
SHK Global Managers Limited British Virgin Islands US$5,000 100% 100% Funds management
RERLEE 5,000 % 7T EoER
SHK Income Fund Manager Cayman Islands Us$100 100% 100% Investment holding
REHS 100%7T BEREE
SHK Investment Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Asset holding and
B 1,000,000 77T leasing
BERERES
SHK Online (Securities) Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,000 100% 100% Online securities
MEENE(GER)BR R &R 40,000,000 7T broking and
margin financing
WEBEHELER
b3 6N
SHK Online Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
MBERBBRAR B 20,000,000 %7 ERRE
SHK Pearl River Delta Investment ~ Hong Kong HK$75,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Company Limited Bt 75,000,000 ¢ ERRE
FRERI=AMTEBRAR
SHK Private Equity Managers Ltd.  Cayman Islands Us$10 100% 100% Funds management
FERS 10T HeER
SHK Private Limited (formerly Sun  Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Business marketing
Hung Kai Research Limited) BB 100,000 7T and promotion
MBEERAR A A (FIREMEE BEMERER
ERMEBRAR) 1B
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

50. X EME AR (&)

Place of incorporation

and operation Issued and paid up

Group effective

Principal subsidiaries AR ERE share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEMEAF Ed- ik RIRMERE KESREREE IEXK
2011 2010
SHK Quant Managers Ltd Cayman Islands us$10 100% 100% Funds management
REefs (VE EeER
Shun Loong Forex Company Hong Kong HK$32,000,000 100% 100% Leveraged foreign
Limited BB 32,000,00078 7T exchange dealing
JERESMER R 2 ] and broking
BERMEEE R
w4
Shun Loong Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100% 100% Futures and options
JERE EE B IR 2 A B 15,000,000 7T dealing
HERHREE
Shun Loong Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
IBfE £ AR BE 200,000,000 %7 ERRE
Shun Loong Securities Company ~ Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% 100% Securities broking
Limited B 50,000,000 /%7t and share margin
B E A TER AR financing
EeEay e
768
Sing Hing Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100% Property investment
HEZERR A RBRAES 17T NERE
Splendid Gain Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
BE 28T ERRE
Sun Hing Bullion Company Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Bullion trading
MEERERAA BE 5,000,000 /7T B2EE
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 50. X EME AT @)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Place of incorporation
and operation Issued and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries AR ER share capital equity interest Principal activities
FEMBLF T RIRMERE KESREREE IEXK
2011 2010
Sun Hung Kai (China) Investment  People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Corporate
Management Company Limited China AR 50,000,000t marketing and
FREE(MR)REEEERAR  HH investment
consultancy
mERERERE
BAf
Sun Hung Kai (Nominees) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$200 100% 100% Nominee services
MBE(REA)BRAR BB 20087 REARE
Sun Hung Kai Bullion Company Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100% 100% Bullion trading
Limited BB 30,000,000 %7t and investment
TBEEEFERAR holding
B2 EERER
BE
Sun Hung Kai Commaodities Limited Hong Kong HK$80,000,600 100% 100% Commaodities
MEEBEFR AT B 80,000,600 7T broking
A ERE
Sun Hung Kai Financial Group British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited* EBELES 50,0005 7T B &R E
Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited Hong Kong HK$124,898,589 100% 100% Investment holding
(formerly: Sun Hung Kai = 124,898,589 /5L B E
Securities Limited)
MBESRARR A (AIMEMNEE
HARAR)
Sun Hung Kai Insurance Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Insurance broking
Consultants Limited B 1,000,000787T and consultancy
MEERRERARAR services
RIS a2 R
PR
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

50. X EME AR (&)

Place of incorporation

and operation

Issued and paid up

Group effective

Principal subsidiaries AR ERE share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEHBAR Fd-bik BORBEREA SEREER#EZ IEXH
2011 2010
Sun Hung Kai International Bank  Brunei Darussalam SGD10,000,000 100% 100% International
[Brunei] Limited D 10,000,000 ¥ 0% 7T banking business
BIRRTER
Sun Hung Kai International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Corporate finance
MEEERERAR BE 10,000,000 7T services
LERERS
Sun Hung Kai International Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100% 100% Securities, futures
Commodities Limited Bt 25,000,000 77T and options
trading
F5 o HEkDE
Sun Hung Kai International British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Investment Management RERLRES 50,000 %7t BRI E
Limited*
Sun Hung Kai Investment Services  Macau MOP48,900,000 100% 100% Property holding
(Macau) Limited B 48,900,0002 7T NERE
Sun Hung Kai Investment Services  Hong Kong HK$450,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding,
Limited Bt 450,000,000/ 7T share broking
TBEERERBERAF and margin
financing
HERRE - BHL
e REBEFH IR
Sun Hung Kai Securities (Bermuda) Bermuda US$12,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited BRE 12,000% 7T ERRE
Sun Hung Kai Securities (Overseas) Hong Kong HK$60,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited BE 60,000/ 7T ERRE

MEEES (BN ERRT
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

Place of incorporation
and operation

50. X EME AR (&)

Issued and paid up Group effective

Principal subsidiaries AR ER share capital equity interest Principal activities
TENEAF T BORARKREA KRESEERERZ TEXR
2011 2010
Sun Hung Kai Securities (Trustees)  Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100% 100% Provision of trustee
Limited BB 3,000,000 7T services
EEES(EL)BRAF FrtiR%
Sun Hung Kai Strategic Capital Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited Bt 28T and securities
FBRERBEABRAR trading
EREE RES
HE

HK$137,500,000 100% 100% Provision of loan
137,500,000 /87T finance
REERRE

Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance  Hong Kong
Limited B
MEEEBREAR AT

Sun Hung Kai Structured Products  Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Issuing structured
Limited Bt 287 notes

MBEREBERERAR BITHBURE
Sun Hung Kai Venture Capital Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited Bt 2B ER&EE

Sun Hung Kai Wealth Management Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Financial planning

Limited BB 5,000,000/ 7T and wealth
EEEUET AR AR management
MBREREE
B

Sun Tai Cheung Finance Company Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100% 100% Financial services

Limited B 25,000,000 7 = BR%G
MRERBERAA
Sun Yi Company Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100% 100% Futures trading
MmAERAR B 15,000,000 7 7 HEEE

Swan Islands Limited*

British Virgin Islands
RBRLES

US$503,000,001
503,000,001 7T

100% 100%

Investment holding

BREE
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

50. X EME AR (&)

Place of incorporation
and operation Issued and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries AR ERE share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEMEAF Ed- ik RIRMERE KESREREE IEXK
2011 2010
Texqulf Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100% Property investment
BE 2087 NERE
To Wan Development Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited &R 10,0008 7T BREE
HEERER AR
Tung Wo Investment Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited B 10,0007 BREE
RMEEARA A
UA Finance (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 58% — Financing
RBRAES (E A
UAF Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAES (E ERRE
United Asia Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$137,500,000 58% 58% Consumer
SMBEHBERAR B 137,500,000 7T financing
AR
Upper Selection Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited* RBRLES 1570 ERIRE
Wah Cheong Development Hong Kong HK$25,100,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Company, Limited* B 25,100,000 47T ERRE
EERRARAR
Wineur Secretaries Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Secretarial services
BRUEBRAR BE 28T WERS
Yee Li Ko Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$58,330,000 100% 100% Property investment
ENEREBERAR BE 58,330,000/87C MERE
Zeal Goal International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERLES (E ERRE
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 50. X EME AT @)
SUBSIDIARIES (cONTINUED)
Place of incorporation
and operation Issued and paid up Group effective
Principal subsidiaries AR ER share capital equity interest Principal activities
E2:30) P Sewy RIRBZRE SESAERERE TEEK
2011 2010
RER R DHE NEE T People’s Republic of US$$20,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
ARRA China 20,000,000 %7 B
th
REGEI NEERER AR People’s Republic of HK$100,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
China 100,000,000 7T B
th
R THA N EERERAR' People's Republic of RMB500,000,000 46% — Money lending
China AR 500,000,000 7T B
th
AT N EERBR AT People’s Republic of HK$350,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
China 350,000,000 7T BE
th
TEEEEFARI)BRAA  People’s Republic of RMB25,000,000 58% 58% Financial
China AR 25,000,0007T consultancy
i B R
ERmATRIM/EER People’s Republic of US$50,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
BREFRAT China 50,000,000 3T EE
th
Rk NEEERRB AR People’s Republic of RMB600,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
China AR 600,000,000 7T fEE
th
RIS R TSR R AR A R People’s Republic of RMB 10,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
China AR¥ 10,000,000 7T &8
th
EMATHINEERAERAR  People’s Republic of HK$350,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
China 350,000,000 %7 fEE
th
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

50. X EME AR (&)

Place of incorporation
and operation

Issued and paid up

Group effective

Principal subsidiaries AR ERE share capital equity interest Principal activities
TEMBAHE R BORARKREA KRESEERERZ TEXR
2011 2010
FRE(LE)REBRAERAR  People’s Republic of HK$22,300,000 100% 100% Investment advisory
China 22,300,000 78T and consultancy
i RELRARER
RE(KE)REEEERAR  People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Asset management
China AR 50,000,000 70 BEER
H
BMmENEERERERER AR People’s Republic of HK$6,000,000 100% 100% Corporate
China 6,000,000 % 7C marketing and
2 investment
consultancy
miHEkE RRE
B
BRemEEREESH/E  People's Republic of RMB 150,000,000 58% 58% Money lending
ERARDA China AR 150,000,000 7 f&E
i

* These subsidiaries are directly held by the Company.

owned subsidiary.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of

*

The company is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of a non-wholly

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

= L A
FES

WEMBRRARARERRS °
ZRAARFEEMBRBAMFAZERENB L

ALFRBIZARRIMBAR  REERRY
AEREEZEEREX
FEETEMN AT c EERRIIEEAM
P /B8 X B 2 7

FE REKEE

BRBRITK °
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 51. X EBE N T

ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31
December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

R2011F 12 A31BX2010F 12 A31 HE
BHEEHENAFBOT ¢

Equity interest held by

FHERERD
Place of incorporation Group Comga_ny
Principal Associates and operation RE ARH Principal activities
TEHENT ARk ERELHEY 2011 2010 2011 2010 XE%%
China Xin Yongan Futures Hong Kong 25% 25% — — Futures dealing
Company Limited BB mere
hEFKZAEERAA
Chronicle Gain Limited Hong Kong 45% 45% — — Property holding
BYBRAT B NERE
Drinkwater Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 22% 22% — — Property holding
BHERAR AR 00 NERE
Eurasia Mattress & Furniture Co. People’s Republic of China 25% 25% — — Manufacture of mattresses
Ltd. H and bedsteads
BERBRABRAR RB R RN EE
Omicron International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 44% 44% 38% 38% Investment holding
RBRLES ERRE
Real Estate Investments (N.T.) Hong Kong 40% 40% — — Property development
Limited B0 B
Silver York Development Limited Hong Kong 42% 42% — — Investment holding
KBERER A 0 ERRE
Start Hold Limited Hong Kong 33% 33% — — Investment holding
BrERAR A 0 BERIRE
Tianjin Eurasia Mattress & People’s Republic of China 25% 25% - — Manufacture of mattresses
Furniture Co. Ltd. I and bedsteads
REBERERERRAA K8 RRREE
Tribridge Capital Management ~ Cayman Islands 20% 31% — — Funds management
(Cayman) Limited He#s EeER

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

AEFMIEBZEBERT  REFRRHER
FEEEZEEEEARE  FBEREERF
BEXTEMN AT - EXRRYIHEH AR
BRRZHBECEBARITE
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ENTITIES

52. PARTICULARS OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED 52.

Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at 31

December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

HEZHQF

R2011F 12 A31BHX2010F 12 A31HE
B EREH AR BT ¢

Place of
incorporation

Proportion of

Form of and principal nominal value
business place of of issued capital
Jointly controlled structure operation and voting rights
entities ELV T HMREBEKL  Principal activities TERITRAEER
HEES DR ER & it B TEXRH REREL=R
2011 2010
Fast Track Holdings Incorporated Hong Kong Investment holding 49% 49%
Limited NG B ERRRE
Look’s Holding Limited  Incorporated Cayman Islands Investment holding 30% 30%
NG| FEiHS ERRRE
Shenzhen Oriental Incorporated People’s Republic ~ Venture capital 49% 49%
Venture Capital NE] of China investment
Management Co., Ltd H management
RYTRT & BEIERE RIXKREEE
BEARAF
Sun Hung Kai Forex Incorporated Hong Kong Foreign exchange 51% 51%
Limited* NG B dealing
MBEINERR AR * HNEEE
Rl AR ERE RS Incorporated People’s Republic  Corporate investment, 34% 34%
BRAA NG| of China providing
a3 management and
product marketing
consultancy services
EERE - RHEER
2E o E B A AR 7S
* Although the proportion of the nominal value of issued capital c HARBERENBEINEGRABZERITRAE

and shareholders’ voting rights of Sun Hung Kai Forex Limited
held by the Group are 51% and 81% respectively, the company
is classified as a jointly controlled entity because the Group and
other shareholder appoint pre-determined number of board
representatives to jointly control the company in accordance with

the Shareholders’ Deed.

ERERBRMELE DRI H51%R81% « HARE
ERS—RREERRGHE TEREEME 2 EE
FRENHKFEHIZ AT « FAR DAL
2AF -
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53. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support the Group’s growth and maximise shareholder
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in objectives, policies and processes
during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debts divided by the equity. Total debts include
the Group's bank and other borrowings, amount due
to an associate of a holding company, short-term loans
due to fellow subsidiaries, financial liability portion of

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

53. EAREE

SEEREENTIZENERNEREBGR
NEBRFLERERRENEARLLE - I
XREEERYARRAGEZAEE -

& B A R RE By B L A E B 9 L B A
BREBRENEBL FHERFE -

BIRFRABREARLERE  SEAESARS
FREREMEE ~ BRAEISR » Xk BITHA% o &
22010512 A318 1 %2011412 A 31
BIEFE £SEEBEZE - BEEMERF L1 E
] 2 st o

SEUNERBEELR(BEERAER)E
REXNER - REERREENRITREM

B ERARZBERRER - FRNE
REWERER B BRERER MG

BEHORES - R /A RRRREGRE

mandatory convertible notes and bonds. The equity SRR EBRKERD o FARNENEBR EH R
comprises all components of equity attributable to the N
owners of the Company. The gearing ratio at year-end
was as follows:
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
ER- Yo BEATT
Bank and other borrowings R1T R H A fE K 4,849.9 3,740.5
Amount due to an associate of a holding ¥R AT 2 B4 A A
company B 24.7 47.2
Short-term loans due to fellow B Kb B A Rl HY 52 2R
subsidiaries B 1,252.4 763.8
Financial liability portion of mandatory SR BRI IR AR AR 2
convertible notes M aEEs — 78.5
Bonds &% 555.8 502.4
Total debts mafs 6,682.8 5,132.4
Equity attributable to owners of the A TR IEAS
Company e 12,087.5 11,365.2
Gearing ratio BRERE B 55.3% 45.2%
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54. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

54 MBEERAE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at NTAEEREEANMBEEREE :
the end of the reporting period were as follows:
Group Company
£8 b /N
31/12/2011 31/12/2010  31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HKS$ Million HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEAT BEBT
Financial assets at fair value FERlaREAFE
through profit or loss 5l BR ) B 5 & EE
(Note 32) (BFzE32)
— Held for trading investments — #HEEERE 454.0 502.9 — —
— Investments designated as at — &F A%
fair value through profit or NEESIER
loss GOEVEY 318.7 138.6 — —
772.7 641.5 — —
Loans and receivables under RIERBEERE R
non-current assets R U ER
— Amounts due from — WBARIKER
subsidiaries (Note 29) (PzE29) — — 6,253.0 3,869.2
— Loans and advances to — LAVBEFE
consumer finance customers A ER
(Note 31) (BI=E31) 2,972.6 2,291.9 — —
— Amounts due from associates — Bt A IR ER
(Note 30) (F&E30) 51.3 56.2 54.4 59.2
Loans and receivables under RREEENERK
current assets JRE U5 B
— Amounts due from — B RRIKER
subsidiaries (Note 29) (HMizE29) — = 684.4 =
— Loans and advances to — AV BRFE
consumer finance customers AR ER
(Note 31) (M¥zE31) 4,583.5 3,172.6 - —
— Trade and other receivables — — && & E b ELR
(Note 33) BR(MIEE33) 6,325.8 6,643.1 — —
— Amounts due from associates — Bt A IR ER
(Note 30) (KfzE30) 12.5 14.1 0.9 0.8
— Cash, deposits and —Be  FAER
cash equivalents S EEY
(Note 34) (Bi=E34) 2,736.0 2,510.1 1.4 1.1
16,681.7 14,688.0 6,994.1 3,930.3
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE
(Note 27) (BFzE27) 316.2 292.1 — —
17,770.6 15,621.6 6,994.1 3,930.3
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54. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 54 MBEERAGE @
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of Group’s financial liabilities at NTAEEREEBNIKEEREE :
the end of the reporting period were as follows:
Group Company
&8 PN

31/12/2011  31/12/2010  31/12/2011  31/12/2010
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
HEER BEAT HEETR BEAT

Financial liabilities measured at ~ $Z# 5K ANt EH

amortised cost MiEaE
— Bank and other borrowings ~ — R4T R HABE R
(Note 35) (BFzE35) 4,849.9 3,740.5 — —
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — HIBA R ERR — — 111.0 240.6
— Trade and other payables — R AR
(Note 36) AR (P 36) 877.4 1,227.4 4.5 0.7
— Amount due to an associate = — R A R ZHE
of a holding company ARIER
(Note 39) (F&E39) 24.7 47.2 — —
— Amounts due to fellow — REMBRAE R
subsidiaries and a holding ERARER
company (Note 39) (KFzE39) 1,256.2 767.8 0.8 0.9
— Amounts due to associates — BENRERR
(Note 39) (BFzE39) 2.2 8.4 — —
— Financial liability portion of ~ — & &I AT HRE
mandatory convertible notes BRyBaRE
(Note 38) # o (i 38) — 78.5 — 78.5
— Bonds (Note 43) — EH (T 43) 555.8 502.4 — —
7,566.2 6,372.2 116.3 320.7
Financial liabilities at fair value  &:BUZSERIR A TE
through profit or loss FIRRRBI IS BE
(Note 37) (BF=E37) 14.9 6.3 0.6 4.6
7,581.1 6,378.5 116.9 325.3
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54. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped from Level 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from input other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

— Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include input for the
assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable input).

54. MEEREE@®

TREHRRVTERE AR FEAENUS
TEZOW  REAFENEERESR—

E=R -

— E-AATEHENRARREERE
ERERDISRE CREAR) -

— FE_RAXVEFENRERES MM
BN KEZEEXLBENEZ (B
B MR (RS ER) A BRE
ABIE

— FE=ZAXVEFENKREEREALIFN
M A BREABBYZEELRARE
FrEZ fBETA (TR BRBARIER) ©

At 31 December 2011
M2011512831H
Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-8 BZR E=& ot
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT HERTT HERT HEABT
Financial assets at fair value HRWaEREAT
through profit or loss 1851 BR 6 81 75
(Note 32) BE (Pt 32)
— Held for trading investments ~ — HHEEEHE 418.6 26.4 9.0 454.0
— Investments designated as — EERIE
at fair value through NS RIS
profit or loss HiRE - — 318.7 318.7
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
(Note 27) (K=t 27) 31.0 — 73.5 104.5
449.6 26.4 401.2 877.2
Financial liabilities at fair value BRWEREAT
through profit or loss 1651 BR 6 81 75
(Note 37) BEEE37) (1.7 — (13.2) (14.9)
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54. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 54 BIEEREE @)
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2010
M2010%€12 A31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— FEH E=M 4Bz

HK$ Million — HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEBTT BEBT BEBT

Financial assets at fair value FERWEREAT
through profit or loss BEIRRH BT 15
(Note 32) BE(P5E32)
— Held for trading investments ~ — HEEEHRE 467.6 — 35.3 502.9
— Investments designated as at ~ — EEAKRAFE
fair value through profit or 51/ BREY
loss RE — — 138.6 138.6
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE
(Note 27) (PBitEE27) 46.7 — 70.8 117.5
514.3 — 2447 759.0
Financial liabilities at fair value FERWEREAT
through profit or loss BEIRRH BT 15
(Note 37) BEHE37) (4.8) — (1.5) (6.3)
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during RERIWESE —REE K 2R 2E R
the year (2010: Nil). The fair value of Level 3 financial (2010F : &) - F=MPBEEHEBABZ
assets and liabilities are mainly derived from an NFEEERE —RITAER ZER -

unobservable range of data.
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54. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 54 IR EEREE®
(CONTINUED)
The reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities under UTEBRE=ZQRAFEFENNFEER
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: BEHK
Investments Financial
designated liabilities at
as at fair fair value
value through
through Available-  profit or loss
Held for profit or loss for-sale ZEBWRER
trading BEA  investments AYE
investments BRAYE A 5l BR

BEEERE GIRHERE HERE B aE
HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEAT BEBAT BEAT BEEAT

Balance at 1 January 2010 2010F1 B 1 B&RF 24.8 104.8 66.6 (0.1)
Total gains or losses BEnEs

— In consolidated income statement  — A& & UzEEE 0.3 8.5 2.1 (1.4)
— In other comprehensive income — REMZERE — — 122 -
Purchase BA 20.5 56.2 — —
Disposal HE (10.3) (30.9) (5.9) =
Balance at 31 December 2010 2010512 A31 B&R 35.3 138.6 70.8 (1.5)
Total gains or losses BEnes

— In consolidated income statement  — RGAUEE (4.5) (74.1) = fl:3
— In other comprehensive income — REMZERE — = (7.9) =
Purchase A 7.0 298.0 10.6 (13.2)
Disposal HE (28.8) (43.8) = =

Balance at 31 December 2011 2011 E12 A31 B&RF 9.0 318.7 73.5 (13.2)
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55.

56.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are determined as
follows:

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments and stock
borrowings) with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively or the quoted market ask prices of the
underlying financial assets for stock borrowings.

The fair value of unlisted bonds and unlisted equity
convertible securities are established by using cash
flows method based on discount rates ranging from
4% t0 12%.

The fair value of unlisted equity securities in
investment funds are established by reference to
the prices quoted by respective fund administrators
as these equity securities may be redeemed at the
request by the holders based on such quoted prices.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent
and successful financial practice. That said, the Group
acknowledges that a balance must be achieved between
risks control and business growth. The principal financial
risks inherent in the Group’s business are market risk
(includes equity risk, interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
risk management objective is to enhance shareholders’
value while retaining exposure within acceptable
thresholds.

55.

56.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE
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ERITEAE
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RBERSFATFEZEIETIZE

EZ%%&E .
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s risk management governance structure
is designed to cover all business activities and to
ensure all relevant risk classes are properly managed
and controlled. The Group has adopted a sound risk
management and organisational structure equipped
with comprehensive policies and procedures which are
reviewed regularly and enhanced when necessary in
response to changes in markets, the Group’s operating
environment and business strategies. The Group’s
independent control divisions, e.g. Internal Audit and
Compliance, play an important role in the provision
of assurance to the Board and senior management
that a sound internal risk management mechanism is
implemented, maintained and adhered to.

(a) Market Risk
(i) Equity Risk

There are many asset classes available for
investment in the marketplace. One of the
Group’s key business undertakings is investing
in equity. Market risk arising from any equity
investments is driven by the daily fluctuations
in market prices or fair values. The ability to
mitigate such risk depends on the availability of
any hedging instruments and the diversification
level of the investment portfolios undertaken by
the Group. More importantly, the knowledge
and experience of the trading staff managing
the risk are also vital to ensure exposure is
being properly hedged and rebalanced in
the most timely manner. Trading activities,
including market-making and proprietary
trading, across the Group are subject to limits
approved by the Risk Management Committee
("RMC"). Valuation of these instruments is
measured on a “mark-to-market” and “mark-
to-fair value” basis depending on whether they
are listed or unlisted. Value at Risk (“VaR"”) and
stress tests are employed in the assessment of
risk. Meanwhile other non-VaR limits such as
“maximum loss” and “position” limits are also
set out to restrict excessive risk undertakings.
VaR and stress tests are approaches which are
widely used in the financial industry as tools
to quantify risk by combining the size of a
position and the extent of a potential market
movement into a potential financial impact.

56. TRl AR EE (&)

SENRAREAREBEEEREEENMEE
A UHERMARBERRENEZEE
BREE - KRERA—EZENEREIEN
MBRE  YEHTETENBERMESF - ¥
BRARRMEFETER RN YEAFE
REEMS  SENEERTHEEREE
BimETER - KRENBLEEEHPI(ME
REMERER)EREENRE FEFS
NEEERD T - BERE2HOAHERE S
HE B R EF B o

(a) miZAR
(i) REmEE
THLBEFZAHRKRENEER
Bl o REEP-—HIBXHKERR
BE - HAREREMELEZTS
Rz - ERREMSERKAFE
B H R B o 5 B 1L TR R B 2 BE
o BEEEHBEMERTAR
BREHEB 2Z KT - EEEH
2 BEEERERIRHAEZ
MK hERERS D
EHRALUANRREZ T NETE
B -RECZEELRY(BIEEED
LERhBERER)AXRAREREZE
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Equity Risk (continued)

The Group’s market-making and proprietary
trading positions and their financial
performance are reported daily to senior
management for review. Internal Audit also
performs regular checks to ensure there is
adequate compliance in accordance with the
established market risk limits and guidelines.

The table below summarises the overall
financial impact on the Group arising from
market movements in global equity indices.
The analysis is based on the assumption that
equity indices move £20% with all other
variables being held constant and all equity
instruments undertaken by the Group moving
simultaneously. Declines in the indices are
expressed as negatives.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

56. TElE PR EE (&)

(a) WiEERR(E)

(i) REEEE)
SEZREEEMENEEEER
BRFEMNRRPBRR - HEER
=R E IR AL E B o FEARED
TeELERE  BRZZENEEE
BERT M R RE MRS

TR IRERAR T 45 B2 B) Y £ B
BB S E - WIBDMTERERK
TSN EE EF, F%20%
MEMSBEHRSTTE  WER
SEMFERETIAEGHENE
B o EETHUBERT -

At 31 December 2011 At 31 December 2010
R01E12A31H 1 2010612 A31H
Potential impact on other Potential impact on other
Potential impact on profit  components of equity  Potential impact on profit or  components of equity
orlossfor theyear ~ HEMERARIA loss for the year YEMERANIA
ERHEENELYE -t EMUERNELYE B2
20% -20% 20% -20% 20% -20% 20% -20%
HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon  HK$ Million  HKS Million
EE%T FEEEnT EERn  EEMR  AEEnT  BERT  BEET REER
Local Index Nt 9%.9 (84.4) - - 86 (1042 02 02)
Qverseas Index vt 100.1 (100.1) 29 (20.9) 53.7 (53.7) 233 (233)
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Market Risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Equity Risk (continued)

There is no material financial impact in the
form of profit after tax for the year for the
Group arising from market movements in
the global equity indices. Futures, options
and knock-out options are hedged by other
derivatives in view of the volatile markets and
wide trading ranges.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss due to
changes in interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk exposure arises predominantly from
margin financing, term financing and loans
and advances to consumer finance customers.
The financial assets and liabilities that may
have exposures to interest rates could be
referred to Note 54. The Group possesses
the legal capacity to initiate recalls efficiently
which enables the timely re-pricing of margin
loans to appropriate levels, in which those
particularly large sensitive positions can readily
be identified. Interest spreads are managed
with the objective of maximising spreads to
ensure consistency with liquidity and funding
obligations.

At 31 December 2011, assuming that Hong
Kong market interest rates moved by +50
basis points (31/12/2010: +50 basis points),
the profit before tax for the year for the
Group would have been HK$9.4 million higher
or HK$5.9 million lower respectively (2010:
HK$18.1 million higher or HK$13.2 million
lower respectively).

56. TRl AR EE (&)

(a)

™5 Rk (F)
(i) REEfEGE)

(ii)

REBE MR ESHHRENAF
B Z R B &m M8 A R E R
BRE - ERTNHREIAREKH
RypiRE - B8 - BIEARERE
BIARAOTE T A% -

T 72

MEER AN REBF5|IRERZ
Bk - SEFREREZREE
FHER - BB RLAMBEEP
B R BASR o HEA R EBR H B 75
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EAEEREREEER - ALK
EF RSB EREFEKRF -
SETARSHEEEEREER
B RS 2 M| RRERRKE - KREE
ERE  BWERZESRENSA
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3 =0

R2011F12831H BRERE B
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sk 598 & T(2010F + &
AL 0181 B E BTk 4 13.2
BHEBIT) °



Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited Annual Report 2011 2 63
IREBR AT o 2011FFIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Market Risk (continued) (a) ™MiZR(E)
(ii) Interest Rate Risk (continued) (i) FIZE ()

56. L@l AR EE (&)

The exposures of the Group’s financial assets
(liabilities) bearing variable interest rate to cash
flow interest rate risks and the earlier of their

AT REERBZHNE 2HBEE
ERBEMEHENRSRMEE
B AREERE 2RO SER] B

contractual repricing dates and contractual FAKK B EA R -
maturity dates are as follows:
On demand
or less than
3months 3 months to 1 year to Over
REXTEE 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
FOR3EE  3ERE1E  1FE5E SENE g
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BEAT BEAT BEERL BEERT BERT
At 31 December 2011 R2011%12318
Loans and advances to consumer IAIBEFERR
finance customers Ei 941.9 — — — 9419
Cash, deposits and cash equivalents Re ERRASEEN 479.1 - - — 4791
Bank and other borrowings BAREMER (4,803.9) = = = (4,803.9)
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries RAZHBARER (1,252.4) — — — (1,252.4)
At 31 December 2010 R2010%12318
Loans and advances to consumer IABBEFERR
finance customers 237 3358 — — — 3358
Cash, deposits and cash equivalents R%  GERRALEEN 888.4 - - - 888.4
Bank and other borrowings FORERER (3,516.2) — — — (3516.2)
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries FZNBARER (751.4) — — — (7514)
Bonds &% — (502.4) - — (502.4)

HRE R EFRERDEED
DT F A Z RO FI B ERT B sk
RHBPETEEE B F 58
FR 7 BHNFA,277.0 A BB T
(20104F : 4,436 5 A& BT K
BREELERS -

As the analysis of the contractual repricing
dates or contractual maturity dates is not
meaningful in view of the nature of the
business of margin financing, margin loans
bearing variable interest rate of HK$4,277.0
million (2010: HK$4,436.5 million) are excluded
from the above table.
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 56. & &l E b B IE ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) Market Risk (continued) (a) iRk (E)
(ii) Interest Rate Risk (continued) (i) FIZE ()
The exposures of the Group’s financial assets T RERNEREENSZMBE
(liabilities) bearing fixed interest rate to interest E(BE)ESHFIERRR - UKk
rate risks and the earlier of their contractual BB 2 KN BERT B KAE
repricing dates and contractual maturity dates HiR :

are as follows:

On demand
or less than
3months 3 months to 1 year to Over
REXTEE 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
FON3MBA  3ERE1E  1EESE SENE g
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
BE#T BEAT BEAL BEER BERRT
At 31 December 2011 R201E128318
Loans and advances to consumer AAIBEFERR
finance customers g 1,603.0 2,775.6 1,9813 174.8 6,534.7
Bonds included in financial assets at fair ~ PNEBUEER A TEIIEH
value through profit or loss ARBERZ2BH - - 576 - 57.6
Secured term loans BEABEBER 751.8 2130 = — 964.8
Cash, deposits and cash equivalents Re  ERRALEEN 11014 741.0 - - 18424
Bank and other borrowings ROREMER (44.0) (234) = = (67.4)
Amount due to an associate of a BRATZBERA
holding company gk — (24.7) — = (24.7)
Bonds 5 = = (555.8) - (555.8)
At 31 December 2010 R2010E12 5318
Loans and advances to consumer IARBEFERR
finance customers B 1,005.4 1,991.6 1,929.9 101.7 5,088.6
Bonds included in financial assets at fair & BUEER A TEFIHH
value through profit or loss ABEERZBH - - 84.6 - 84.6
Secured term loans FEREEER 307.2 3414 — — 648.6
Cash, deposits and cash equivalents Re  GERRALEEN 826.4 2824 - - 11088
Bank and other borrowings BIREMER (43.8) (179.0) (23.6) = (246.4)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RENBAFER (124) = = = (124)
Amount due to an associate of a BRATZBERA
holding company {2 - — (47.2) - (47.2)
Mandatory convertible notes BHETARSE = (32.6) (45.9) = (78.5)
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(iii) Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings

or capital arising from movements in foreign
exchange rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily
arises from currency exposures originating
from proprietary trading positions, and
loan and advances denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly in Australian dollars and
Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk is managed
and monitored by the respective businesses
in accordance with the limits approved by the
Board and RMC. The risk arises from open
currency positions are subject to management
approved limits and are monitored and
reported daily. The other source of foreign
exchange risk arises from clients’ inability
to meet margin calls following a period of
substantial currency turbulence.

At 31 December 2011, assuming that the
foreign exchange rates moved 5% (2010:
+10%) with all other variables held constant,
the profit before tax for the year for the Group
would have been HK$30.5 million (2010:
HK$3.0 million) lower/higher. The Group's
exposure to foreign exchange risk is immaterial.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or
counterparty to meet settlement obligations. As
long as the Group lends, trades and deals with third
parties, there will be credit risk exposure.

The Group's credit policy, governed by the Credit
Committee (“Credco”), sets out the credit approval
processes and monitoring procedures, which are
established in accordance with sound business
practices, the requirements and provisions of the
relevant ordinances, and where applicable, the
codes or guidelines issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

56. TRl AR EE (&)

Day-to-day credit management is performed by the
Credit Division with reference to the aforementioned
criteria including creditworthiness, type and amount

of collateral pledged, and risk concentration of the
counterparties. Decisions are made daily by Credit
Division and are reported to and reviewed by the
Executive Directors, senior management and Credco
at its regular meetings.

The table below shows the maximum exposure
to and concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure is shown in gross value before the
effect of mitigation through the use of collateral
agreements. The percentage figure next to the gross
value reflects its concentration.

(b) EEREE)

AREEEERRENEENRAR -7
ENERRSUTEE  EFmNE
BRBBELERSHELIEZ - EEH
BEMECRERANEBZATES
SR EEEREEZSMAMNEN
e E1EH E RN ma -

TRETHHNEAEERR KETIE
E - KA ABERTR - WARERF
PR o 199 s R R R B O AR © HBME S
BETNAESLHEFIRBRERARSES
RE -

Group
£8
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBRT % BEATT %

Maximum credit BAEE

exposure B ks
Loans and advances to FLABHB =P

consumer finance =695

customers B 7,556.1 44% 5,464.5 32%
Trade and other 1 | HoAth e

receivables I BR 6,325.8 37% 6,643.1 39%
Cash, deposits and cash B TRk

equivalents HEZEEY 2,736.0 16% 2,510.1 15%
Loan commitments BRAEE 565.5 3% 671.0 4%
Amounts due from NG|

associates RER 63.8 0% 70.3 0%
Bonds included in R B s iR

financial assets at fair =NFET

value through profit RRBHE

or loss ERZES 57.6 0% 84.6 0%
Guarantees ) 13.3 0% 1,668.5 10%

17,318.1 100% 17,1121 100%
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

56. TElE PR EE (&)

(b) EEREAE)

Company
AAT
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBR % BEET %
Maximum credit BAREE
exposure B ks
Amounts due from opEENG]
subsidiaries RER 6,937.4 98% 3,869.2 88%
Guarantees for banking BETHBAR
facilities granted to RITEEZ
subsidiaries R 58.3 1% 460.0 11%
Amounts due from NG|
associates RER 55.3 1% 60.0 1%
Cash, deposits and cash Be - Rk
equivalents ReEEY 1.4 0% 1.1 0%
7,052.4 100% 4,390.3 100%

The maximum credit exposure at Group level
is spread evenly between “trade and other
receivables” and “loans and advances to consumer
finance customers”, which represented more than
three-quarters of the total exposure. “Trade and
other receivables” consist of amount receivables
from exchanges, brokers and clients, secured
term loans, margin loans and other interest and
receivables items. The breakdown and its ageing
analysis are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial
statements. There are no major concerns on margin
loans, as margin calls for equity trading have been
tightened. Most clients have cut off their positions.
The margin loan book of the Group remains at a
low gearing level.

SEZEAEERR TS HRIE
EREMEBUKEIRITLAMBEFE
RERBR] AEEERREBBMND Z
Zo[REREMENRE]FARKRR
S BRENEFPHENR BEFEH
fERR 58 5 HURA K B At 1) B Ko FE W IR
B o 418 MR DT R MR M
33 BHMATERA T ZREH -
REWREBKRESFEERESNE
REDEBEPICEHR - EEMEZHK
FRIRFHE R FOKF o
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 56. & @t /B be B 1 (&%)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Credit Risk (continued) (b) &Rk E)

“Loans and advances to consumer finance
customers” (Note 31) are granted by the Company’s
principal subsidiary, United Asia Finance Limited,
which consists of HK$6,205.2 million unsecured
(31/12/2010: HK$4,873.3 million) and HK$1,350.9
million secured (31/12/2010: HK$591.2 million)
before taking into account any collateral held
or other credit enhancements. The table below
summarises its credit quality based on the internal
credit rating system employed:

(AT BEEFER RSB I(HE3)
TIARRBIMEZEKR B AR — oMk
AHMBERRAR — Al EhE
B 56,2052 57 & B (2010 12
A31H :48733@&8m)  AHEMF
/1,350.95 & 78 7£(20104 12 A 31
H:5912@88x)(Ret REANT
AEA RIS EILRIERE) © TR
Bt EERNABEETRES

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT ABEBIT

Credit quality FEEE
Neither past due nor impaired I FE i BASOR(E
Past due or individually impaired #8 BA Sk (E B RL (B

6,839.3 5,061.7
716.8 402.8
7,556.1 5,464.5

Loans with strategic clients are all properly
authorised by the Credit Committee and with other
controls in place to monitor their performance. As
at 31 December 2011, any default of an individual
loan will not be greater than 10% of the total loan
portfolio and management considers that controls
are adequate to monitor the performance of these
loans.

MERBEERFENNEFHYEEEEZE
SEELE - SEINMEE EMIEIEE
BB RMEITER - R2011F12 A
318 AMERNERMNENEEIS
BREEZEANI0%  EEEBRA
BRD MBI ZER R BT
’%}R o
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(9]

Liquidity Risk

The goal of liquidity management is to enable the
Group, even under adverse market conditions, to
actively manage and match funds inflow against
all maturing repayment obligations to achieve
maximum harmony on cash flow management.

The Group manages its liquidity position to ensure
a prudent and adequate liquidity ratio, in strict
accordance with statutory requirements. This is
achieved by a transparent and collective monitoring
approach across the Group involving Executive
Directors, the Director of Banking & Treasury, the
Chief Financial Officer and other relevant senior
managers on a daily basis to ensure the availability
of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations
while in compliance with statutory requirements
such as the Hong Kong Financial Resources Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

56. TElE PR EE (&)

(c)

RBE R

MBESEEE EEREANEET RN
MEDREZZEE MFRERRAAX
NAABERMERZERE  RELREE
BEEHEmBHALIBR

SEEEERBDESHN  BREESE
REEMARZIRBDES LR - S
BTEBIEEER - MITESE - B
RECHRE  UBREREEREERE
AEBBREANREHEREB I AESR
ERAEIZRBESHN - UERE RS
MRBESRNERAZLNTEEER
K- PlanEEM B E RS
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

56. TRl AR EE (&)

(c) Liquidity Risk (continued) (c) REBBESRSR(E)
The exposure of the Group’s contractual UTAREEEMBEE FEEHRITE
undiscounted cash flow for financial liabilities and ReRhe NBEMKLOTIER -
their contractual maturity dates are as follows:
On demand
or less than
3days  3fdaysto  91daysto 1 year to
REXTEE 90 days 1 year 5years Over 5 years Total
FORNX  NRENEX  NRE1E 1EERSE SENE ag
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HKS Million
BERT BEET BERT BERT BERT BERT
At 31 December 2011 R2011%512318
Bank and other borrowings" SOREMER 6714 985.4 - 33222 - 4,979.0
Trade and other payables BEREMEMNR 877.4 - - - - 877.4
Amount due to an associate of a ERARZEEAT
holding company (i - - 256 - = 256
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and AN BA R Rk
a holding company NG 1,256.2 — — - — 1,256.2
Amounts due to associates BENRER 22 = - — _ 22
Bonds % - - - 677.8 - 677.8
Guarantees* R * 133 = — = = 133
Financial liabilties at fair value though ~ FBNHEERATE
profit or loss SRS BAE 14.9 - — — — 14.9
At 31 December 2010 ®20105124318
Bank and other borrowings™ SIREMER 8533 6109 2440 22009 - 3,909.1
Trade and other payables 1 B A TR 1,274 = = = = 12074
Amount due to an associate of a NG N
holding company i - - - 51.0 = 51.0
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and ~ [RI ZHIB A Al 2R
a holding company ArIEE 767.8 = = = = 767.8
Amounts due to associates BENAEE 84 — — — — 84
Bonds E5 - 10 34 506.8 = 5112
Guarantees* fRiE* 1,668.5 - - - = 1,668.5
Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ FEBKHEFRATE
profit or loss SIEHEKE R 63 = - — - 63
Mandatory convertible notes BHMTAREE - = 342 523 = 86.5

Bank and other borrowings with repayment on demand
clause are classified as on demand in the above analysis
although the demand clause has not been exercised.

The amounts included above for guarantees are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantees.
None of the banking facilities related to the guarantees has
been drawn down at the end of the reporting period. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that the amount will not be payable under
the arrangement.

ERITREMERZW AR ZRTEE K
K AMEZIRRILARTTRE - £ LSS HTHD
DERRERTHEE -

A EREZBERBRBEENTENSE -
BEMEERMEHRENZALHE © BRE
BRRITEENGEALARBA - ENHR
EARKZEY  SERRAITFRZERND
5 AT SROR
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56. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity Risk (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
outstanding loan commitments of HK$565.5 million

(31/12/2010: HK$671.0 million) which fall due
within one year.

The Company’s exposure to financial risks at the end
of the reporting period is immaterial. Financial risk
exposure at the Company level is mainly contributed
by the amount due from its subsidiaries and associates
and is managed by assessing the recoverability of the
repayment from those subsidiaries and associates. The
management monitors on a regular basis the availability
of funds among the Group and the assets held by
subsidiaries and associates are considered sufficient to
cover the amount due from them. Hence, the Company’s
exposure to financial risks at the end of the reporting
period is considered immaterial.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2011F 12831 BILFE

56. TElE PR EE (&)

(o) REBELEMRE)
REER  SEEER —FREIBZ R
EABE R EAIESS.5H &8 1(2010
F£12831H :671.0E8#B7T) °

ARAREEAEHNERMARE TEK -
ARFNERERTERENEWRENBER
m R B E N RIRER - iR A AT R E e B
BRBIRBERRRKNENTUNERE - &
BEEecHEREENESNRMIZE I
REMBRBIREERRIMFEERHEN
REHRK - Bt > RABREE BN R
[R\Ba It REKX o
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Contacts

SUN HUNG KAI & CO. LIMITED

42/F, The Lee Gardens, 33 Hysan Avenue,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3920 2888

Fax: (852) 3920 2789

Investor Relations

Fax: (852) 3920 2680
Email: investor.relations@shkco.com

Media Relations

Fax: (852) 3920 2501
Email: public.relations@shkco.com

HONG KONG

Sun Hung Kai Financial

28/F, The Lee Gardens, 33 Hysan Avenue,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3920 2888

Customer Service Hotline: (852) 2822 5001
Fax: (852) 3920 2789

SHK Private

19/F, 18 Hysan Avenue,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3920 8020

Fax: (852) 3920 8000

Sun Hung Kai Insurance Consultants Limited
23/F, Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2802 2515

Fax: (852) 2845 7743

SHK Financial Data Limited

Rooms 2701-03, 27/F, Jupiter Tower, 9 Jupiter Street,

North Point, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2591 1218
Fax: (852) 2520 0518

United Asia Finance Limited

21/F, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2681 8000
Fax: (852) 2525 8880

SHK Finance Limited

Room 2001, 20/F, Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2892 2892

Fax: (852) 2525 8880

FEEGRA A
BISINEE A EB 335
ME 4218

T 55 (852) 3920 2888
{8H& : (852) 3920 2789

REZBIF
{&H& : (852) 3920 2680

FH : investor.relations@shkco.com

IR
{EE : (852) 3920 2501

B3 : public.relations@shkco.com

&8

MEECRERE

B INIEE A BB 335
A E 2812

&5 (852) 3920 2888

EERISEL  (852) 2822 5001

{&E : (852) 3920 2789

FTBEE W IR AT
b
FEB1852 1918

&5 (852) 3920 8020
{&E& : (852) 3920 8000

FEERBER AR AR
BB R IE 188 9%
KR 2348

T % ¢ (852) 2802 2515
{&HE : (852) 2845 7743

FIEEMKEANBRAT
EBILAREHIR
KEFRL 271 2701-03 F
&5 (852) 2591 1218
{8H& : (852) 2520 0518

MBS B ER AR
BEBTFELITE 1385
BEBEEANE211E

T 5% (852) 2681 8000
f8H : (852) 2525 8880

FEEB AR AR

B ETELTITE 1385
A BB AE 2012001 =
TS (852) 2892 2892
{EH& : (852) 2525 8880
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BARER

MACAU

Sun Hung Kai Insurance Consultants Limited
Macau Branch
Shop E, G/F, Macau Chamber of Commerce Building,
No. 165 Rua de Xangai, Macau
Tel: (853) 2878 1212
Fax: (853) 2878 0178/(853) 2878 0186

MAINLAND CHINA
SHENZHEN

Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited
Shenzhen Representative Office

Unit 2702B, East Zone, Great China International Exchange

Square,

No. 1 Fuhuayi Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, China
Postal Code: 518048

Tel.: (86) 755 8347 5079

Fax: (86) 755 8347 4490

Sun Hung Kai (Shanghai) Investment Consultancy Limited
Shenzhen Branch

Unit 2702A, East Zone, Great China International Exchange

Square, No. 1 Fuhuayi Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen, China.
Postal Code: 518048
Tel: (86) 755 2151 4204
Fax: (86) 755 2151 4132

United Asia Finance (Shenzhen) Limited
Room 2003 & 2005, 20/F, West Building,

Tian An Innovation Science and Technology Plaza (Phase II),

Tian An Cyber Park, Futian District, Shenzhen, China
Postal Code: 518040
Tel: (86) 755 8829 2000
Fax: (86) 755 8829 2020

GUANGZHOU

Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited
Guangzhou Representative Office

Room 2616, Metro Plaza, No. 183-187, Tian He Bei Road,

Guangzhou, China
Postal Code: 510620
Tel: (86) 20 8758 7138
Fax: (86) 20 3846 9368

Guangzhou Sun Hung Kai Investment Consultancy Limited

Room 2601, Metro Plaza, No. 183-187, Tian He Bei Road,

Guangzhou, China
Postal Code: 510620
Tel: (86) 20 8525 1670
Fax: (86) 20 8525 1587

B P
FBERBEMER AT
BT
JBPY EBH 1655
RPIREQEe KEM T EMH
E 5% (853) 2878 1212
{#H : (853) 2878 0178/(853) 2878 0186

A B A it

wI

FBEIERBEBR LA
YRR E

fR BRI T A2 H &R

FEANBHESHERIR

ARRYIBEER S ESETE 27028

AR : 518048

B 3% ¢ (86) 755 8347 5079

{85 : (86) 755 8347 4490

FIBEE(LEB)EEBERARAR
3l laR/NG]

fR BRI T A2 H R

R ANEHE S HERZFR

FARFRIBEER S ESETE2702A

AR : 518048

T 3% 1 (86) 755 2151 4204

{85 : (86) 755 2151 4132

YT RN EE E R R AR
AR BRI 4R E R
KBS BB ES 2 HB
PHRE 20422003 }2 2005 &
AR : 518040

T35 (86) 755 8829 2000
{EH : (86) 755 8829 2020

&M
FREREREHR A A
BN ERE
R B B SR A B N T RO [ RO AE % 183-187 5%
ANEPEEIZ 2616 E
AR : 510620
BE:E ¢ (86) 20 8758 7138
{85 : (86) 20 3846 9368

BN TR A EBE AR AR

R B B SR A B N T RO B ROR B B 183-187 5%
ANEPEES 2601 =

AR : 510620

BEiE ¢ (86) 20 8525 1670

{85 : (86) 20 8525 1587
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Contacts

YUNNAN Er

United Asia Finance (Yunnan) Limited A RN EERERA A
10/F, East Tower, Shun Cheng Twin Tower, FEERTRER

No. 11 Dongfeng Road West, Wuhua District, Kunming, R 115

Yunnan, China Bk = FERIE 10 [E

Postal Code: 650031
Tel: (86) 871 3602 008
Fax: (86) 871 3603 138

CHONGAQING

United Asia Finance (Yuzhong District Chongging) Limited
U1-U3 & U4A-U5, 5/F JW Marriott International Trade Center,
77 Qing Nian Road, Yuzhong District, Chongging P.R.C,
China

Postal Code: 400010

Tel: (86) 23 6300 7777

Fax: (86) 23 6383 7700

CHENGDU

United Asia Finance (Chengdu) Limited

Room 1201-03, 07, 12 Storey, High Land Centre,
No. 9 Jianshe Road, Chenghua District,
Chengdu, China

Postal Code: 610051

Tel: (86) 28 6532 2010

Fax: (86) 28 6532 2088

SHANGHAI

Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited
Shanghai Representative Office
Room 1903, Tian An Centre, 338 Nan Jing Road (West),
Shanghai, China
Postal Code: 200003
Tel: (86) 21 6327 6566
Fax: (86) 21 6327 6867

Sun Hung Kai (Shanghai) Investment Consultancy Limited
Room 1902, Tian An Centre, 338 Nan Jing Road (West),
Shanghai, China

Postal Code: 200003

Tel: (86) 21 6372 6828/(86) 21 6372 6808

Fax: (86) 21 6372 6800

Sun Hung Kai Insurance Consultants Limited
Shanghai Representative Office

Room 1901C, 19/F, Tian An Centre,

338 Nan Jing Road (West), Shanghai, China

Postal Code: 200003

Tel: (86) 21 6327 6850

Fax: (86) 21 6327 6867

RS : 650031
E:E : (86) 871 3602 008
{&E : (86) 871 3603 138
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EETHTETHY R REREEAT

FESEEMmATREEFR 77 5%
EXEEH L

5# U1-U3 U4A-U5 8T
ARG : 400010

E:E  (86) 23 6300 7777
{85 : (86) 23 6383 7700
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TS (86) 28 6532 2010
& : (86) 28 6532 2088
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EERERE
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AR : 200003

T % (86) 21 6327 6566

{EH : (86) 21 6327 6867
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{EH : (86) 21 6327 6867
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Contacts

NANJING

Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited
Nanjing Representative Office

Room 1205, 12/F, Tian An International Mansion,

No. 98 South Zhongshan Road, Nanjing, China

Postal Code: 210005

Tel: (86) 25 8470 8471

Fax: (86) 25 8471 8482

TIANJIN

United Asia Finance (Tianjin) Limited

Room K, 26/F, No. 256 Jie-Fang Nan Road,
Hexi District, Tianjin, China

Postal Code: 300042

Tel: (86) 22 2317 6000

Fax: (86) 22 2317 6099

BEUJING

Sun Hung Kai & Co., Ltd. Beijing Representative Office
Room 1206C, Level 12, Excel Centre,

No. 6 Wudinghou Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, China
Postal Code: 100032

Tel: (86) 10 8800 3812

Fax: (86) 10 8800 3812

United Asia Finance (Beijing) Limited

Unit 401, 4F, Tower A, Raycom InfoTech Park, No.2,
Kexueyuan South Road, Haidian District, Beijing
Postcode: 100190

Tel: (86) 10 6253 9666

Fax: (86) 10 6019 0871

DALIAN

Sun Hung Kai (Shanghai) Investment Consultancy Limited
Dalian Branch

Room 2101B, Tian An International Mansion, No. 88

Zhongshan Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian,

Liaoning Province, China

Postal Code: 116001

Tel: (86) 411 8231 2365

Fax: (86) 411 8231 2367

United Asia Finance (Dalian F.T.Z) Limited

Room 6A, Block E, International Trade Centre,

No. 205 Huang Hercynian Quad, Dalian Free Trade Zone,
Dalian, China

Postal Code: 116600

Tel: (86) 411 3922 7988

Fax: (86) 411 3922 7900
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Contacts

SHENYANG

United Asia Finance (Shenhe District Shenyang) Limited
Room 805-10, 8/F, Office Tower, L'Avenue,

10 Hui Gong Street, Shen He District, Shenyang P.R.C, China
Postal Code: 110013

Tel: (86) 24 3106 1777

Fax: (86) 24 3106 1789

NINGBO

Sun Hung Kai (Shanghai) Investment Consultancy Limited
1703 Portman Building, 48 North Caihong Road,
Jiangdong District, Ningbo City,

Zhejiang Province, China

Postal Code: 315040

Tel: (86) 574 8911 6079

Fax: (86) 574 8911 6074

For companies in China, the translated English names are for
reference only.

&5

B TRAERBEETBRM N EERXERAF

R BUERS LR BT A 1098
HiliKE8#805-10F
AR : 110013
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{EH : (86) 24 3106 1789
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responsible sources

SUN HUNG KAI & CO. LIMITED ESC Fsc- coorzas
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